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. MEETING PROCEDURE

COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD
Procedure of 2021 Annual General Meeting

1. Call the Meeting to Order
2. Chairman’s Address

3. Report Items

4. Ratification Items

5. Discussion Items

6. Election Items

7. Other Items

8. [Extenoirary Motions

9. Adjourment



ll. Meeting Agenda

COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD
Agenda of 2021 Annual General Meeting

Time : 9:00 a.m. on Wednesday, June 23, 2021

Venure : 4F, No.610, Sec.4 Taiwan Blvd., Xitun Dist., Taichung City 40764, Taiwan
(WINDSOR HOTEL TAICHUNG)

1. Announcement of the Total Shares Represented by Shareholders Present in Person
or by Proxy and Calling the Meeting to Order.

2. Chairman’s Address.
3. Report Items

(1) 2020 Business Report

(2) 2020 Audit Committee’s Review Report

(3) 2020 Employees and Directors Remuneration distribution

(4) Amendment to the “PROCEDURAL RULES OF BOARD MEETING”
4. Ratification Items

(1) Ratification the 2020 Business Report and Financial Statements

(2) Ratification the Profit and loss appropriation of 2020 earnings
5. Discussion Items

(1) Amendment to the “Article of Incorporation”

(2) Amendment to the “GUIDELINES GOVERNING ELECTION”

(3) Amendment to the “PROCEDURAL RULES OF GENERAL MEETINGS”
6. Election Items

To elect directors to the Board of Directors for the 3™ Term (7 seat Directors
include 3 seat Independent Directors)

7. Other Items

To approve the removal of non-competition restrictions of Board of Directors
electied in the shareholders’ meeting

8. Extenoirary Motions

9. Adjourment



lll. Report Iltems

1. 2020 Business Report

Explanation : Please refer to Attachment 1 for the 2020 Business Report (HandBook
P9~P.13) -

2. 2020 Audit Committee’s Review Report

Explanation : Please refer to Attachment 2 for the 2020 Audit Committee’s Review
Report(HandBook P.14) -

3. 2020 Employees and Directors Remuneration distribution

Explanation : 1. According to the Articles of Incorporation, where the Company makes
profits before tax for the annual financial year, the Company shall
allocate a maximum of 15% and a minimum of 1% of such annual
profits before tax for the purpose of employees’ remunerations
(including employees of the Company and/or any Affiliated
Company); and a maximum of 2% of such annual profits before tax
for the purpose of Directors’ remunerations.

2. It is proposed that for the 2020, the Company distributes directors’
compensation in the amount of NT$2,359,990 and distributes
employees’ compensation in the amount of NT$2,359,990. The
distribution will take place in cash. o

3. This proposal has been approved by the 6th meeting of the
second-term Remuneration Committee on March 23, 2021.

4. Amendment to the “PROCEDURAL RULES OF BOARD MEETING”

Explanation : 1. For actual operation needs and according to the official letters (Ref.
No.:
Tai-Zheng-Zhi-LiZi-10900094681,Tai-Zheng-Zhi-LiZi-11000014461
), the company hereby proceses to amend article 9~12 and article 14
of “PROCEDURAL RULES OF BOARD MEETING”.

2. Please refer to Attachment 3 (Page 15-19 of this HandBook) for the
Comparison Table.



IV. Ratification ltems

Proposal No. 1 : Ratification the 2020 Business Report and Financial Statements
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation : 1. The preparation of the Company’s 2020 business report and consolidated
financial statements were completed. Among them, the financial
statements have been audited by the Company’s auditing CPAs, Penny
Pen and David Teng of PwC Taiwan, the CPAs issued an audit report
with an unqulifid opinion. The above-mentioned financial statements
together with the business report were reviewed by the Audit Committee,
which the Audit Committee’ review report is presented.

2. Please refer to Attachment 1 (Page 9-13 of this HandBook) for the
business report, and Attachment 4 (Page 20-30 of this HandBook) for
accountant’s audit report and consolidated financial statements.

3. Please ratify.

Resolutions -

Proposal No. 2 : Ratification the Profit and loss appropriation of 2020 earnings

(Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation : 1. The profit and loss appropriation of 2020 earnings has been approved

by the Board of Directors on March 23, 2021, and has been prepared in
accordance with the /g peyporation, as follows :

Profit and Loss Ap E AT P ‘En e for Year 2020 unit - dollar

Item SD NTD
Beginning retained earnings 2,812,132 109,521,078
Add : Net income after tax 8,362,491 246,332,224
Less © 10% Legal Reserve (57,221) (1,606,764)
Less : Remeasurements of the net defined (830,527) (24,472,546)
benefit liability
Less : Special Reserve 173,428 (309,363,662)
Distributable Net Income 10,460,303 20,410,330
Less : Cash Dividend to Shareholders 0 0
2020 Unappropriated retained earnings 10,460,303 20,410,330
Exange Rate : 1USD =29.4568NTD
Chairperson President Accountng (7]
Manager e

i
o

ISR




2. 2020 net income after tax of the Company is US$8,362,491 (about NT$
246,332,224), distributable Net Income amounts to US$10,460,303
(NT$ 20,410,330). It is proposed to reserve all appropriable earnings to
meet future needs and not to allocate dividends. °

3. Please ratify.
Resolutions :



V. Discussion ltems

Proposal No. 1 : Amendment to the “Article of Incorporation”
(This Proposal shall be approved by Special Resolution)

(Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation : 1. For business needs the Company proposes to amend its “Article of

Incorporation”.

2. Please refer to Attachment 5 (pages 31-37 of this HandBook) for the
Comparison Table.

3. Please approve.

Resolutions

Proposal No. 2 : Amendment to the “GUIDELINES GOVERNING ELECTION”
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation : 1. For actual operation needs and according to the official letters (Ref. No.:
Tai-Zheng-Zhi-Li Zi-1090009468, Tai-Zheng-Zhi-Li Zi-11000014461),
it is proposed to amend the “GUIDELINES GOVERNING ELECTION”
of the Company.

2. Please refer to Attachment 6 (Page 38-40 of this HandBook) for the
comparison table. °

3 Please approve.

Resolutions

Proposal No. 3 : Amendment to the “PROCEDURAL RULES OF GENERAL
MEETINGS” (Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation : 1. For actual operation needs and according to the official letters (Ref. No.:
Tai-Zheng-Zhi-Li Zi-11000014461), it is proposed to amend the
“PROCEDURAL RULES OF GENERAL MEETINGS” of the
Company.

2. Please refer to Attachment 7 (Page 41-45 of this HandBook) for the

comparison table.

3. Please approve.
Resolutions :



VI. Elections Items

To elect directors to the Board of Directors for the 3™ Term (7 seat Directors
include 3 seat Independent Directors)
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation : 1. The terms of the second-term Board of Directors will expire on June 11,
2021. For the Company set to hold a shareholders’ meeting to elect new
Directors, according to article 80 of the Articles of Incorporation, in case
no election of new Directors or supervisors (if any) is effected after
expiration of the term of office of the existing Directors or supervisors
(if any), the term of office shall be extended until the time new Directors
or supervisors (if any) are elected and assume their office.
2. According to article 74 of the Articles of Incorporation, the number of
Directors shall be no less than five (5) Directors with a maximum of nine
(9) Directors. 9 directors (including 3 independent directors) must be
elected, via the candidates-nomination system, with three-year term
starts from June 23, 2021 and conclude on June 22, 2024.
3. The candidates list of Directors was reviewed by the Board of Directors
on March 23, 2021, please refer to Attachment 8 (Page 46-47 of this
HandBook) for the candidate list and reference information.
4. Please proceed to vote.

Resolutions



VIl.Other ltems

To approve the removal of non-competition restrictions on Board of Directors
elected in the shareholders’ meeting
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation : 1. According to Article 209 of the Company Act, as applied mutatis
mutandis under “The Operation Directions for Compliance with the
Establishment of Board of Directors by TWSE Listed Companies and
the Board's Exercise of Powers”, apply to Director conducting business
for himselt/herself or on another’s behalf, and the scope of which
coincides with the Company’s business scope, shall explain at the
Shareholders’ Meeting the essential contents of such conduct and obtain
approval from shareholders in the Meeting. °
2. The condition that Directors hold current positions in enterprises whose
business is partly the same or similar with the Company, shall be
submitted to shareholders’ meeting for approval according to the
foregoing stipulation of Article 209 of the Company Act, to grant a
waiver to the director’s obligation of non-competition. °
3. The proposal to release non-competition restrictions on the third-term
director candidates was approved by the Board of Directors on March 23,
2021, please refer to Attachment 9 (Page 48 of this HandBook) for a list
of proposed release of prohibition on Directors from participation in
competing business. °

4. Please approve.
Resolutions :

VIll.Extemporary Motions

IX. Adjourment



[ Attachment 1] Business Report
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Business Report
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1. The operational guildlines
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The 2020 COVID-19 pandemic disrupts consumer life-style, shopping behavior, and imposes
serious strains on global supply chain including the shortage on materials, slower reactivating
workforce, limited production capacities, and constrained logistics resources. Starting from the second
half of 2020, with the gradually recovery on some part of Asian production facilities, the shortage of
global shipping resources exacerbates the flow of furniture and other consumer products from Asia to
US. In response, Coaster focuses on inventory distribution and sales channels management to
mitigate the negative impacts and has achieved its 2020 annual profit goal by reporting its 2020
after-tax profit of NT$246,332 thousand, and EPS of NT$ 3.24.

BR Ak RREMRINRAF IO 28T RF ARSI R B F S A
FErA2RS Tom a4 g2 LSRRt p FREF L B 8T 5 (CC3)
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Looking forward, with respect to the challenge of inventory sourcing cost increase, Coaster is
dedicated to continue enhancing its digital transaction platforms to gain efficiency, and investing in
data analytical capability to gain decision making quality. The primary objective is to enable Coaster
with a long-term sustainable growth. With respect to the digital platform enhancement, in 2020, Coaster
enabled its self-developed platforms of CC3 and RP2 with several add-on functions to provide better
user experience and/or decision support information. In light of the 2021 focus of improving operation
efficiency, more tools and measurements will be developed to enhance the quality and responsiveness
of decision-making.

With respect to supporting local furniture retailers to more effectively leveraging Coaster on-line
marketing assets in promoting Coaster brand products, Coaster offers its dealers with “020”

(Online-to-Offline) solution to enable Coaster local dealers to leverage Coaster digital tools on



consumer centric on-line marketing with the intend to bring consumer traffic to the local dealer stores
for completing the sales, local delivery and after-sales services. The success on “O20” solution
implementation shell strengthen Coaster relationship with its over 8,000 dealers in the US, as well as

enable consumers gain favorable shopping experience from purchasing Coaster brand products.
=~ FEBER
2. An overview of enterprise operations

FIFTEFELAFEATS R ESF A B2 ELE 2020 £ 2 EEE FIRIATST
10,314,597 + ~ > gaav — £ R0 12.12% - F é‘r‘—"* ﬂ—‘ p 2019 & 2 28.65%+ 2 1 30.77% > 2020
£ E Y E LIRS 3,173,407 F & g - E R 5.65% ©

Negatively impacted by the pandemic and the appreciation of NT dollars against the functional
currency of US dollars, the Company’s 2020 operating revenue of NT$ 10,314,597 thousand, down by
12.12% (YOY) compares to that of the prior year. The gross margin ratio increases from 28.65% of
2019 to 30.77% of 2020, with the 2020 gross profit of NT$ 3,173,407 thousand, represents a decrease
of 5.65% from that of the previous year.

AR REBEFFZERY O IREPRHE AL 2ENPFER U GRREPER
WREFRTFF R T 2 P SNRS - ERF 16.79%% 16.20% 02020 £ > # £ &
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Due to the pandemic, the Company took proper epidemic prevention measures and implemented
proper control over expenditure. With the reduction of on-site marketing activities and decreased
working hours of employees, compared to that of prior year, the Company’s 2020 selling expenses and
general and administrative expenses decreased by 16.79% and 16.20% respectively. The 2020
operating expense was NT$ 2,838,659 thousand, decreased by 15.54% from that of 2019 of NT$
3,360,756 thousand.

2020 F £ E Y E YL FEL DAL 103,411 F 2 o g - & RGPS 1537% 0 A& (2
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Comparing to that of 2019, the 2020 non-operating net expenses decreased by 15.37% to
NT$103,411 thousand. This is mainly attributable to the decrease of 2020 Finance Cost by NT$33,769
thousand from that of previous year; where Finance Cost consists of interest expense on bank loan,
related party loan and lease liability.

2020 & > & fiw E J 5 AT 5§ 231,337 F o Aot er @A) E AT SO 14,995 F <~ 0 2020 &
B fite EAIRT 5 246,332 F & 0 E R ARG E L FA 324 &~ o

The company’s 2020 profit before income tax is NT$231,337 thousand, including tax refund
benefit of NT$14,995 thousand, the 2020 net after-tax profit amounts to NT$246,332 thousand, with an
EPS of NT$ 3.24.

10
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3. The implementation of business plan
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In execution of its 2020 business plan, the Company’s management focused on retaining
profitable sales and control on operating expenses. Company’s 2020 gross margin ratio raised to
30.77%, the operating expenses of the year reduced 15.54% from that of prior year. The net profit of
2020 amounts to NT$246,332 thousand, EPS NT$ 3.24.
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One of the long-term marketing objective is to successfully implementing Coaster’s “020”
(Online-to-Offline) new retailing business solution for its dealers and consumers. In 2020 Coaster
launched Coaster CCN Initiative (Coaster Community Network) by selecting thousand of independent
furniture retailers who have actively leveraged Coaster On-Line marketing tools in promoting and sales
Coaster brand products to consumers. Coaster invests in consumer-centric On-Line Marketing to attract
consumers to CCN dealer stores, where dealers conclude the sales on Coaster products and assist
consumers select the preferred delivery & service modes (e.g., drop-shipping or local truck delivery
with or without assembly service). It is expected that with the full implementation of “O20” and CCN
service network, Coaster will be able to more effectively connecting its local furniture dealers and
consumer communities. With implementing the new retailing solutions like “O20” and CCN and
leveraging the decision support tools, Coaster is confident to maintain an adequate level of inventory,
strengthen its competitiveness through healthy financial structure management to drive long-term

profitable growth.

s R RATE
4. The execution of the budget derivative of operating revenue and expenditure

(1) Revenure
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The Company’s operating revenue of 2020 reached to NT$ 10,314,597 thousand, a decrease of
NT$1,422,786 thousand from that of 2019 operating revenue of NT$ 11,737,383 thousand.
Impacted by the coronavirus pandemic and the appreciation of NT dollars against the function
currency of US dollars, The Company’s 2020 operating revenue was down by 12.12%
year-over-year. Presented in the Company’s functional currency, the Company’s operating revenue
of 2020 amounts to US$ 350,160 thousand, decreased by US$29,538 thousand from US$379,698
thousand of 2019, representing a decrease of 7.78% compares to that of the previous year.

(2) Operating expense

2020 F R F EF* AT oW 2,838,659 F o 41 2019 # 20 AT 5 7 3,360,756 F <kt 522,097
FACFERTROEREISSA% A ERMBPHEE R ) REPRHW > 2ERD
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The Company’s operating expense of 2020 amounts to NT$ 2,838,659 thousand, comparing to
2019 operating expense of NT$ 3,360,756 thousand, representing a decrease of NT$ 522,097
thousand and 15.54% decrease compares to that of the previous year. Thanks to the Company’s
adequate control over expenses and taking proper epidemic prevention measures, with reduction of
on-site marketing activities and decrease of working hours of employees, compares to that of prior
year, the Company’s selling expenses and general and administrative expenses of 2020 decreased by
16.79% and 16.20% respectively.

I~ BAIRES A
5. Profitability analysis

246,332 + ~ » fmfgv-‘* ’E‘.é’fﬁ 3.24 7o
Thanks to the healthy margin on sales and expenses control, the Company reports a 2020 net

profit of NT$246,332 thousand, EPS NT§ 3.24.
SR ERRREAARFTNAR - THREFERBRNZHALER)

6. Research and development (The development of applied technology on the company’s

marketing strategy)
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In connection with enhancing the quality and responsiveness of decision-making, Coaster

E

Ti\4

leverages various methodologies in analyzing data and developing decision support systems. Coaster
leverages various tools including RPA (robotic process automation), API (Application Programming
Interface) or EDI, to start a journey on process automation to gain operation efficiency.
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Coaster continues investing and building up its own brand recognition and expanding influence
among targeted consumer communities and social media groups. With respect to building digital assets
and marketing intangibles, Coaster continues updating its CC3 platform with additional features and
functions with the user feedbacks from sales team members, dealers and consumers; including fast and
easy way to check order quantities and amount, charge on shipping, tracking orders and to make
payments. With respect to the procurement of inventory, Coaster continues updating its Supply Chain
& Procurement Management system (RP2) to deliver real-time inventory information to management
and provide relevant and timing information to assist sales officers to better service their dealers and

branch management to effectively managing their workforce and gain operating efficiency (e.g.,

scheduling cargo unloading the incoming containers).

Accounting

Manager
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[ Attachment 2] 2020 Audit Committee’s Review Report

Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company’s 2020 Business Report, Consolidated
Financial Statements, and proposal for profit and loss appropriation of 2020 earnings. The
CPA Pan, Hui-Lin and Teng, Sheng-Wei for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan was
retained to audit Company’s Financial Statements and issued an audit report relating to the
Financial Statements. The Company’s 2020 Business Report, Consolidated Financial
Statement and proposal for profit and loss appropriation of 2020 earnings have been
reviewed and determined to be correct and accurate by the Audit Committee of COASTER
INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD. Pursuant to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act
and Article 219 of the Company Act, we hereby submit this report. Please review.

COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.

Chairman of the Audit Committee -
% 44

Yuan, Hui-Erh
On the date of March 23, 2021
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[ Attachment 3 JRevision Comparison Table for PROCEDURAL RULES OF BOARD

MEETINGS

Coaster International Co., Ltd.
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Revision Comparison Table for PROCEDURAL RULES OF BOARD MEETINGS
TEERERPBHEL

Article Current Articles (English) Amendments(English) Explanation
[E=y PFE~-Y 2 BriEs -9 hEu|
9 Meeting Agenda ZE PN 7 Meeting Agenda X E P % English version typo
The agenda for the regular Board The agenda for the regular Board meetings | correction

meetings shall include the following
matters for the least:
THHETEEZREMF LS
7| % 7 I
1. Matters to be reported:
FLFA
(1)Minutes of proceedings of former
meeting and status of implementation;
(2)Important financial and business
reports;
(3)Internal audit reports; and
(4)Other important reports.
()= =% ¢ & & 45 % é*HL 7 FA5
2)£x P%ﬁ#’zﬁéﬁ T
G)MIMFEFE IR L o
4 H @‘Jﬂz*rﬁ FIE o
2.Matters for discussion:
SRR i
(1)Matters reserved for further discussion
from former meeting; and
(2)Mattters to be discussed during the
meeting.
(D% = §RFET 23 mF A -
() EEN g Fiﬂ? Ai?llv{f\ﬂ_‘i e
3.Extempore Motion

TR ik o

b 4a

shall include the following matters for the
least:
THHREEE 2
7 % ¥ 58 .
1. Matters to be reported:
WL EA
(1)Minutes of proceedings of former
meeting and status of implementation;
(2)Important financial and business
reports;
(3)Internal audit reports; and
(4)Other important reports.
(D)= =% € 3% & 45 % :ﬁ T4 e
QEL M EREL o
() M FRFEF: F i34 2
4)Hw ‘a‘ﬁéiﬁ ii& °
2.Matters for d1scuss1on.
B
(1)Matters reserved for further discussion
from former meeting; and
(2)Matters to be discussed during the
meeting.
(DF = & kT2 HBE T -
2 =X § Piigg ?\;‘}Fﬁi W e
3.Extempore Motion

TRf 6 3R

AEPF L

¢ 3T

EYRBE G
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Proposal Discussion % % 31 #

Board meetings shall be conducted
accordance with the procedure of the
meeting as scheduled in the meeting
notice, which may be subject to change
upon consent of a majority of the
Directors present at the Board meeting.
b f R R R A
BF RGN AETEEE IR L "’ » 18
ZL2 -

The Chairman may not declare
adjournment without the consent of a
majority of the Directors present at the
meeting.

E 4’}%@#1:@ S S
T FACE o

During a Board meeting, if the Directors
present the meeting do not exceed half of
the Directors attendance at the meeting,

ENYE R

J @
Q..f’l’

upon motion filed by the Directors present

Proposal Discussion % % 31

Board meetings shall be conducted
accordance with the procedure of the
meeting as scheduled in the meeting
notice, which may be subject to change
upon consent of a majority of the
Directors present at the Board meeting.
Eig@&gﬁd%%#*7&iﬁﬁ
EEoLENFETFELER L F‘ » 18
B2

The Chairman may not declare
adjournment without the consent of a
majority of the Directors present at the

meeting.
/J‘;_ .frﬁﬁ—is@ ﬁ'ﬂ:ﬁ",{, ENY: A
u_rr 'ﬁ%{g °

During a Board meeting, if the Directors
present the meeting do not exceed half of
the Directors attendance at the meeting,
upon motion filed by the Directors present

Item adjustment

FAAE
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Article
e =%

Current Articles (English)
PFE>-¢ 2

Amendments(English)
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Explanation
g 12

in the meeting, the Chairman shall declare
suspension of the meeting and the
provisions under Paragraph 3, Article 7 of
the Rules may apply mutatis mutandis.
%ig%imﬁﬁvfpﬁ%ii‘iﬁ
CHEOELATFRZER LR
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in the meeting, the Chairman shall declare

suspension of the meeting and the

provisions under Paragraph 4, Article 7 of

the Rules may apply mutatis mutandis.
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Matters that Must be Discussed at the

Board Meeting &5 % § it ¥ 70

The following matters shall be brought to

a Board meeting for discussion:
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1.The Company's business plan;
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2.Annual ﬁnan01a1 report and biannual-

Fererabreparteelusbeeobthe
semi-anntal-financial report which is
net required to be audited by the

accountants pursuant-to-the Applicable-
Listpetnlas:
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3. Internal control system established or
amended in accordance with the
Applicable Listing Rules, and
Assessment of the effectiveness of the
internal control system;
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4.Procedure for handling important
financial and business activities such as
the acquisition or disposition of assets,
derivative products transactions, lending
of capital, endorsement for third party,
provision of guarantee, established or
amended in accordance with the
Applicable Listing Rules;
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5.Offering, issue or private placement of
securities of the nature of equity;
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6.Appointment and/or dismissal of a
financial, accounting or internal audit
officers;
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7.A donation to a related party or a major
donation to a non-related party, provided
that a public-interest donation of disaster
relief for a major natural disaster may be
submitted to the following Board
meeting for ratification; and; and

Matters that Must be Discussed at the
Board Meeting &5 5 ¥ ¢ 31 % 54
The following matters shall be brought to
a Board meeting for discussion:
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1.The Company s business plan;
AP FETE
2.Annual ﬁnancml reports and second-
quarter financial reports that must be
audited and attested by a CPA, which
are signed or sealed by the chairman,
managerial officer, and accounting
officer;
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3.Internal control system established or
amended in accordance with the
Applicable Listing Rules, and
Assessment of the effectiveness of the
internal control system;
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4.Procedure for handling important
financial and business activities such as
the acquisition or disposition of assets,
derivative products transactions, lending
of capital, endorsement for third party,
provision of guarantee, established or
amended in accordance with the
Applicable Listing Rules;
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5.Any matter relating to the personal
interest of the Director;
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6.The entering into of a transaction
relating to material assets or
derivatives:;
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7.Amaterial monetary loan,
endorsement, or provision of
guarantee;
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8.0ffering, issue or private placement of
securities of the nature of equity;
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Pursuant to the
Tai-Jeng-Jili-No
10900094681, dated
June 3, 2020 and
Ariticle 14-5 of
Securities and
Exchange Act and
“Sample Template for
XXX Co., Ltd. Rules
Governing the Scope
of Powers of
Independent Directors
to revised the related
content
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Atrticle Current Articles (English) Amendments(Enghsh) Explanation
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2N FREE o BRT g E g% certified public accountant as the
o auditors of the Company, or the
8.Matters to be resolved at general compensation given thereto;
meetings or by the Board meeting in FEeiFz £z - B HEM o
accordance with the Applicable Listing | 10.Appointment and/or dismissal of a
Rules, Law or the Articles, or any such financial, accounting or internal audit
significant matters as may be prescribed officers;
by the Commission. PAFE ~ €3 P IEPIAE LT o
[ (1‘%)«{ 4 vz A F AR L | 11.A donation to a related party or a major
d K gHAREEEE pizi B donation to a non-related party, provided
FWM(sE g )Lﬁ. ZEXEA that a public-interest donation of disaster
(LA F#) relief for a major natural disaster may be
submitted to the following Board
meeting for ratification; and; and
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12.Matters to be resolved at general
meetings or by the Board meeting in
accordance with the Applicable Listing
Rules, Law or the Articles, or any such
significant matters as may be prescribed
by the Commission.
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The Chairman may declare end of
discussion of a proposal the agenda and
have the proposal voted on if he or she
deems the proposal in discussion is ready
for a vote.
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Votes shall be cast for the proposal in the
agenda of the Board meeting.
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For purpose of the preceding two
paragraphs, all Directors present at the
meeting do not include Directors who may
not exercise their voting right in
accordance with the provisions under
Article 14 of the Rules.
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Votes may be cast in one of the following
manners as determined by the Chairman;
provided, however, that when a person
present at the meeting files an objection,
the decision shall be made according to
majority votes:
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The Chairman may declare end of
discussion of a proposal the agenda and
have the proposal voted on if he or she
deems the proposal in discussion is ready
for a vote.
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Votes shall be cast for the proposal in the
agenda of the Board meeting.
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For purpose of the preceding two
paragraphs, all Directors present at the
meeting do not include Directors who may
not exercise their voting right in
accordance with the provisions under
Article 14 of the Rules.
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When a proposal comes to a vote at a
Board meeting, if no attending director
voices an objection following an inquiry
by the Chairman, the proposal will be
deemed approved. If there is an
objection following an inquiry by the
Chairman, the proposal shall be
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2. Roll-call vote; Votes may be cast in one of the following
3. Vote by ballots; or manners as determined by the Chairman;
4. Any other voting method as determined | provided, however, that when a person
by the Company. present at the meeting files an objection,
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1.Vote by show of hands or by voting
system,;
2. Roll-call vote;
3. Vote by ballots; or
4. Any other voting method as determined
by the Company.
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14 Voting on Proposal #% ¥z % & Voting on Proposal #% %% % & Pursuant to the

Unless otherwise provided for under the
Applicable Listing Rules or the Articles, a
proposal put to a vote shall be approved
by consent of a majority of Shareholders
present at the meeting attended.
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In case of an amendment proposal or
substitute proposal to an original proposal,
the chairman shall decide on the order of
vote together with the original proposal.
However, if one of the proposals has been
approved, the others shall be deemed
overruled and no further vote is required.
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Where directors and/or supervisors are
elected at a Shareholders' meeting, the
election shall be conducted in accordance
with the applicable election rules
established by the Company and the
election results, including the list of
elected directors and/or supervisors and
numbers of shares voted for the election
of directors and/or supervisors, shall be
announced at the same meeting.
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Voting ballots cast in the election of

Unless otherwise provided for under the
Applicable Listing Rules or the Articles, a
proposal put to a vote shall be approved
by consent of a majority of Shareholders
present at the meeting attended.
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In case of an amendment proposal or
substitute proposal to an original proposal,
the chairman shall decide on the order of
vote together with the original proposal.
However, if one of the proposals has been
approved, the others shall be deemed
overruled and no further vote is required.
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Where directors and/or supervisors are
elected at a Shareholders' meeting, the
election shall be conducted in accordance
with the applicable election rules
established by the Company and the
election results, including the name list of
all eleeted-directors and/or supervisors
nominated for election and numbers of
votes shares-voted-forthe-election-of
direetors-and/orsupervisers, shall be

announced at the same meeting.
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amendment of the
“Sample Template for
XX Co., Ltd. Rules of
Procedure for
shareholders Meeting”
(Tai-Jeng-Jili-No
11000014461, dated
January 28, 2021)
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Explanation
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director(s) shall be signed and sealed by
scrutinizer and properly kept for at least
one (1) years; provided, however, that in
case of a litigation instituted by
Shareholder, these ballots shall then be
kept until conclusion of the litigation.
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Voting ballots cast in the election of
director(s) shall be signed and sealed by
scrutinizer and properly kept for at least
one (1) years; provided, however, that in
case of a litigation instituted by
Shareholder, these ballots shall then be
kept until conclusion of the litigation.
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[ Attachment 4] Independent Auditors’ Report and 2020 Consolidated Financial
Statements

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of COASTER INTERNATIONAL
CO., LTD. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”
and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC

Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the “Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of

Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants” and generally accepted auditing standards in

the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public

Accountants of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming our

opinion thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters for the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the current period are stated as

follows:

Assessment of allowance for inventory valuation losses

Description

Refer to Note 4(11) for accounting policies on inventory assessment, Note 5(2) for accounting
estimates and assumptions applied on inventory assessment, and Note 6(5) for details of allowance for
inventory valuation losses. As of December 31, 2020, the balance of inventory amounted to
NT$1,590,795 thousand, constituting 29% of total consolidated assets.

The Group is primarily engaged in the sales, import and wholesale of furniture. The Group mainly
purchases merchandise from Asian suppliers and sells to American small and medium local retail stores,
online shops and large chain stores. The Group has many warehouses in the United States and acts as
a logistics center for the sellers to ensure instant and sufficient merchandise supply. As such, the
balance of inventory accounts for a significant part of the consolidated assets. The Group measures
inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value. For inventories aged over a certain period and
for items individually identified as obsolete inventories, the net realisable value is calculated based on
historical data of the degree of discounts required for inventory clearance. As the changes in net
realisable value of inventory would have an impact on inventory value, and the net realisable value
which was used in obsolete inventory valuation involves significant judgment, and considering that

the inventory is material, we identified the allowance for inventory valuation losses a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter:

A. We assessed the reasonableness of policies on loss for market value decline and obsolete and
slow-moving inventories, including the determination basis of net realisable value, the source of
historical data of discounts, and the reasonableness of the basis of individually identified obsolete

inventories.
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B. We obtained an understanding of the inventory management process and observed the annual
stock take to assess the effectiveness of management’s classification and controls over obsolete
and slow-moving inventory.

C. We obtained an understanding of the appropriateness of the logic of the inventory aging
statements, and randomly checked the accuracy of inventory aging statements to confirm that the
information on the statements is consistent with its policies.

D. We tested the appropriateness of the net realisable value as shown in the inventory list.

E. We verified certain samples of separately numbered inventories against the historical data of
discounts, compared the samples to prior allowance for inventory valuation losses and referred to
subsequent transactions to assess the reasonableness of allowance for inventory valuation losses.

F. We assessed the reasonableness of loss on decline in market value based on the evaluation of the

inventory aging and the net realisable value.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers” and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory
Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate

the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’

22



report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards in the

Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of

China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

A.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the

underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

23



F. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Penny Pan David Teng

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 23,2021

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of operations and cash flows in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the
Republic of China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the
Republic of China. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended for use by those who are not
informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications in practice. As the
financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the

English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31. 2020 AND 2019

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2020

December 31, 2019

Assets AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 1,077,127 20 447,213 7
1136 Financial assets at amortised cost - 6(2)

current 8,424 - - -
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(3) 338,098 6 670,796 11
1200 Other receivables 6(4) 246,725 5 135,923 2
1220 Current income tax assets 6(21) 81,798 2 25,662 -
130X Inventories, net 6(5) 1,590,795 29 2,483,028 41
1410 Prepayments 113,294 2 96,344 2
11XX Total current assets 3,456,261 64 3,858,966 63

Non-current assets

1535 Financial assets at amortised cost - 6(2), 8 and 9

non-current 85,644 2 - _
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(6) 102,858 2 104,505 2
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(7) 1,444,764 27 1,708,453 28
1780 Intangible assets 21,548 - 37,298 -
1840 Deferred income tax assets 6(21) 240,440 4 370,106 6
1920 Refundable deposits 41,115 1 44,054 1
15XX Total non-current assets 1,936,369 36 2,264,416 37
1 XXX Total assets $ 5,392,630 100 6,123,382 100

(Continued)
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COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

December 31, 2020

December 31, 2019

Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %

Current liabilities
2100 Short-term borrowings 6(8) 26,869 1 $ 910,743 15
2130 Contract liabilities - current 75,082 1 56,374 1
2150 Notes payable 4,600 - 6,505 -
2170 Accounts payable 321,656 6 227,051 4
2200 Other payables 6(9) 297,204 6 289,596 5
2220 Other payables - related parties 7 213,601 4 - -
2230 Current income tax liabilities 9,978 - 4,235 -
2250 Provisions - current 53,413 1 61,254 1
2280 Lease liabilities - current 7 480,984 9 541,195 9
2365 Refund liabilities - current 6(10) 106,075 2 75,895 1
2399 Other current liabilities 614 - 1,615 -
21XX Total current liabilities 1,590,076 30 2,174,463 36

Non-current liabilities
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities 6(21) 4,321 - 4,234 -
2580 Lease liabilities - non-current 7 1,117,067 21 1,334,690 22
2640 Net defined benefit liability, non- 6(11)

current 28,446 - 26,243 -

2670 Other non-current liabilities 8,327 - 8,164 -
25XX Total non-current liabilities 1,158,161 21 1,373,331 22
2XXX Total liabilities 2,748,237 51 3,547,794 58

Equity
3110  Ordinary shares 6(13) 765,557 14 765,557 12
3200  Capital surplus 1,791,308 33 1,791,308 29

Retained earnings 6(14)
3310 Legal reserve 55,493 1 55,493 1
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 354,246 7 109,520 2
3400  Other equity interest ( 309,363) ( 6) ( 133,442) ( 2)
3500  Treasury shares 6(13) ( 12,848) - ( 12,848) -
3IXXX Total equity 2,644,393 49 2,575,588 42

Significant contingent liabilities and 9

unrecorded contract commitments
3X2X Total liabilities and equity $ 5,392,630 100§ 6,123,382 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO.. LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except for earnings (loss) per share amount)

Year ended December 31
2020 2019
Items Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
4000  Operating revenue 6(15) $ 10,314,597 100 $ 11,737,383 100
5000  Operating costs 6(5)(11)(19)(20)  ( 7,141,190) ( 69) ( 8,374,047) ( 71)
5900 Gross profit 3,173,407 31 3,363,336 29
Operating expenses 6(11)(19)(20)
6100 Selling expenses ( 1,932,621) ( 19) ( 2,322,701) ( 20)
6200 General and administrative expenses ( 869,670) ( 9) ( 1,037,748) ( 9)
6450 Expected credit losses 12(2) ( 36,368) - ( 307) -
6000 Total operating expenses ( 2,838,659) ( 28) ( 3,360,756) ( 29)
6900  Operating profit 334,748 3 2,580 -
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest income 6(2) 444 - 1,606 -
7010 Other income 6(16) 6,572 - 22,819 -
7020 Other gains and losses 6(17) ( 6,784) - ( 9,201) -
7050 Finance cost 6(18) and 7 ( 103,643) ( 1) ( 137,412) ( 1)
7000 Total non-operating income and
expenses ( 103,411) ( 1) ( 122,188) ( 1)
7900  Profit (loss) before income tax 231,337 2 ( 119,608) ( 1)
7950 Income tax benefit 6(21) 14,995 - 47,382 -
8200  Profit (loss) for the year $ 246,332 2 ($ 72,226) ( 1)
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Components of other comprehensive
income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
8311 Losses on remeasurements of 6(11)
defined benefit plans ($ 2,008) - (% 952) -
8349 Income tax related to components of
other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or
loss 402 - 190 -
Components of other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
8361 Exchange differences on translation
of foreign financial statements ( 175,921) ( 2) ( 37,690) -
8300  Other comprehensive loss, net for tax ($ 177,527) ( 2) ($ 38,452) -
8500  Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 68,805 - (3 110,678) ( 1)
Profit (loss) attributable to:
8610 Owners of the parent $ 246,332 2 ($ 72,226) ( 1)
Comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to:
8710 Owners of the parent $ 68,805 - (% 110,678) ( 1)
Earnings (loss) per share
9750 Basic earnings (loss) per share 6(22) $ 3.24 ($ 0.95)
9850 Diluted earnings (loss) per share 6(22) $ 3.10 ($ 0.95)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019
(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

Year ended December 31
Notes 2020 2019
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit (loss) before tax $ 231,337  ($ 119,608 )
Adjustments
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Expected credit losses 12(2) 36,368 307
Gains on write-off of past due payable 6(16) - ( 15,631)
Depreciation 6(19) 555,284 583,170
Amortization 6(19) 10,296 11,478
Gains on disposals of property, plant and 6(17)
equipment ( 103 ) ( 352)
Interest expense 6(18) 79,897 120,276
Interest income ( 444 ) ( 1,606 )
Compensation cost of employee stock options 6(12) - 1,724
Gain on lease modification 6(17) ( 4,981 ) -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets
Accounts receivable 296,330  ( 68,961 )
Other receivables ( 110,802 ) 87,752
Prepayments ( 16,950) 23,290
Inventories 892,233 520,466
Changes in operating liabilities
Contract liabilities-current 18,708 5,469
Notes payable ( 1,905) 5,014
Accounts payable 94,605 ( 435,186 )
Other payables 7,608  ( 41,284 )
Other payables-related parties - ( 1,734)
Provisions-current ( 3,932) ( 981 )
Refund liabilities-current 36,978 5,379
Other current liabilities ( 1,001 ) 396
Net defined benefit liability, non-current 194 247
Other non-current liabilities 163 ( 18,183 )
Cash inflow generated from operations 2,119,883 661,442
Interest received 444 1,606
Interest paid ( 79,897 ) ( 120,276 )
Income tax paid ( 6,988 ) ( 27,149 )
Income tax refund received 78,095 -
Net cash flows from operating activities 2,111,537 515,623

(Continued)
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COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in financial assets at amortised cost -

current

Increase in financial assets at amortised cost - non-

current

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of intangible assets

Decrease in refundable deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in short-term borrowings

Decrease in short-term borrowings

Lease payments

Increase in other payables - related parties

Net cash flows used in financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents reported in the statement

of financial position

Other items qualifying for cash and cash equivalents 6(8)

under the definition of IAS 7

Cash and cash equivalents at end of reporting period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Year ended December 31
Notes 2020 2019
($ 8,424) § -
( 85,644 ) -
584 544
6(6) ( 39,272 ) ( 48,953 )
- ( 6,182)
2,939 501
( 129,817 ) ( 54,090 )
6(23) 14,728 788,266
6(23) ( 839,362 ) ( 737,903 )
6(23) ( 518,637 ) ( 526,080 )
6(23) 213,601 -
( 1,129,670 ) ( 475,717)
( 180,622 ) ( 30,899 )
671,428 ( 45,083 )
378,830 423,913
1,050,258 $ 378,830
6(1)
1,077,127 $ 447,213
( 26,869 ) ( 68,383 )
1,050,258 $ 378,830
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[ Attachment 5] Revision Comparison Table for ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
Coaster International Co., Ltd.
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p gy AMENDED AND RESTATED AMENDED AND RESTATED adopted by the
ARTICLES OF ASSOCAITION ARTICLES OF ASSOCAITION shareholders at annual
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prescribed under Article 14 shall not apply

in the event that new Shares are issued due

to the following reasons or for the following
purpose:

(a)in connection with a Merger with another
company, or the Spin-off of the
Company, or pursuant to any
reorganization of the Company;

(b)in connection with meeting the
Company’s obligation under Share
subscription warrants and/or options;

(c)in connection with meeting the
Company’s obligation under corporate
bonds which are convertible bonds or
vested with rights to acquire Shares; or

(d)in connection with meeting the
Company’s obligation under preferred
Shares vested with rights to acquire
Shares-

prescribed under Article 14 shall not apply

in the event that new Shares are issued due

to the following reasons or for the following
purpose:

(a)in connection with a Merger with another
company, or the Spin-off of the
Company, or pursuant to any
reorganization of the Company;

(b)in connection with meeting the
Company’s obligation under Share
subscription warrants and/or options;

(c)in connection with meeting the
Company’s obligation under corporate
bonds which are convertible bonds or
vested with rights to acquire Shares;

(d)in connection with meeting the
Company’s obligation under preferred
Shares vested with rights to acquire
Shares:;
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is due to the
shareholders’
pre-emptive right shall
not apply in the event
include restricted
shares for employees
(17B), private
placement (17C) and
the allotment of bonus
shares in employees’
remunerations (139A).
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The following matters and their respective
material contents shall be specified in the
notice of a general meeting, and shall not be
proposed as ad hoc motions:material-

contenbornehmntermeebeuploaded

ertotheveebaitedestonated by the 1S

SR corthe Companwatththeaddres o

(a)election or discharge of Directors or
supervisors (if any);

(b)amendments to the Memorandum of
Association and/or these Articles;

(c)reduction in share capital of the
Company;

(d)application for de-registration as a public
company;

(e)dissolution, share swap (as defined in the
Applicable Listing Rules), Merger or
Spin- off of the Company;

(f) entering into, amendment to, or
termination of any contract for lease of
its business in whole, or for entrusting
business, or for regular joint operation
with others;

(g)the transfer of the whole or any material
part of its business or assets;

(h)the takeover of another's whole business
or assets, which will have a material
effect on the business operation of the
Company;

(1) the private placement of equity-linked
securities;

(j) granting waiver to the Director’s
engaging in any business within the
scope of business of the Company;

(k) distribution of part or all of its dividends
or bonus by way of issuance of new
Shares;

(1) capitalization of the Legal Reserves and
Capital Reserves arising from the share
premium account or endowment income,
in whole or in part, by issuing new
Shares which shall be distributable as
dividend shares to the then Shareholders
in proportion to the number of Shares
being held by each of them;

(m) subject to the Law, distribution of the
Legal Reserves and Capital Reserves
arising from the share premium account
or endowment income, in whole or in

The following matters and their respective
material contents shall be specified in the
notice of a general meeting, and shall not be
proposed as ad hoc motions:

(a)election or discharge of Directors or
supervisors (if any);

(b)amendments to the Memorandum of
Association and/or these Articles;

(c)reduction in share capital of the
Company;

(d)application for de-registration as a public
company;

(e)dissolution, share swap (as defined in the
Applicable Listing Rules), Merger or
Spin- off of the Company;

(f) entering into, amendment to, or
termination of any contract for lease of
its business in whole, or for entrusting
business, or for regular joint operation
with others;

(g)the transfer of the whole or any material
part of its business or assets;

(h)the takeover of another's whole business
or assets, which will have a material
effect on the business operation of the
Company;

(i) the private placement of equity-linked
securities;

(j) granting waiver to the Director’s
engaging in any business within the
scope of business of the Company;

(k) distribution of part or all of its dividends
or bonus by way of issuance of new
Shares;

(1) capitalization of the Legal Reserves and
Capital Reserves arising from the share
premium account or endowment income,
in whole or in part, by issuing new
Shares which shall be distributable as
dividend shares to the then Shareholders
in proportion to the number of Shares
being held by each of them;

(m) subject to the Law, distribution of the
Legal Reserves and Capital Reserves
arising from the share premium account
or endowment income, in whole or in
part, by paying cash to the then
Shareholders in proportion to the number
of Shares being held by each of them;

(n) the transfer of Treasury Shares to its

Pursuant to the
amendment of the
“Sample Template for
XX Co., Ltd. Rules of
Procedure for
shareholders Meeting
(Tai-Jeng-Jili-No
10900094681, dated
June 3, 2020 and
1080024221, dated
January 2, 2021)
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Current Articles (English)
BT p}: > .9 2

Amendments(English)
BriEe-v 2

Explanation
PR

part, by paying cash to the then
Shareholders in proportion to the number
of Shares being held by each of them;

(n) the transfer of Treasury Shares to its
employees by the Company;-ane

(o) the Delisting.
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employees by the Company;

(o) the Delisting.

(p)issuance of employee stock warrants
with the exercise price lower than the
closing price of the company stocks as
of the issuing date; and

(q)issuance of new employee restricted
shares.
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One or more Shareholders holding in the
aggregate of one percent (1%) or more of
the total number of issued Shares
immediately prior to the relevant book close
period may propose in writing or by way of
electronic transmission to the Company a
matter for discussion at an annual general
meeting. The Company shall give a public
notice in such manner as permitted by the
Applicable Listing Rules at such time
deemed appropriate by the Board specifying
the place and a period of not less than ten
(10) days for Members to submit proposals.
Any Shareholder(s) whose proposal has
been submitted and accepted by the Board,

One or more Shareholders holding in the
aggregate of one percent (1%) or more of
the total number of issued Shares
immediately prior to the relevant book close
period may propose in writing or by way of
electronic transmission to the Company a
matter for discussion at an annual general
meeting. The Company shall give a public
notice in such manner as permitted by the
Applicable Listing Rules at such time
deemed appropriate by the Board specifying
the place and a period of not less than ten
(10) days for Members to submit proposals.
Any Shareholder(s) whose proposal has
been submitted and accepted by the Board,

Pursuant to the
amendment of the

“Sample Template for
XX Co., Ltd. Rules of

Procedure for

shareholders Meeting

(Tai-Jeng-Jili-No
10900094681, dated
June 3, 2020
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Current Articles (English)
BT p}: > .9 2

Amendments(English)
BriEe-v 2

Explanation
PR

shall continue to be entitled to attend the
annual general meeting in person or by
proxy or in the case of a corporation, by its
authorised representative(s), and participate
in the discussion of such proposal.

The Board shall accept a proposal submitted
by one or more Shareholders and arrange
for the proposal to be discussed at the
annual general meeting unless (i) the
number of Shares held by such one or more
Shareholders is less than one percent (1%)
in aggregate of the total number of issued
Shares in the Register of Members as of the
record date determined by the Board or
upon commencement of the period for
which the Register shall be closed before
the general meeting; (ii) the proposal
involves matters which cannot be resolved
at the annual general meeting in accordance
with or under the Law or Applicable Listing
Rules; (iii) the proposal submitted concerns
more than one matter; (iv) the proposal
submitted exceeds three hundred words; or
(v) the proposal is not submitted within the
specified period determined by the Board;
provided, however, that if the proposal
submitted is to urge the Company to
facilitate the public interest or perform
social responsibility, the Board may accept
that proposal and arrange for it being
discussed at the annual general meeting.
The Company shall, prior to the dispatch of
a notice of the annual general meeting,
inform the Shareholders the result of
submission of proposals and list in the
notice of annual general meeting the
proposals accepted for consideration and
approval at the annual general meeting. The
Board shall explain at the annual general
meeting the reasons for excluding proposals
submitted by such Shareholder(s).
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shall continue to be entitled to attend the
annual general meeting in person or by
proxy or in the case of a corporation, by its
authorised representative(s), and participate
in the discussion of such proposal.

The Board shall accept a proposal submitted
by one or more Shareholders and arrange
for the proposal to be discussed at the
annual general meeting unless (i) the
number of Shares held by such one or more
Shareholders is less than one percent (1%)
in aggregate of the total number of issued
Shares in the Register of Members as of the
record date determined by the Board or
upon commencement of the period for
which the Register shall be closed before
the general meeting; (ii) the proposal
involves matters which cannot be resolved
at the annual general meeting in accordance
with or under the Law or Applicable Listing
Rules; (iii) the proposal submitted concerns
more than one matter; (iv) the proposal
submitted exceeds three hundred words; or
(v) the proposal is not submitted within the
specified period determined by the Board;
provided, however, that if the proposal
submitted is to urge the Company to
facilitate the public interest or perform
social responsibility, the Board may accept
that proposal and arrange for it being
discussed at the annual general meeting,
which shall still subject to the preceding
(>iii). The Company shall, prior to the
dispatch of a notice of the annual general
meeting, inform the Shareholders the result
of submission of proposals and list in the
notice of annual general meeting the
proposals accepted for consideration and
approval at the annual general meeting. The
Board shall explain at the annual general
meeting the reasons for excluding proposals
submitted by such Shareholder(s).
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Unless otherwise determined by the
Company in general meeting, the number of
Directors shall be no less than five (5)
Directors with a maximum of nine (9)
Directors. Amongst the Board of Directors,
the Company shall have at least four (4)
Independent Directors, and the Independent
Directors shall account for at least one-fifth
(1/5) of the total number of Directors. At
least one (1) of the Independent Directors
must be domiciled in Taiwan. For so long as
the Shares are listed on the Taipei Exchange
or the TSE, the Directors shall include such
number of Independent Directors as
applicable law, rules or regulations or the
Applicable Listing Rules require for a
foreign issuer. The qualification, formation,
appointment, discharge, exercise of
authority and other compliance of Directors
and Independent Directors shall be subject
to and governed by the Applicable Listing
Rules.

Where any Shareholder is a corporate entity,
its representative may be elected as Director
or supervisor (if any). Where there are
several representatives of any corporate
Shareholder, such representatives may be
elected as either Directors or supervisors (if
any) but not as Director and supervisors (if
any) concurrently.

Unless otherwise determined by the
Company in general meeting, the number of
Directors shall be no less than five (5)
Directors with a maximum of nine (9)
Directors. Amongst the Board of Directors,
the Company shall have at least three (3)
Independent Directors, and the Independent
Directors shall account for at least one-fifth
(1/5) of the total number of Directors. At
least one (1) of the Independent Directors
must be domiciled in Taiwan. For so long as
the Shares are listed on the Taipei Exchange
or the TSE, if the chairman of the Board
of Directors and the president or person
of an equivalent post are the same person,
spouses or relatives within the first
degree of Kinship, the Directors shall
include such number of Independent
Directors as applicable law, rules or
regulations or the Applicable Listing Rules
require for a foreign issuer, which shall be
no less than four (4) Independent
Directors prior to December 31, 2023. The
qualification, formation, appointment,
discharge, exercise of authority and other
compliance of Directors and Independent
Directors shall be subject to and governed
by the Applicable Listing Rules.

Where any Shareholder is a corporate entity,
its representative may be elected as Director

j’” L g5 F Akt 222 F%F ¢ 0 3K | orsupervisor (if any). Where there are

T¥E 7 E 'ﬂ“? Lo k% 54 4 0 ¥ |several representatives of any corporate
2&7 FE A E e A ¥ b FE | Shareholder, such representatives may be
BEXWEEA ST A2 —11 > B¢ T |elected as either Directors or supervisors (if
- A Y ERARKF P o ¥ A 2 P |any) but not as Director and supervisors (if
W EE MR Y o @ 9 3 |any) concurrently.
LB A AT AR AL EY LELINES B R M A
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To discretionary the
content is for business
operation needs and
based in Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation
Operation Directions
for Compliance with
the Establishment of
Board of Directors by
TWSE Listed
Companies and the
Board’s Exercise of
Powers.
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Current Articles (English)
BT p}: > .9 2

Amendments(English)
BrigEe-d 2

Explanation
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Notwithstanding anything provided to the
contrary contained in these Articles, the
following matters require approval of
one-half (1/2) or more of all members of the
Audit Committee and final approval of the
Board:

(a) adoption of or amendment to an internal
control system;

(b) assessment of the effectiveness of the
internal control system;

(c) adoption of or amendment to the
handling procedures for financial or
operational actions of material
significance, such as acquisition or
disposal of assets, derivatives trading,
provision or extension of monetary loans
to others, or endorsements or guarantees
for others;

(d) any matter relating to the personal
interest of the Directors;

(e) the entering into of a transaction relating
to material assets or derivatives;

(f) a material monetary loan, endorsement,
or provision of guarantee;

(g) the offering, issuance, or private
placement of the Shares or any
equity-linked securities;

(h) the hiring or dismissal of an attesting
certified public accountant as the auditor
of the Company, or the compensation
given thereto;

(1) the appointment or discharge of a
financial, accounting, or internal auditing
officers;

(j) appreval-of annual and semi-annual
financial reports, and

(k) any other material matter deemed
necessary by the Board of Directors or so
required by Applicable Listing Rules or
the cornpetent authority.

Notwithstanding anything provided to the
contrary contained in these Articles, the
following matters require approval of
one-half (1/2) or more of all members of the
Audit Committee and final approval of the
Board:

(a) adoption of or amendment to an internal
control system;

(b) assessment of the effectiveness of the
internal control system;

(c) adoption of or amendment to the
handling procedures for financial or
operational actions of material
significance, such as acquisition or
disposal of assets, derivatives trading,
provision or extension of monetary loans
to others, or endorsements or guarantees
for others;

(d) any matter relating to the personal
interest of the Directors;

(e) the entering into of a transaction relating
to material assets or derivatives;

(f) a material monetary loan, endorsement,
or provision of guarantee;

(g) the offering, issuance, or private
placement of the Shares or any
equity-linked securities;

(h) the hiring or dismissal of an attesting
certified public accountant as the auditor
of the Company, or the compensation
given thereto;

(1) the appointment or discharge of a
financial, accounting, or internal auditing
officers;

(j) the annual financial reports which are
signed or sealed by the chairman,
managerial officer, and a accounting
officer and second-quarter financial
reports that must be audited and
attested by a CPA; and

o~ 3 ¥ A2EFEF ApF 2R T T 7| |(k) any other material matter deemed
3: IE F& Gl e g g En ’f?g HRES necessary by the Board of Directors or so
ZFR T E_Ef ¥ g required by Applicable Listing Rules or
(@7 B pFRgEFIFIR S the competent authority
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Pursuant to the
amendment of the
“Sample Template for
XX Co., Ltd. Audit
Committee Charter”
(Tai-Jeng-Jili-No
10900094681, dated
June 3, 2020
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[ Attachment 6] Revision Comparison Table for GUIDELINES GOVERNING

ELECTION

Coaster International Co., Ltd.

AN 330 \"J
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Revision Comparison Table for GUIDELINES GOVERNING ELECTION

TR TR A
Article Current Articles (English) Amendments(English) Explanation
iE =% BiFiEe-d 2 BariEe - 2 r2d
1-1 - For so long as the Shares are registered |New provision,
in Emerging Market or listed on the Pursuant to the
Taipei Exchange or TSE, subject to the |amendment of the
Applicable Listing Rules, the Company |“Sample Template for
shall adopt a candidate nomination XX Co., Ltd. Rules of
mechanism for the purpose of the Procedure for
appointment and election of Directors Procedures for
(including the Independent Directors) Election of Directors”
or supervisors (if any) in accordance (Tai-Jeng-Jili-No
with the Applicable Listing Rules and, 10900094681, dated
for the avoidance of doubts, (i) the June 3, 2020)
Directors (excluding the Independent NERTH O E O F
Directors) or supervisors (if any) shall FAEF T9EE L F
only be elected and approved by the PR 1 e S
Shareholders from the list of candidates 10900094681 B
for Directors (excluding the i3 OO”“ 3R
Independent Directors) and supervisors | = @ & ¥ :f T4 5
(if any); and (ii) the Independent % %‘; $a 2E:
Directors shall only be elected and
approved by the Shareholders from the
list of candidates for Independent
Directors.
REDARB P BEEIES SR
EhF st v M E
FEABIIF)RERAGR)LE
Z2 ot TRES T FREI > AN E
JERE L FAREL iE AR LM
# BAREEHR  DEFGFLLBL
FTEIEBRACR)EOBREREFE
Fe2BrEdE)RERA(R)LE
BALEFEE B(Gi) HMEFTFERD
BREBTTEFLHEEALE PEE -
4 Prior to the commencement of an election, | Prior to the commencement of an election, |According with

the chairman shall appoint several ballot
examiners and ballot counters to perform
related duties.
EER 'ﬁr' w0 KE??
FRE

the chairman shall appoint several ballot
examiners and ballot counters with
shareholder status to perform related
duties.

i—E %‘E EF ‘ﬁr' Gl’ [/
L E L
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EFF A HFLE

practical operation
e & B AHE (T T

The ballot shall be null and invalid upon
occurrence of one of the following:
ERELG TAIEEZ - F Ak
1 Ballots which are not in compliance
with these Guidelines.
P ARFERELEEL o
2.Blank ballots which are cast into the

ballot box;

The ballot shall be null and invalid upon
occurrence of one of the following:
%%\t4'r,|]~i:¢7 - X @

1. Ballots which are not in comphance with
these Guidelines.
PHARPRTLEL -

2.Blank ballots which are cast into the
ballot box;

Compliance the
regulation -Listed
companies shall adopt
a candidate
nomination for
director election from
2021, amendment the
relative item and
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Atrticle Current Articles (English) Amendments(Enghsh) Explanation
[E=N PFE>-¢ 2 BriEY-¢ 2 PANELE:]
."Jiéii%‘fif%i}i%%}i%%é—%‘f’ MY 2 \Ef)f,%;\%#x,-nfé'*ﬁ° adjustment
3.Scribbled and unidentifiable writing or | 3.Scribbled and unidentifiable writing or | % i B B R 2 -
writing which has been altered; writing which has been altered; H o p 2021 &
F PR U FRELN G o F PR B2 FRLS S e o AT FER R FT
4.A candidate who is also a Member 4.A candidate whose name is entered in FEE AR LA &S
whose account name and Member the ballot does not confirm to the Mg ITAR R IR 2 2
number are inconsistent with the director candidate list. BTN
information recorded in the Register of MERER A BTEREALESH
Members; where a candidate who is not 273 ¥
a Member, the name and identification 5.0ther word or marks are entered in
number provided are inconsistent upon addition to the number of voting
further verification. rights allotted.
B e e i*/v\ﬁ"*bs%*%ﬁi’*’*,ﬁ?@i
‘-';,‘nﬁa‘ ER N R § ?;‘4 Tﬁ_fﬁ L
A A J""ﬂ LI A —F . 17 AN | Q'FWO or more candidates are included in
(g L R o 5 e F’ 0 a single ballot.
5. ertlng other than the name of the F-ERLHEARERA - AL A
candidate or Member number rek —‘ﬁ °
(identification number) and the number
of votes entitled.
R Lo S p ey g o
o e~ W B2 fie iE B dic
2 4\ 7@7 ,;'E' v _? —ﬁ °
6-The-accountname{(name)or Member
EEE S S S S
-%rfb( i f}\?ﬁ_ s Y E%
7. Two or more candidates are included in
a single ballot.
- ERLEFRERA - AL A
IV J'ﬂi °
10 Ballots shall be counted upon completion

of the voting procedures and the result of
the ballot counting, including the list of
persons-eleeted-as-directors and the total
number of votes for-the-eleeted-directors,
shall be announced by the chairman
immediately. The ballots shall be kept for
at least one year after sealed and signed by
the ballot examiners, provided that in the
case that shareholders file lawsuits in
accordance with the Applicable Listing
Rules, the ballots shall be kept until the
end of the lawsuits.

"JFA iwﬁi%%#’%ﬂ%ﬁ%%@@ 1
g;&i%i FTEEFFELH S FEE
oo EEL D ERRARIEFL
LEFEF LI EE - o R
1B (1)t £ 0 ML R AR
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Ballots shall be counted upon completion
of the voting procedures and the result of
the ballot counting, including the name
list of all directors who were elected and
lost the election and the total number of
votes, shall be announced by the chairman
immediately. The ballots shall be kept for
at least one year after sealed and signed by
the ballot examiners, provided that in the
case that shareholders file lawsuits in
accordance with the Applicable Listing
Rules, the ballots shall be kept until the
end of the lawsuits.
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Pursuant to the
amendment of the
“Sample Template for
XX Co., Ltd. Rules of
Procedure for
shareholders Meeting”
(Tai-Jeng-Jili-No
11000014461, dated
January 28, 2021)
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Atrticle Current Articles (English) Amendments(English) Explanation
% =% MiFiE2 -2 = B iER -2 SPhELE
12 The Board of Directors shall send each For so long as the shares of the For practical

elected Director a notice of appointment.
PEZETFS ASTEFE AT LY
il wd oo

Company are registered in the
Emerging Market or listed on the
GreTai Securities Market or the Taiwan

Stock Exchange, accordance with the
regulations of the competent authority,
Company shall provide the “Directors
and Supervisors of TWSE/TPEx-Listed

and Emerging Market Companies”,
“Declaration of Directors of OO
Company”, “Securities Market
Regulations” and _“Consent to Act as
Director” to elected directors, and
report to competent authority after
such member signature.
HEAFAREERGEEES EE S
FRdodBmim > 2208
BEEFSMAERE " TEFEAE
4w TEEET CTRITEEEST
FRFEEE E2 " REEES  FESE

%?3@%&%ﬁ&@£%&mwaﬂ

operation needs to
amendment the
Company shall
provide document to
elected director
SR ARE T
rRyELwE &
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[ Attachment 7] Revision Comparison Table for PROCEDURAL RULES OF
GENERAL MEETINGS

Coaster International Co., Ltd.

EAR A

Revision Comparison Table for PROCEDURAL RULES OF GENERAL MEETINGS
K T RR A

Article Current Articles (English) Amendments(English) Explanation
i = MiTiE=2-¢ 2 B¢ 2 i 32 d
1-1 Notice of General Meeting & ® € & % |Accordingto Article
i d 3 of “Sample
The following matters and _their | Template for XX Co.,

respective _material contents shall be
specified in the notice of a general
meeting, and shall not be proposed as
ad hoc motions:

(a)election or discharge of Directors or
supervisors (if any);

(b)amendments to the Memorandum of
Association and/or these Articles;

(c)reduction in share capital of the
Company;

(d)application for de-registration as a
public company;

(e)dissolution, share swap (as defined in
the Applicable Listing Rules), Merger
or Spin- off of the Company;

(Dentering into, amendment to, or
termination of any contract for lease
of its business in whole, or for
entrusting business, or for regular
joint operation with others;

(2)the transfer of the whole or any
material part of its business or assets;

(h)the takeover of another's whole
business or assets, which will have a
material effect on the business
operation of the Company;

()the private placement of equity-linked
securities;

(j)granting waiver to the Director’s
engaging in any business within the
scope of business of the Company;

(K)distribution of part or all of its
dividends or bonus by way of issuance

of new Shares;

(Dcapitalization of the Legal Reserves
and Capital Reserves arising from the
share premium account or endowment

income, in whole or in part, by issuing
new Shares which shall be

distributable as dividend shares to the
then Shareholders in proportion to the

number of Shares being held by each
of them;
(m)subject to the Law, distribution of the

Legal Reserves and Capital Reserves

Ltd. Rules of
Procedure for
shareholders Meeting”
to addition content
AERTH 0 e L

#EE AT o0
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Article
e =%

Current Articles (English)
PFE>-¢ 2

Amendments(English)

13‘]_['4’?—:‘ <

Explanation
g 12

arising from the share premium
account or endowment income, in
whole or in part, by paying cash to the
then Shareholders in proportion to the
number of Shares being held by each
of them;

(n)the transfer of Treasury Shares to its
employees by the Company:;

(0)the Delisting;

(plissuance of emplovee stock warrants
with the exercise price lower than the
closing price of the company stocks as
of the issuing date; and

(q)issuance of new emplovee restricted
shares.
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QFESBEITFSERAGH)

OBREESEE/SEFR

©OBFE

()% Fefe ok SR AT

(QEINGES -5 & &%ﬁ&%ﬁ¢ﬁﬁ
EARE) BHELE

OFE-RF S &R 4a 507 23

L HEP

R Ay A

zHY;
®§§§@ﬁéﬁﬁ&ﬁ£%%%%¥
(Qi%%kéﬁ%ﬁiﬁiﬁ% Ol 4

DRESTERELRT2ZHEES

DEFHEFREZLITARZHT

R ABATHEN R BBEER a2 S
W — 4

Wit BerHEFEITREZER S
ZAR R TR F2HHE
%»%%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁmm%%
5B

(m)iR 3 2 ﬂ&%i,%%&E%Aﬁ&
F AT E BRI S AR BATIT
2ELAH2 WS L WFEKRA
2R BERGHLOREREE ;

MFLrEAREFRBETET ;
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BEZREIRBHEESRE S LA

(QVETRA A T HAIRTH -

Attendance and Sign-in ! &2 &

The Company shall include the
information about the time slot when
shareholders may report to the meeting,
the reporting location, and other important

messages in the notice of general
meetings.
ADFRTE U A P T R

PIPER ~ Tl B 2 BB L
TE o
The time slot when shareholders may

P

Attendance and Sign-in 1R 22 % %

The Company shall include the
information about the time slot when
shareholders may report to the meeting,
the reporting location, and other important
messages in the notice of general
meetings.

AP ER g rd PR
TPIPFR ~ T s B 2 B A §
TE o

The time slot when shareholders may

i 3
¥

Amendment For
practical operation
needs and regulations
of the competent
auﬂhority
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Article
e =%

Current Articles (English)
PFE>-¢ 2

Amendments(Enghsh)

lj’ l'+ <> _d 2

Explanation
g 12

report to the meeting in the preceding
paragraph shall begin no later than thirty
minutes before the meeting. The reporting
location shall be clearly identified and
there should an adequate number of staff
assigned for the matter.

WXL FIET LR ERE
iy et i 7 5l A} PR
om0 TR KA E AR PR
Shareholders or their appointed proxies
(the "Shareholders") shall attend a
Shareholders' meeting by presenting an
attendance ID, sign-in card or other
attendance identification. The Company
shall not request any additional attendance
identification randomly. A proxy solicitor
shall bring his/her ID for verification.
Ll A A S T E e (VIR &(u—r
RS SIS,
His W REE A% ig
LR RZED 2 2 Z
B R EED e B
7,{4"{‘1\/\1")’1:%5}%%’, F//\ F]’J?
ks

The Company shall provide a sign-in book
allowing attending Shareholders or their
appointed proxies to sign in or require
attending  Shareholders to  submit
attendance cards in lieu of signing in.

A \ﬂffpjr};g r,a’ ,ir.»h}ﬁwg\jxaﬁ i
ke RIm A 3o d DR d
BRI EFFURER o

The Company shall deliver the meeting
agenda, annual report, attendance ID,
summary of speech form, voting ballot
and other meeting information to
Shareholders who attend a Shareholder's
meeting. In case of election of
director(s) and/or supervisor(s), the
election ballot shall also be provided
AP EREIL EF DR %_‘
FEESAALEZ2HE g’iﬁ;’%'
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Unless otherwise regulated in the

Applicable Listing Rules or the Law,

corporate Shareholders' attendance of a

general meeting shall be in accordance

with the Articles
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report to the meeting in the preceding
paragraph shall begin no later than thirty
minutes before the meeting. The reporting
location shall be clearly identified and
there should an adequate number of staff
assigned for the matter.
EEE TS HIL Ry S Y
S IR AY R =L IESNE -S| VoY) o L 7
e o TR RS IEA R PET2 o
Shareholders or their appointed proxies
(the "Shareholders") shall attend a
Shareholders' meeting by presenting an
attendance 1D, sign-in card or other
attendance identification. The Company
shall not request any additional attendance
identification randomly. A proxy solicitor
shall bring his/her ID for verification.
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TR 2 Bk ie
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The Company shall provide a sign-in book
allowing attending Shareholders or their
appointed proxies to sign in or require
attending  Shareholders to  submit
attendance cards in lieu of signing in.
AP R E c«ﬁ' (S “"fﬁ“”@iﬂﬂs i
AT d ez (NI A BT o d IR
RS

The Company shall deliver the meeting
agenda, annual report, attendance ID,
summary of speech form, voting ballot
and other meeting information to
Shareholders who attend a Shareholder's
meeting. In case of election of
director(s) and/or supervisor(s), the
election ballot shall also be provided.
AP EREEL B NRE
FTEAARE PN EHRTHE 2 A
MR EKE LN ERTE £
BAE T HEEER -

A corporate shareholder may be
represented by more than one
representative at a general meeting.
When a corporate shareholder is
appointed to attend as proxy, it may
designate only one person to represent
it in the meeting. Unless otherwise
regulated in the Applicable Listing Rules
or the Law, corporate Shareholders'
attendance of a general meeting shall be in
accordance with the Articles.
EADRIEAE ZAEAT R —A o
EAZFEHRBR GRS > #1845 R—A
pAUR e EH(R)EAS SR ETH A

=

43




Article
e =%

Current Articles (English)
PFE>-¢ 2

Amendments(English)

lj’J_l'+? v

Explanation
g 12

Ot EABRBERGTA B T A F
B2 R E_o

Where re-election of all directors as
well as their inauguration date is stated
in _the notice of the reasons for
convening the Shareholders meeting,
after the completion of the re-election in
said meeting such inauguration date
may not be altered by any
extraordinary _motion or otherwise in

the same meeting.
BREZEFHOFPALRAETE -
ﬁﬁ%%&mm SRERGHERS
%o BREBFEEUGERSHRSES
FABELHRIEAM -

Convention of A Meeting ¢ % 7- ¥
The chairman shall call the general meeting
to order at the time scheduled for the
general meeting If the number of Shares
represented by the attending Shareholders
has not yet constituted the quorum (more
than an aggregate of one-half (1/2) of all
Shares in issue present in person or by
proxy and entitled to vote) at the time
scheduled for the general meeting, the
chairman may postpone the time for the
meeting. The postponements shall be
limited to two times at most, and the
general meeting shall not be postponed for
more than one hour in total. If after two
postponements the number of Shares
represented by the attending Shareholders
has constituted more than one-third (1/3) of
all Shares in issue present in person or by
proxy and entitled to vote, a tentative
resolution may be passed in accordance
with the Applicable Listing Rules. Before
the end of such a meeting, if the number of
Shares represented by the attending
Shareholders has already constituted more
than an aggregate of one-half (1/2) of all
Shares in issue, the chairman may put the
tentative resolution(s) already passed to the
Shareholders' resolution again in
accordance with the Applicable Listing
Rules.
e at.F“gH*F’“’ a f?ﬂ@;“"”"ﬁmg VA
E (T A B AR REK
L2 G & /J—%E” AAp v E e

Convention of A Meeting ER P

The chairman shall call the general
meeting to order at the time scheduled for
the general meeting_and announce the
number of non-voting rights and the
number of shares present. If the number
of Shares represented by the attending
Shareholders has not yet constituted the
quorum (more than an aggregate of
one-half (1/2) of all Shares in issue present
in person or by proxy and entitled to vote)
at the time scheduled for the general
meeting, the chairman may postpone the
time for the meeting. The postponements
shall be limited to two times at most, and
the general meeting shall not be postponed
for more than one hour in total. If after
two postponements the number of Shares
represented by the attending Shareholders
has constituted more than one-third (1/3)
of all Shares in issue present in person or
by proxy and entitled to vote, a tentative
resolution may be passed in accordance
with the Applicable Listing Rules.
Before the end of such a meeting, if the
number of Shares represented by the
attending  Shareholders has already
constituted more than an aggregate of
one-half (1/2) of all Shares in issue, the

chairman may put the tentative
resolution(s) already passed to the
Shareholders'  resolution  again  in

accordance with the Applicable Listing
Rules.
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Atrticle Current Articles (English) Amendments(English) Explanation
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Unless otherwise provided for under the
Applicable Listing Rules or the Articles, a
proposal put to a vote shall be approved
by consent of a majority of Shareholders
present at the meeting attended.
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In case of an amendment proposal or
substitute proposal to an original proposal,
the chairman shall decide on the order of
vote together with the original proposal.
However, if one of the proposals has been
approved, the others shall be deemed
overruled and no further vote is required.
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Where directors and/or supervisors are
elected at a Shareholders' meeting, the
election shall be conducted in accordance
with the applicable election rules
established by the Company and the
election results, including the list of
eleeted directors and/or supervisors and
numbers of shares-veted-forthe-eleetion-

of directors-and/orsupervisers, shall be
announced at the same meeting.
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Voting ballots cast in the election of
director(s) shall be signed and sealed by
scrutinizer and properly kept for at least
one (1) years; provided, however, that in
case of a litigation instituted by
Shareholder, these ballots shall then be
kept until conclusion of the litigation.
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Unless otherwise provided for under the
Applicable Listing Rules or the Articles, a
proposal put to a vote shall be approved
by consent of a majority of Shareholders
present at the meeting attended.
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In case of an amendment proposal or
substitute proposal to an original proposal,
the chairman shall decide on the order of
vote together with the original proposal.
However, if one of the proposals has been
approved, the others shall be deemed
overruled and no further vote is required.
FP-REF B RSFRERFd AR
P hied 22 08h ¥ - %
B ER o BB RETARG F A A
BE A
Where directors and/or supervisors are
elected at a Shareholders' meeting, the
election shall be conducted in accordance
with the applicable election rules
established by the Company and the
election results, including the name list of
all directors and/or supervisors who were
elected and lost the election and number
of their votes shall be announced at the
same meeting.
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Voting ballots cast in the election of
director(s) shall be signed and sealed by
scrutinizer and properly kept for at least
one (1) years; provided, however, that in
case of a litigation instituted by
Shareholder, these ballots shall then be
kept until conclusion of the litigation.
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[ Attachment 9] Current Position of the Candidate

Candidate for

Name

Conurrent Position

Independent Director

Hui Erh, Yuan

1. Supervisor of Dharma Drum Mountain Buddhist Foundation
2. Director of Sheng Yen Education Foundation

3. Independent Director of Yuanta Futures Co., Ltd.

Independent Director

Jong Rong, Chen

1.Jointed Professor, GraduatedInstitute of the Industrial Economics, National
Central University, Taiwan

2. Director, Taiwan Cooperative Financial Holding Co., Ltd.

Independent Director

Lung Zin, Chi

Jointed Professor, Department of Radio, Television & File, Shin-Hsin

University

1. Chief Finance Officer of COA, Inc.

Director Alexander Pan 2. Member, American Institute of Certifies Publci Accountants
3..Member, CALIFORNIA BOARD OF ACCOUNTANCY
1.Director, Alcor Micro Technology Corp

Director Rong Zing, Liu

2..Director of COA Asia, Inc.
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(Appendix 1) Article of Incorporation <Before Amendment>

THE COMPANIES LAW (AS AMENDED)
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

AMENDED AND RESTATED
MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF
COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.

BERNERAH
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THE COMPANIES LAW (AS AMENDED)
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
AMENDED AND RESTATED MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION
OF

COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.
ERERLARAE

(Adopted by Special Resolution passed on June 23, 2020)

The name of the Company is Coaster International Co., Ltd. & E i s {5 A FE /A 5 (the
"Company").

The registered office of the Company will be situated at the offices of Intertrust Corporate
Services (Cayman) Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005,

Cayman Islands or at such other location as the Directors may from time to time determine.

The objects for which the Company is established are unrestricted.

The Company have full power and authority to carry out any object not prohibited by any law
as provided by Section 7(4) of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (as amended)
(the "Law").

The Company shall have and be capable of exercising all the functions of a natural person
of full capacity irrespective of any question of corporate benefit as provided by Section 27(2)
of the Law.

The Company will not trade in the Cayman Islands with any person, firm or corporation
except in furtherance of the business of the Company carried on outside the Cayman
Islands; provided that nothing in this section shall be construed as to prevent the Company
effecting and concluding contracts in the Cayman Islands, and exercising in the Cayman
Islands all of its powers necessary for the carrying on of its business outside the Cayman
Islands.

The liability of the Shareholders of the Company is limited to the amount, if any, unpaid on
the share respectively held by them.

The capital of the Company is NT$ 2,000,000,000.00 divided into 200,000,000 Common
Shares of a nominal or par value of NT$ 10 each provided always that subject to the Law
and the Articles of Association the Company shall have power to redeem or purchase any of
its shares and to sub-divide or consolidate the said shares or any of them and to issue all or
any part of its capital whether original, redeemed, increased or reduced with or without any
preference, priority, special privilege or other rights or subject to any postponement of rights
or to any conditions or restrictions whatsoever and so that unless the conditions of issue
shall otherwise expressly provide every issue of shares whether stated to be ordinary,
preference or otherwise shall be subject to the powers on the part of the Company
hereinbefore provided.

The Company may exercise the power contained in Section 206 of the Law to deregister in
the Cayman Islands and be registered by way of continuation in some otherjurisdiction.
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THE COMPANIES LAW (AS AMENDED)
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES
AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION
OF

COASTER INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.
FRERIARAE

(Adopted by Special Resolution passed on June 23, 2020)

TABLE A

The Regulations contained or incorporated in Table 'A’ in the First Schedule of the Law shall not apply to Coaster
International Co., Ltd. & EZRH AR/ E](the "Company") and the following Articles shall comprise the Articles
of Association of the Company.

INTERPRETATION

1. In these Articles the following defined terms will have the meanings ascribed to them, if not inconsistent
with the subject or context:

"Acquisition" refers to an act wherein a company acquiring shares, business or assets of another
company in exchange for shares, cash or other assets;

"Affiliated Company" means with respect to any affiliated company as defined in the Applicable Listing
Rules;

"Applicable Listing Rules" means the relevant laws, regulations, rules and code as amended, from time
to time, applicable as a result of the original and continued trading or listing of any Shares on any Taiwan
stock exchange or securities market, including, without limitation the relevant provisions of Taiwan
Company Act, Securities and Exchange Act, the Acts Governing Relations Between Peoples of the
Taiwan Area and the Mainland Area, or any similar statute and the rules and regulations of the Taiwan
authorities thereunder, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the Financial Supervisory
Commission, the Taipei Exchange or the Taiwan Stock Exchange;

"Articles" means these articles of association of the Company, as amended or substituted from time to
time;

"Audit Committee” means the audit committee of the Company formed by the Board pursuant to Article
118 hereof, or any successor auditcommittee;

“‘Book-Entry Transfer” means a method whereby the issue, transfer or delivery of Shares is effected
electronically by debit and credit to accounts opened with securities firms by Shareholders, without
delivering physical share certificates. If the Shareholder has not opened an account with a securities firm,
the Shares delivered by Book-Entry Transfer shall be recorded in the entry sub-account under the
Company’s account with the securities central depositary in Taiwan;

“Capital Reserves” means the share premium account, income from endowments received by the
Company, capital redemption reserve, profit and loss account and other reserves generated in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

“Chairman” has the meaning given thereto in Article 82;

"Class" or "Classes" means any class or classes of Shares as may from time to time be issued by the
Company;

"Commission" means Financial Supervisory Commission of Taiwan or any other authority for the time
being administering the Securities and Exchange Act of Taiwan;

"Common Share" means a common share in the capital of the Company of NT$ 10 nominal or par value
issued subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Law and these Articles, and having the
rights and being subject to restrictions as provided for under these Articles with respect to such Share;
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"Constituent Company" means an existing company that is participating in a Merger with one (1) or
more other existing companies within the meaning of the Law;

"Directors" and "Board of Directors" and "Board" means the directors of the Company for the time
being, or as the case may be, the directors assembled as a board or as a committee thereof;

"Delisting™ means (a) the delisting of the Shares registered or listed on any Taiwan stock exchange or
securities market as a result of a Merger in which the Company will dissolve, general assumption (as
defined in the Applicable Listing Rules), share swap (as defined in the Applicable Listing Rules) or
Spin-off; and (b) the shares of the surviving company in the Merger, the transferee company in the
general assumption or the existing company or newly-incorporated company in the share swap or
Spin-off will not be registered or listed on any Taiwan stock exchange or securities market;

"electronic" shall have the meaning given to it in the Electronic Transactions Law (as amended) of the
Cayman Islands and any amendment thereto or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force and
includes every other law incorporated therewith or substituted therefore;

"electronic communication" means transmission to any number, address or internet website or other
electronic delivery methods as otherwise decided and approved by not less than two- thirds (2/3) of the
vote of the Board;

"Emerging Market" means the emerging market board of Taipei Exchange in Taiwan;

“Family Relationship within Second Degree of Kinship” in respect of a natural person, means another
natural person who is related to the first person either by blood or by marriage of a member of the family
and within the second degree to include but not limited to the parents, siblings, grandparents, children
and grandchildren of the first person as well as the first person's spouse’s parents, siblings and
grandparents;

“Guidelines Governing Election of Directors” means guidelines governing election of Directors of the
Company, as amended or substituted from time to time as prescribed in the Applicable Listing Rules;

"Indemnified Person" has the meaning given thereto in Article 152;

"Independent Director" means a director who is an independent director as defined in the Applicable
Listing Rules;

"Law" means the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (as amended);
“‘Legal Reserves” the legal reserve allocated in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules;

"Memorandum of Association" means the memorandum of association of the Company, as amended
or substituted from time to time;

"Merger" means the merging of two (2) or more Constituent Companies and the vesting of their
undertaking, property and liabilities in one (1) of such companies as the Surviving Company within the
meaning of the Law;

"MOEA" means Ministry of Economic Affairs of Taiwan being administering the Company Act of Taiwan
and relevant corporate matters in Taiwan;

"Office" means the registered office of the Company as required by the Law;

"Ordinary Resolution" means a resolution passed by a simple majority of such Shareholders as, being
entitled to do so, vote in person or, where proxies are allowed, by proxy at a general meeting of the
Company and where a poll is taken regard shall be had in computing a majority to the number of votes to
which each Shareholder is entitled;

"paid up" means paid up as to the par value and any premium payable in respect of the issue of any
Shares and includes credited as paid up;

"Person" means any natural person, firm, company, joint venture, partnership, corporation, association or
other entity (whether or not having a separate legal personality) or any of them as the context so requires;

“preferred Shares” has the meaning given thereto in Article 10;

“Procedural Rules of Board Meetings” means procedural rules of the Board meetings of the Company,
as amended or substituted from time to time as prescribed in the Applicable Listing Rules;

“‘Procedural Rules of General Meetings” means procedural rules of the general meetings of the
Company, as amended or substituted from time to time as prescribed in the Applicable Listing Rules;

"Register" or “Register of Members” means the register of Members of the Company required to be
kept pursuant to the Law;

"Republic of China" or "Taiwan" means the Republic of China, its territories, its possessions and all
areas subject to its jurisdiction;

“‘Retained Earnings” means the sums including but not limited to the Legal Reserves, Special Reserves,
and unappropriated earnings;
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‘Rules of Audit Committee” means rules of Audit Committee of the Company, as amended or
substituted from time to time as prescribed in the Applicable Listing Rules;

"Seal" means the common seal of the Company (if adopted) including any facsimile thereof;

"Secretary" means any Person appointed by the Directors to perform any of the duties of the secretary of
the Company;

"Share" means a share in the capital of the Company. All references to "Shares" herein shall be deemed
to be Shares of any or all Classes as the context may require. For the avoidance of doubt in these Articles
the expression "Share" shall include a fraction of a Share;

"Shareholder" or "Member" means a Person who is registered as the holder of Shares in the Register;

"Share Premium Account" means the share premium account established in accordance with these
Articles and the Law;

"Shareholders’ Service Agent" means the agent licensed by Taiwan authorities to provide certain
shareholders services in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules to the Company;

"signed" means bearing a signature or representation of a signature affixed by mechanical means or an
electronic symbol or process attached to or logically associated with an electronic communication and
executed or adopted by a person with the intent to sign the electronic communication;

"Special Reserves" means the reserve allocated from Retained Earnings in accordance with the
Applicable Listing Rules, or resolutions of shareholders meetings;

"Special Resolution"” means a special resolution of the Company passed in accordance with the Law,
being a resolution passed by a majority of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of such. Shareholders as, being
entitled to do so, vote in person or, where proxies are allowed, by proxy at a general meeting of the
Company of which notice specifying the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution has
been duly given and where a poll is taken regard shall be had in computing a majority to the number of
votes to which each Shareholder is entitled;

"Spin-off' refers to an act wherein a transferor company transfers all of its independently operated
business or any single independently operated business to an existing or a newly incorporated company
as consideration for that existing transferee company or newly incorporated transferee company to issue
new shares to the transferor company or to shareholders of the transferor company;

"Supermajority Special Resolution” means a Special Resolution approved by the Shareholders
holding at least two-thirds (2/3) of the Shares in issue at the time of the general meeting;

"Supermajority Resolution Type A" means a resolution passed by Shareholders, as being entitled to do
so, vote in person or, where proxies are allowed, by proxy at a general meeting, such Shareholders
holding not less than half of the Shares held by all Shareholders attending that meeting, and such
meeting attended by Shareholders holding not less than two-thirds (2/3) of all issued Shares of the
Company;

"Supermajority Resolution Type B" means where the Shareholders attending the general meeting are
holding less than two-thirds (2/3) of all issued Shares of the Company entitled to vote thereon as required
under the Supermajority Resolution Type A, a resolution passed by Shareholders, as being entitled to do
so, vote in person or, where proxies are allowed, by proxy at a general meeting, such Shareholders
holding not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the Shares held by all Shareholders attending that meeting, and
such meeting attended by Shareholders holding not less than half of all issued Shares of the Company;

"Surviving Company" means the sole remaining Constituent Company into which one (1) or more other
Constituent Companies are merged within the meaning of the Law;

"Taipei Exchange" means the Taipei Exchange in Taiwan;

"Treasury Shares" means Shares that were previously issued but were purchased, redeemed or
otherwise acquired by the Company and not cancelled, in accordance with these Atrticles, the Law and
the Applicable Listing Rules; and

“TSE” means the Taiwan Stock Exchange.
In these Articles, save where the context requires otherwise:
(a) words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and vice versa;

(b) words importing the masculine gender only shall include the feminine gender and any Person as the
context may require;

(c) the word "may" shall be construed as permissive and the word "shall" shall be construed as
imperative;

(d) reference to a statutory enactment shall include reference to any amendment or re- enactment
thereof for the time being in force;
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10.

1.

12.

12A.

(e) reference to any determination by the Directors shall be construed as a determination by the
Directors in their absolute discretion and shall be applicable either generally or in any particular case;
and

reference to "in writing" shall be construed as written or represented by any means reproducible in
writing, including any form of print, lithograph, email, facsimile, photograph or telex or represented by any
other substitute or format for storage or transmission for writing or partly one (1) and partly another.

Subject to the last two preceding Articles, any words defined in the Law shall, if not inconsistent with the
subject or context, bear the same meaning in theseArticles.
PRELIMINARY

The business of the Company may be commenced at any time afterincorporation.

The Office shall be at such address in the Cayman Islands as the Directors may from time to time
determine. The Company may in addition establish and maintain such other offices and places of
business and agencies in such places as the Directors may from time to time determine.

The preliminary expenses incurred in the formation of the Company and in connection with the issue of
Shares shall be paid by the Company. Such expenses may be amortised over such period as the
Directors may determine and the amount so paid shall be charged against income and/or capital in the
accounts of the Company as the Directors shalldetermine.

The Board of Directors shall keep, or cause to be kept, the Register which may be kept in or outside the
Cayman Islands at such place as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine and, in the
absence of any such determination, the Register shall be kept at the Office.

SHARES

Subject to these Articles, all Shares for the time being unissued shall be under the control of the Directors
who may:

(a) issue, allot and dispose of the same to such Persons, in such manner, on such terms and having such
rights and being subject to such restrictions as they may from time to time determine; and

(b) grant options with respect to such Shares and issue warrants or similar instruments with respect
thereto;

and, for such purposes, the Directors may reserve an appropriate number of Shares for the time being
unissued.

The Directors may authorise the division of Shares into any number of Classes and the different Classes
shall be authorised, established and designated (or re-designated as the case may be) and the variations
in the relative rights (including, without limitation, voting, dividend and redemption rights), restrictions,
preferences, privileges and payment obligations as between the different Classes (if any) shall be fixed
and determined by the Directors

The Company may issue Shares with rights which are preferential to those of ordinary Shares issued by
the Company (“preferred Shares”) with the approval of a majority of the Directors present at a meeting
attended by two-thirds (2/3) or more of the total number of the Directors and with the approval of a
Special Resolution. Prior to the issuance of any preferred Shares approved pursuant to this Article 10,
these Articles shall be amended to set forth the rights and obligations of the preferred Shares, including
but not limited to the following terms, and the same shall apply to any variation of rights of preferred
Shares:

(a) number of preferred Shares issued by the Company and the number of preferred Shares the
Company is authorized to issue;

(b) order, fixed amount or fixed ratio of allocation of dividends and bonus on preferred Shares;
(c) order, fixed amount or fixed ratio of allocation of surplus assets of the Company;

(d) order of or restriction on the voting right(s) (including declaring no voting rights whatsoever) of
preferred Shareholders;

(e) other matters concerning rights and obligations incidental to preferred Shares; and

(f) the method by which the Company is authorized or compelled to redeem the preferred Shares, or a
statement that redemption rights shall not apply.

Subject to these Articles and the Applicable Listing Rules, the issue of new Shares of the Company shall
be approved by a majority of the Directors present at a meeting attended by two-thirds (2/3) or more of
the total number of the Directors. The issue of new Shares shall at all times be subject to the sufficiency
of the authorised capital of the Company.

Subject to Article 12A, the Company shall not issue any unpaid Shares or partly paid-up Shares. The
Company shall not issue shares in bearer form.

If a subscriber fails to pay any call or instalment of call with respect of any Shares on the day fixed for
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payment, the Directors may, at any time thereafter during such time as any part of such call or instalment
remains unpaid, serve a notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call or instalment as is unpaid,
together with any interest which may have accrued, within a period of not less than 1 month from the date
of the notice given by the Directors. The notice shall name a further day (not earlier than the expiration of
aforesaid one month or longer period from the date of the notice) on or before which the payment
required by the notice is to be made, and shall state that in the event of non-payment at or before the time
fixed the Shares in respect of which the call was made will be liable to be forfeited. If the requirements of
any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any Share in respect of which the notice has been
given may at any time thereafter, before the payment required by notice has been made, be forfeited by a
determination of the Directors to that effect. A forfeited Share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on
such terms and in such manner as the Directors think fit, and at any time before a sale or disposition the
forfeiture may be cancelled on such terms as the Directors think fit. A Person whose Shares have been
forfeited shall cease to be a Shareholder in respect of the forfeited Shares, but shall, notwithstanding,
remain liable to pay to the Company all moneys which at the date of forfeiture were payable by him to the
Company in respect of the Shares forfeited, but his liability shall cease if and when the Company receives
payment in full of the amount unpaid on the Shares forfeited. The provisions of these Articles as to
forfeiture shall apply in the case of non-payment of any sum which by the terms of issue of a Share
becomes due and payable, whether on account of the amount of the Share, or by way of premium, as if
the same had been payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified. Under the aforesaid circumstances,
compensation for loss or damage, if any, may still be claimed against such defaulting Shareholder.

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
upon each issuance of new Shares, the Directors may reserve not more than fifteen percent (15%) of the
new shares for subscription by the employees of the Company and/or any Subsidiaries of the Company
who are determined by the Board in its reasonable discretion. The term "Subsidiaries" above refers to the
companies defined under No. 10 and No. 11 of the IFRS (i.e., International Financial Reporting
Standards) and No. 28 of the IAS (i.e., International Accounting Standards).

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
unless otherwise provided herein, in the Applicable Listing Rules or resolved by the Shareholders in
general meeting by Ordinary Resolution, if at anytime the Board resolves to issue any new Shares, the
Company shall, after reserving the portion of Shares for subscription by its employees and for public
offering in Taiwan pursuant to  Article 13 (if any) and Article 16 respectively, first offer such remaining
new Shares by public announcement and a written notice to each then Shareholder for their subscriptions
in proportion to the number of Shares held by them respectively. The public announcement and written
notice shall state that if any Shareholder fails to subscribe for new Shares, his right shall be forfeited.
Where a fractional percentage of the original Shares being held by a Shareholder is insufficient to
subscribe for one new Share, the fractional percentages of the original Shares being held by several
Shareholders may be combined for joint subscription of one (1) or more integral new Shares or for
subscription of new Shares in the name of a single Shareholder. New Shares left unsubscribed by original
Shareholders may be open for public offering or for subscription by specific person or persons through
negotiation.

The Shareholders’ pre-emptive right prescribed under Article 14 shall not apply in the event that new
Shares are issued due to the following reasons or for the following purpose:

(a) in connection with a Merger with another company, or the Spin-off of the Company, or pursuant to any
reorganization of the Company;

(b) in connection with meeting the Company’s obligation under Share subscription warrants and/or
options;

(c) in connection with meeting the Company’s obligation under corporate bonds which are convertible
bonds or vested with rights to acquire Shares; or

(d) in connection with meeting the Company’s obligation under preferred Shares vested with rights to
acquire Shares.

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market, unless otherwise provided in the
Applicable Listing Rules, where the Company increases its capital by issuing new Shares in Taiwan, the
Company may allocate ten percent (10%) of the total amount of the new Shares to be issued, for offering
in Taiwan to the public unless it is not deemed necessary or appropriate by the Commission, according
to the Applicable Listing Rules, for the Company to conduct the aforementioned public offering. For so
long as the Shares are listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE, unless otherwise provided in the Applicable
Listing Rules, where the Company increases its capital by issuing new Shares in Taiwan, the Company
shall allocate ten percent (10%) of the total amount of the new Shares to be issued, for offering in Taiwan
to the public unless it is not deemed necessary or appropriate by the Commission, according to the
Applicable Listing Rules, for the Company to conduct the aforementioned public offering. Provided
however, if a percentage higher than the aforementioned ten percent (10%) is resolved by an Ordinary
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Resolution to be offered, the percentage determined by such resolution shall prevail. For so long as the
Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE, unless otherwise
provided in the Applicable Listing Rules, the Company shall obtain a prior approval of the Commission
and/or other competent authorities for any capital increase (ie., issue of new Shares) (whether inside
Taiwan or outside Taiwan) in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules.

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the Company may, upon resolution by a majority votes at a
meeting of the Board of Directors attended by two-thirds (2/3) or more of the Directors, adopt one (1) or
more employee incentive programmes (such as employee stock option plan) pursuant to which options,
warrants, or other similar instruments to acquire Shares may be granted to employees of the Company
and/or any Subsidiaries of the Company to subscribe for Shares. The options, warrants, or other similar
instruments to acquire Shares granted to any employee under any employee stock option plan shall be
non- transferable, except to the heirs of the employees. The term "Subsidiaries" above refers to the
companies defined under No. 10 and No. 11 of the IFRS (i.e., International Financial Reporting
Standards) and No. 28 of the IAS (i.e., International Accounting Standards).

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the Directors shall reserve up to 20,000,000 unissued Shares for
the purposes of any employees stock option plan(s) adopted pursuant to this Article 17.

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
the Company may, with the authority of either a Supermajority Resolution Type A or a Supermajority
Resolution Type B, issue restricted shares for employees. In respect of the issuance of restricted shares
for employees in the preceding paragraph, the number of shares to be issued, issue price, issue
conditions and other matters shall be subject to the Applicable Listing Rules and the requirements of the
Commission.

PRIVATE PLACEMENT

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the Company may by a resolution passed by at least two-thirds
(2/3) of votes cast by Shareholders present at the general meeting with a quorum of more than half of the
total number of the issued Shares at the general meeting carry out private placement of its securities to
the following entities in Taiwan:

(a) banking enterprises, bill enterprises, trust enterprises, insurance enterprises, securities enterprises or
any other legal entities or institutions approved by the Commission;

(b) individuals, legal entities or funds meeting the qualifications established by the Commission; and
(c) Directors, supervisors (if any) and managers of the Company or the Affiliated Companies.

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, a private placement of ordinary corporate bonds may be carried
out in instalments within one (1) year of the date of the relevant resolution of the Board of Directors
approving such private placement.

MODIFICATION OF RIGHTS

Whenever the capital of the Company is divided into different Classes (such as the Common Shares and
the preferred Shares), the rights attached to any such Class may (unless otherwise provided by the terms
of issue of the Shares of that Class) only be materially adversely varied or abrogated (including but not
limited to the circumstances where there is any amendment to these Articles which may be prejudicial to
the rights of the holders of any preferred Shares) by: (i) a Special Resolution passed at a general meeting
of holders of Common Shares; and (ii) a Special Resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders
of Shares of the relevant Class (such as the preferred Shares).

To every such separate meeting all the provisions of these Articles relating to general meetings of the
Company or to the proceedings thereat shall, mutatis mutandis, apply, except that the necessary quorum
shall be one (1) or more Persons at least holding or representing by proxy one-half (1/2) of the issued
Shares of the relevant Class (but so that if at any adjourned meeting of such holders a quorum as above
defined is not present, those Shareholders who are present shall form a quorum) and that, subject to the
terms of issue of the Shares of that Class, every Shareholder of the Class shall on a poll have one (1)
vote for each Share of the Class held by him.

The rights conferred upon the holders of the Shares of any Class issued with preferred or other rights
shall not, unless otherwise expressly provided by the terms of issue of the Shares of that Class, be
deemed to be materially adversely varied or abrogated by, inter alia, the creation, allotment or issue of
further Shares ranking pari passu with or subsequent to them or the redemption or purchase of Shares of
any Class by the Company.

CERTIFICATES

The Company shall deliver Shares to the subscribers of new Shares by Book-Entry Transfer within thirty
(30) days from the date the Shares may be issued pursuant to the Applicable Listing Rules and make
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public announcement prior to the delivery. So long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market

or listed in the Taipei Exchange or TSE, the Company may issue the Shares in scriptless form provided

that the Company shall register with the securities central depositary in Taiwan. No Person shall be

entitled to a certificate for any or all of his/her Shares, unless the Directors shall determine otherwise.
FRACTIONAL SHARES

Subject to these Articles, the Directors may issue fractions of a Share and, if so issued, a fraction of a

Share shall be subject to and carry the corresponding fraction of liabilities (whether with respect to

nominal or par value, premium, contributions, calls or otherwise), limitations, preferences, privileges,

qualifications, restrictions, rights (including, without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, voting and

participation rights) and other attributes of a whole Share. If more than one (1) fraction of a Share of the

same Class is issued to or acquired by the same Shareholder such fractions shall be accumulated.
TRANSFER OF SHARES

Title to Shares which are registered in the Emerging Market or listed in the Taipei Exchange or the TSE
may be evidenced and transferred in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules. Subject to the
Applicable Listing Rules, the Law and Article 40E, Shares issued by the Company shall be freely
transferable, provided that any Shares reserved for issuance to the employees of the Company may be
subject to transfer restrictions for a period of not more than two (2) years as the Directors may agree with
such employees.

Subject to the Law and notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these Articles, Shares that are listed or
admitted to trading on an approved stock exchange (as defined in the Law, including the Taipei Exchange
and the TSE), may be evidenced and transferred in accordance with the rules and regulations of such
exchange.

The instrument of transfer of any Share shall be in any usual or common form or such other form as the
Directors may, in their absolute discretion, approve or the form required by the Taipei Exchange or TSE
(for so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed in the Taipei Exchange or TSE)
and be executed by or on behalf of the transferor and if so required by the Directors, shall also be
executed on behalf of the transferee and shall be accompanied by the certificate (if any) of the Shares to
which it relates and such other evidence as the Directors may reasonably require to show the right of the
transferor to make the transfer. The transferor shall be deemed to remain a Shareholder until the name of
the transferee is entered in the Register in respect of the relevant Shares. The Register of Members
maintained by the Company in respect of the Shares which are registered in the Emerging Market or
listed in the Taipei Exchange or the TSE may be kept by recording the particulars required under the Law
in a form otherwise than legible provided such recording otherwise complies with the laws applicable to
the Emerging Market, Taipei Exchange or TSE and the Applicable Listing Rules. To the extent the
Register of Members is kept in a form otherwise than legible it must be capable of being reproduced in a
legible form.

The Board may decline to register any transfer of any Share unless:

(a) the instrument of transfer is lodged with the Company, accompanied by the certificate (if any) for the
Shares to which it relates and such other evidence as the Board may reasonably require to show the
right of the transferor to make the transfer;

(b) the instrument of transfer is in respect of only one (1) class of Shares;
(c) the instrument of transfer is properly stamped, if required; or

(d) in the case of a transfer to joint holders, the number of joint holders to whom the Share is to be
transferred does not exceed four (4)

Notwithstanding the above, the Board may not unreasonably decline to register any transfer of any
Shares. This Article is not applicable during the period that the Shares are registered in the Emerging
Market or listed in Taipei Exchange or TSE.

The registration of transfers may be suspended when the Register is closed in accordance with Article 41.

All instruments of transfer that are registered shall be retained by the Company, but any instrument of
transfer that the Directors decline to register shall (except in any case of fraud) be returned to the Person
depositing the same.

TRANSMISSION OF SHARES

The legal personal representative of a deceased sole holder of a Share shall be the only Person
recognised by the Company as having any title to the Share. In the case of a Share registered in the
name of two (2) or more holders, the survivors or survivor, or the legal personal representatives of the
deceased, shall be the only Person recognised by the Company as having any title to the Share.

Any Person becoming entitled to a Share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a Shareholder
shall upon such evidence being produced as may from time to time be required by the Directors, have the
right either to be registered as a Shareholder in respect of the Share or, instead of being registered
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himself, to make such transfer of the Share as the deceased or bankrupt Person could have made. If the
person so becoming entitled shall elect to be registered himself as holder he shall deliver or send to the
Company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so elects, but the Directors shall, in either case,
have the same right to decline or suspend registration, and for so long as the Shares are registered in the
Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE, decline or suspend registration in accordance
with the laws applicable to the Emerging Market, Taipei Exchange or TSE and the Applicable Listing
Rules, as they would have had in the case of a transfer of the Share by the deceased or bankrupt Person
before the death or bankruptcy.

A Person becoming entitled to a Share by reason of the death or bankruptcy of a Shareholder shall be
entitled to the same dividends and other advantages to which he would be entitled if he were the
registered Shareholder, except that he shall not, before being registered as a Shareholder in respect of
the Share, be entitled in respect of it to exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to
meetings of the Company; provided however, that the Directors may at any time give notice requiring any
such person to elect either to be registered himself or to transfer the Share, and if the notice is not
complied with within ninety (90) days, the Directors may thereafter withhold payment of all dividends,
bonuses or other monies payable in respect of the Share until the requirements of the notice have been
complied with. Notwithstanding the above, for so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging
Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE, the Directors shall comply with the laws applicable to the
Emerging Market, Taipei Exchange or TSE and the Applicable Listing Rules.
VOTING ON RESOLUTION

The Company may from time to time by Special Resolution increase the share capital by such sum, to be
divided into Shares of such Classes and amount, as the resolution shall prescribe.

The Company may from time to time by Ordinary Resolution:

(a) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into Shares of a larger amount than its existing
Shares;

(b) convert all or any of its paid up Shares into stock and reconvert that stock into paid up Shares of any
denomination;

(c) subdivide its existing Shares, or any of them into Shares of a smaller amount; and

(d) cancel any Shares that, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or agreed to
be taken by any Person and diminish the amount of its share capital by the amount of the Shares so
cancelled.

The Company may also by Special Resolution:
(a) change its name;

(b) subject to the Law, reduce its share capital and any capital redemption reserve in any manner
authorised by law; and

(c) effect a Merger of the Company in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules and the Law.
For the avoidance of doubt, in case a Merger is a Delisting, Article 33A shall apply.

The Company may also by either a Supermajority Resolution Type A or the Supermajority Resolution
Type B:

(a) enter into, amend, or terminate any contract for lease of its business in whole, or for entrusting
business, or for regular joint operation with others;

(b) transfer the whole or any material part of its business or assets;

(c) take over the transfer of another's whole business or assets, which will have a material effect on the
business operation of the Company;

(d) effect any Spin-off of the Company in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules;
(e) grant waiver to the Director’s engaging in any business within the scope of the Company’s business;
(f) issue restricted shares for employees pursuant to Article 17B;

(g) distribute part or all of its dividends or bonus by way of issuance of new Shares, for the avoidance of
doubts, the allotment of bonus shares in connection with the Employees' Remunerations and
Directors’ Remunerations pursuant to Article 129 shall not require the approval of a Supermajority
Resolution Type A or a Supermajority Resolution Type B; and

(h) share swap.

Subject to the Law, these Articles and the quorum requirement under the Applicable Listing Rules, with
regard to the dissolution procedures of the Company, the Company shallpass;

(a) either a Supermajority Resolution Type A or a Supermajority Resolution Type B, if the Company
resolves that it be wound up voluntarily because it is unable to pay its debts as they fall due; or
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(b) a Special Resolution, if the Company resolves that it be wound up voluntarily for reasons other than
the reason stated in Article 33(a) above.

The Company shall pass a Supermajority Special Resolution if the Company effects a Delisting in
accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules.

Subject to the Law, in the event any of the resolutions with respect to the paragraph (a), (b), or (c) of
Article 32 is adopted by general meeting, any Shareholder who has notified the Company in writing of his
objection to such proposal prior to such meeting and subsequently raised his objection at the meeting
may request the Company to purchase all of his Shares at the then prevailing fair price within twenty (20)
days after the date of the resolution. In the event the Company fails to reach such agreement with the
Shareholder within sixty (60) days after the date of the resolution, the Shareholder may, within thirty (30)
days after such sixty (60)-day period, file a petition to any competent court of Taiwan for a ruling on the
appraisal price, and, to the extent that the ruling is capable of enforcement and recognition outside
Taiwan, such ruling by such Taiwan court shall be binding and conclusive as between the Company and
requested Shareholder solely with respect to the appraisal price.

Subject to the Law, in the event any part of the Company’s business is Spun Off or involved in any
Merger, Acquisition or share swap with any other company, the Shareholder, who has forfeited his right to
vote on such matter and expressed his dissent therefor, in writing or verbally (with a record) before or
during the general meeting, may request the Company to purchase all of his Shares in writing at the then
prevailing fair price within twenty (20) days after the date of the resolution and specifies the price of the
Shares to be repurchased.

For the purpose of this Article 34, if the Company and any Shareholder reach an agreement about the
price of the Shares to be repurchased by the Company, the Company shall pay for such agreed purchase
price of Shares to be repurchased within ninety (90) days from the date of passing of the resolution by
general meeting. In case no agreement as to the purchase price is reached, the Company shall pay the
fair price as determined by the Company to such Shareholder within ninety (90) days from the date on
which the resolution was adopted. If the Company fails to pay the agreed purchase price, the Company
shall be deemed to agree to the price as requested by the Shareholder.

For the Shareholder who requests the Company to purchase all of his Shares in accordance with the
second paragraph, in the event the Company fails to reach such agreement with the Shareholder within
sixty (60) days after the date on which the resolution was adopted, the Company shall apply to the court
for a ruling on the fair price against all the dissenting shareholders as the opposing party within thirty (30)
days after such sixty-day period, and Taiwan Taipei District Court has the jurisdiction.

REDEMPTION AND PURCHASE OF SHARES

Subject to the Law, the Applicable Listing Rules and these Articles, the Company is authorized to issue
shares which are to be redeemed or are liable to be redeemed at the option of the Company or a
Shareholder. For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei
Exchange or TSE, the repurchase of the Shares by the Company shall be subject to the Applicable
Listing Rules and the Cayman Islandslaw.

The Company is authorised to make payments in respect of the redemption of its shares out of the funds
lawfully available (including out of capital) in accordance with the Law and the Applicable Listing Rules.

The redemption price of a redeemable Share, or the method of calculation thereof, shall be fixed by the
Directors at or before issue of such Share. Subject to these Articles, every share certificate representing a
redeemable share shall indicate that the share isredeemabile.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules and Articles 38B and 39B, and with the sanction of an Ordinary
Resolution authorising the manner and terms of purchase, the Directors may on behalf of the Company
purchase any share in the Company (including a redeemable share) by agreement with the Shareholder
or pursuant to the terms of the issue of the share and may make payments in respect of such purchase in
accordance with the Law, the Applicable Listing Rules and the Ordinary Resolution authorizing the
manner and terms of purchase

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, upon approval of a majority of Directors present at a Board
meeting attended by two-thirds (2/3) of all Directors or more, the Company may repurchase its
outstanding Shares listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE. The resolutions of Board of Directors in the
preceding paragraph and how such resolutions are implemented shall be reported to the Shareholders at
the next general meeting. If the Company fails to accomplish the repurchase of its outstanding Shares
listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE as approved and anticipated by the resolutions of the Board of
Directors, it shall be reported to the Shareholders at the next general meeting.

The redemption price or repurchase price may be paid in any manner authorised by the Law and these
Articles. A delay in payment of the redemption price or repurchase price shall not affect the redemption or
repurchase but, in the case of a delay of more than thirty (30) days, interest shall be paid for the period
from the due date until actual payment at a rate which the Directors, after due enquiry, estimate to be
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representative of the rates being offered by Class A banks in the Cayman Islands for thirty day deposits in
the samecurrency.

The Shares may only be cancelled in connection with a repurchase of Shares out of the share capital of
the Company or any account or funds legally available therefor with the sanction of either the
Supermajority Resolution Type A or the Supermajority Resolution Type B. The number of Shares to be
repurchased and cancelled pursuant to a repurchase of Shares described in the preceding paragraph
shall be pro rata among the Shareholders in proportion to the number of Shares held by each such
Shareholder.

The amount payable to the Shareholders in connection with a repurchase of Shares out of the share
capital of the Company or any account or funds legally available therefor may be paid in cash or by way
of delivery of assets in specie (i.e., non-cash). The assets to be delivered and the amount of such
substitutive share capital in connection with a repurchase of Shares out of the share capital of the
Company or any account or funds legally available therefor shall be approved by either the Supermajority
Resolution Type A or the Supermajority Resolution Type B and shall be subject to consent by the
Shareholder receiving such assets. Prior to such general meeting, the Board of Directors shall have the
value of assets to be delivered and the amount of such substitutive share capital in respect of repurchase
of the Shares (as described in the preceding paragraph) be audited and certified by a certified public
accountant in Taiwan.
TREASURY SHARES

No share may be redeemed unless it is fully paid-up. Shares that the Company purchases, redeems or
acquires (by way of surrender or otherwise) may, at the option of the Company, be immediately cancelled
or held as Treasury Shares in accordance with the Law and Applicable Listing Rules. If the Board of
Directors does not specify that the relevant Shares are to be held as Treasury Shares, such Shares shall
be cancelled.

No dividend may be declared or paid, and no other distribution (whether in cash or otherwise) of the
Company's assets (including any distribution of assets to members on a winding up) may be declared or
paid in respect of Treasury Shares.

The Company shall be entered into the Register as the holder of the Treasury Shares provided that:

(a) the Company shall not be treated as a member for any purpose and shall not exercise any right in
respect of the Treasury Shares, and any purported exercise of such a right shall be void;

(b) a Treasury Share shall not be voted, directly or indirectly, at any meeting of the Company and shall
not be counted in determining the total number of issued Shares at any given time, whether for the
purposes of these Articles or the Law, save that, subject to the Applicable Listing Rules and the Law,
an allotment of Shares as fully paid bonus shares in respect of a Treasury Shares is permitted and
Shares allotted as fully paid bonus shares in respect of a Treasury Shares shall be treated as
Treasury Shares.

Subject to Article 40E and the Applicable Listing Rules, the Treasury Shares may be disposed of by the
Company on such terms and conditions as determined by the Board of Directors. If the Treasury Shares
having been repurchased by the Company is for the purpose of the transfer to employees under the
Applicable Listing Rules, such employees may undertake to the Company to refrain from transferring
such Shares during certain period with a maximum of two (2) years.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the transfer of Treasury Shares to its employees by the
Company at a price lower than the average price at which the Treasury Shares were actually
repurchased by the Company shall be approved at the next general meeting by a resolution passed by at
least two-thirds (2/3) of votes of Shareholders attending the meeting with a quorum of more than half of
the total issued Shares. The following matters shall be listed in the reasons for convening this general
meeting and in no event shall such matters be proposed at the general meeting as ad hoc motions:

(a) transfer price determined, discount rate, calculation basis and fairness;
(b) number of Treasury Shares to be transferred, purpose and fairness;
(c) criteria of eligible employees and number of Treasury Shares that may be subscribed for; and

(d) impact on shareholders' rights: (i) the amount to be booked as expense of the Company and dilution
of earnings per Share; and (ii) description of the Company's financial burden arising from the transfer
of Treasury Shares to employees at a price lower than the average price at which the Treasury
Shares were actually repurchased by the Company.

The accumulated number of Treasury Shares that have been transferred to employees as so approved at
each general meetings shall not exceed five (5%) of the total issued Shares of the Company, and the
accumulated number of Treasury Shares transferred to a single employee shall not exceed zero point five
percent (0.5%) of the total issued Shares.

CLOSING REGISTER OR FIXING RECORD DATE
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For the purpose of determining those Members that are entitled to receive notice of, attend or vote at any
meeting of Members or any adjournment thereof, or those Members that are entitled to receive payment
of any dividend, or in order to make a determination as to who is a Member for any other purpose, the
Directors may provide that the Register shall be closed for transfers for a stated period. For so long as the
Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed in the Taipei Exchange or TSE, the Register shall
be closed at least for a period of sixty (60) days, thirty (30) days and five (5) days inclusive of the date of
each annual general meeting, each extraordinary general meeting and the record date for a dividend
distribution, respectively.

Apart from closing the Register, the Directors may fix in advance a date as the record date for any such
determination of those Members that are entitled to receive notice of, attend or vote at a general meeting
and for the purpose of determining those Members that are entitled to receive payment of any dividend. In
the event the Directors designate a record date in accordance with this Article 42 in respect of convening
a general meeting, such record date shall be a date prior to the general meeting and the Directors shall
immediately make a public announcement on the website designated by the Commission and the Taipei
Exchange or TSE pursuant to the Applicable Listing Rules.
GENERAL MEETINGS

All general meetings other than annual general meetings shall be called extraordinary general meetings.

The Board may, whenever they think fit, convene a general meeting of the Company; provided that the
Company shall in each year hold a general meeting as its annual general meeting within six (6) months
after close of each financial year and shall specify the meeting as such in the notices calling it.

At these meetings the report of the Directors (if any) shall be presented. For so long as the Shares are
registered in the Emerging Market and/or listed in the Taipei Exchange or TSE, all general meetings shall
be held in Taiwan, if a general meeting is to be convened outside Taiwan, the Company, within two (2)
days after the Board adopts such resolution, or, in the event of an extraordinary general meeting
convened pursuant to Article 46, the relevant Shareholders, shall apply for the approval of the Taipei
Exchange or the TSE.

Extraordinary general meetings may also be convened by the Board on the requisition in writing of any
Shareholder or Shareholders entitled to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company holding
three percent (3%) or more of the total number of issued Shares of the Company for a period of one (1)
consecutive year or a longer time deposited at the Office or the Shareholders’ Service Agent specifying
the objects of the meeting, and if the Board does not duly proceed to convene such meeting for a date not
later than 15 days after the date of such deposit, for so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging
Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE, the requisitionists themselves may convene the
extraordinary general meeting in the same manner as provided for under Article 48, as nearly as possible,
as that in which general meetings may be convened by the Directors, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the Directors to convene the general meeting
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

If at any time there are no Directors, any Shareholder or Shareholders holding three percent (3%) or
more of the total number of the issued Shares of the Company for a period of one (1) consecutive year or
a longer time may, for so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei
Exchange or TSE, convene a general meeting in the same manner as nearly as possible as that in which
general meetings may be convened by the Directors.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

At least twenty (20) and ten (10) days’ notices in writing shall be given for any annual and extraordinary
general meetings, respectively; provided however for so long as the Shares are registered in the
Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE, at least thirty (30) and fifteen (15) days’ notices
in writing shall be given for any annual and extraordinary general meetings, respectively. Every notice
shall be exclusive of the day on which it is given or deemed to be given and of the day for which it is given
and shall specify the place, the day and the hour of the meeting and the general nature of the business.
The notice for a general meeting may be given by means of electronic communication if the Company
obtains prior consent by the individual recipients.

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
the Company shall make public announcements with regard to notice of general meeting, proxy form, and
summary information and details about issues for recognition, discussion, election or dismissal of
Directors or supervisors (if any) at least thirty (30) days prior to any annual general meeting or at least
fifteen (15) days prior to any extraordinary general meeting.

If the Company allows the Shareholders to exercise the votes and cast the votes in writing or by way of
electronic transmission in accordance with Article 67, the Company shall also send to the Shareholders
the information and documents as described in the preceding paragraph, together with the voting right
exercise forms.
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For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
the Board shall prepare a manual setting out the agenda of a general meeting (including all the subjects
and matters to be resolved at the meeting) and shall make public announcement(s) in a manner
permitted by the Applicable Listing Rules to disclose the contents of such manual together with other
information related to the said meeting at least twenty-one (21) days prior to the date of annual general
meetings and at least fifteen (15) days prior to the date of extraordinary general meetings. Such manual
shall be distributed to all Shareholders attending the general meeting in person, by proxy or by corporate
representative(s) (where the Shareholder is a corporation) at the generalmeeting.

The following matters and their respective material contents shall be specified in the notice of a general
meeting, and shall not be proposed as ad hoc motions; material contents of such matters may be
uploaded onto the website designated by the TWSE, TPEx or the Company with the address of website
indicated in the notice:

(a) election or discharge of Directors or supervisors (if any);
(b) amendments to the Memorandum of Association and/or these Articles;
(c) reduction in share capital of the Company;
(d) application for de-registration as a public company;
)

(e) dissolution, share swap (as defined in the Applicable Listing Rules), Merger or Spin- off of the
Company;

(f) entering into, amendment to, or termination of any contract for lease of its business in whole, or for
entrusting business, or for regular joint operation with others;

(g) the transfer of the whole or any material part of its business or assets;

(h) the takeover of another's whole business or assets, which will have a material effect on the business
operation of the Company;

(i) the private placement of equity-linked securities;

(i) granting waiver to the Director’s engaging in any business within the scope of business of the
Company;

(k) distribution of part or all of its dividends or bonus by way of issuance of new Shares;

(I) capitalization of the Legal Reserves and Capital Reserves arising from the share premium account or
endowment income, in whole or in part, by issuing new Shares which shall be distributable as
dividend shares to the then Shareholders in proportion to the number of Shares being held by each of
them;

(m) subject to the Law, distribution of the Legal Reserves and Capital Reserves arising from the share
premium account or endowment income, in whole or in part, by paying cash to the then Shareholders
in proportion to the number of Shares being held by each of them;

(n) the transfer of Treasury Shares to its employees by the Company; and
(o) the Delisting.
Subject to the Law and these Articles, the Shareholders may propose matters in a general meeting to the

extent of matters as described in the agenda of such meeting.
PROCEEDINGS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of Shareholders is present at
the time when the meeting proceeds to business. Save as otherwise provided by these Articles, the
holders of Shares being more than an aggregate of one-half (1/2) of all Shares in issue present in person
or by proxy and entitled to vote shall be a quorum for all purposes.

One or more Shareholders holding in the aggregate of one percent (1%) or more of the total number of
issued Shares immediately prior to the relevant book close period may propose in writing or by way of
electronic transmission to the Company a matter for discussion at an annual general meeting. The
Company shall give a public notice in such manner as permitted by the Applicable Listing Rules at such
time deemed appropriate by the Board specifying the place and a period of not less than ten (10) days for
Members to submit proposals. Any Shareholder(s) whose proposal has been submitted and accepted by
the Board, shall continue to be entitled to attend the annual general meeting in person or by proxy or in
the case of a corporation, by its authorised representative(s), and participate in the discussion of such
proposal.

The Board shall accept a proposal submitted by one or more Shareholders and arrange for the proposal
to be discussed at the annual general meeting unless (i) the number of Shares held by such one or more
Shareholders is less than one percent (1%) in aggregate of the total number of issued Shares in the
Register of Members as of the record date determined by the Board or upon commencement of the
period for which the Register shall be closed before the general meeting; (ii) the proposal involves
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matters which cannot be resolved at the annual general meeting in accordance with or under the Law or
Applicable Listing Rules; (iii) the proposal submitted concerns more than one matter; (iv) the proposal
submitted exceeds three hundred words; or (v) the proposal is not submitted within the specified period
determined by the Board; provided, however, that if the proposal submitted is to urge the Company to
facilitate the public interest or perform social responsibility, the Board may accept that proposal and
arrange for it being discussed at the annual general meeting. The Company shall, prior to the dispatch of
a notice of the annual general meeting, inform the Shareholders the result of submission of proposals and
list in the notice of annual general meeting the proposals accepted for consideration and approval at the
annual general meeting. The Board shall explain at the annual general meeting the reasons for excluding
proposals submitted by such Shareholder(s).

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the Chairman, if any, of the Board of the Directors shall preside as
chairman at every general meeting of the Company convened by the Board of Directors. In case the
Chairman is on leave or absent or cannot exercise his/her power and authority for any cause, he/she
shall designate one of the other Directors to act on his/her behalf. In the absence of such a designation,
the Directors shall elect from among themselves a chairman for such meeting.

Any one or more Shareholders holding in aggregate more than half of the total number of the issued
Shares of the Company for at least three (3) consecutive months may convene an extraordinary general
meeting. The determination of the afore-mentioned holding period and number of Shares shall be based
on the Shares held immediately prior to the relevant book close period.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, for a general meeting convened by any other person having the
convening right, such person shall act as the chairman of that meeting; provided that if there are two (2)
or more persons jointly having the convening right, the chairman of the meeting shall be elected from
those persons.

The Board of Directors or any person who is entitled to convene a general meeting pursuant to Article
53A above or under these Articles may demand the Company or its Shareholders’ Service Agent to
provide the Register of Members.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, at any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the meeting
shall be decided on a poll. The number or proportion of the votes in favour of, or against, that resolution
shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting.

Unless otherwise expressly required by the Law or these Articles, any matter which has been presented
for resolution, approval, confirmation or adoption by the Shareholders at any general meeting shall be
passed by an Ordinary Resolution.

In the case of an equality of votes, the chairman of the meeting shall not be entitled to a second or casting
vote. Subject to these Articles and the Applicable Listing Rules, the Company shall additionally comply
with the Procedural Rules of General Meetings.

VOTES OF SHAREHOLDERS

Subject to these Articles and any rights and restrictions for the time being attached to any Share, every
Shareholder and every Person representing a Shareholder by proxy shall have one (1) vote for each
Share of which he or the Person represented by proxy is the holder. Subject to the Law and unless
otherwise provided for in these Articles, any resolutions at a general meeting of the Company shall be
adopted by an Ordinary Resolution.

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
any Shareholder holding Shares on behalf of one or more Persons (each a "Beneficial Owner") may
exercise his/her voting rights severally in accordance with the request(s) of such Beneficial Owner. The
qualifications, scopes, exercises, operational procedures and other matters in relation to the aforesaid
separate exercise of voting rights shall be conducted in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules.

No vote may be exercised by any Shareholder with respect to any of the following Shares:

(a) the Treasury Shares held by the Company in accordance with the Law, these Articles and the
Applicable Listing Rules;

(b) the Shares held by any subordinate company of the Company as defined in the Applicable Listing
Rules, where the total number of voting shares or total shares equity held by the Company in such a
subordinated company represents more than one-half (1/2) of the total number of voting shares or the
total shares equity of such a subordinated company; or

(c) the Shares held by another company, where the Company and its subordinated company directly or
indirectly hold more than one-half (1/2) of the total number of the voting shares or total shares equity
of such company.

Any votes cast by or on behalf of such Shareholder in contravention of the foregoing shall not be counted
in the total number of issued shares while calculating the quorum for the purpose of Article 51.

In the case of joint holders, the joint holders shall select among them a representative for the exercise of
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their shareholder’s rights and the vote of their representative who tenders a vote whether in person or by
proxy shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders.

A Shareholder of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any court having
jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote by his committee, or other Person in the nature of a committee appointed
by that court, and any such committee or other Person, guardian or any other Person who is similar to
guardian and appointed by any court having jurisdiction, may vote by proxy.

A Shareholder may appoint a proxy to attend a general meeting on his behalf by executing an instrument
in usual or common form or such other form as the Directors may approve, and such proxy form shall be
prepared by the Company stating therein the scope of power authorized to the proxy. A Shareholder may
only execute one (1) such proxy form and appoint one (1) proxy for each general meeting, and shall
serve such written proxy to the Company no later than five (5) days prior to the meeting date. In case the
Company receives two (2) or more written proxies from one (1) Shareholder, the first one arriving at the
Company shall prevail unless an explicit statement to revoke the previous written proxy is made in the
proxy which comes later.

After a proxy is delivered to the Company, if the Shareholder issuing the proxy intends to  attend the
general meeting in person or exercise the voting rights in writing or by way of electronic transmission, the
Shareholder shall issue a written notice to the Company to revoke the proxy at least two (2) days prior to
the general meeting. If the revocation is not made during the prescribed period, the votes casted by the
person as proxy shallprevail.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form approved by the Company and be expressed to be
for a particular meeting only. The form of proxy shall include at least the following information: (a)
instructions on how to complete such proxy, (b) the matters to be voted upon pursuant to such proxy, and
(c) basic identification information relating to the relevant Shareholder, proxy recipient and proxy
solicitation agent (if any). The form of proxy shall be provided to the Shareholders together with the
relevant notice by mail or electronic transmission for the relevant general meeting. Notwithstanding any
other provisions of these Articles, the distribution of the notice and proxy materials shall be made to all
Shareholders and such distribution, regardless of delivering by email or by electronic transmission, shall
be made on the same day.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney
duly authorised in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under Seal or under the hand of an
officer or attorney duly authorised. A proxy need not be aShareholder.

Except for Taiwan trust enterprises or Shareholders’ Service Agencies approved by Taiwan competent
authorities or the chairman appointed pursuant to Article 68, when a person who acts as the proxy for two
(2) or more Shareholders concurrently, the number of votes represented by him shall not exceed three
percent (3%) of the total number of votes of the Company and the portion of votes in excess of the said
three percent (3%) represented by such proxy shall not be counted.

To the extent required by the Applicable Listing Rules, any Shareholder who bears a personal interest
that may conflict with and impair the interest of the Company in respect of any matter proposed (the
“Proposed Matters”) for consideration and approval at a general meeting shall abstain from voting any of
the Shares that such Shareholder should otherwise be entitled to vote in person, as a proxy or corporate
representative with respect to the said matter, but all such Shares shall be counted in the quorum for the
purpose of Article 51 notwithstanding that such Shareholder should not exercise his voting right. Any
votes cast by or on behalf of such Shareholder in contravention of the foregoing shall not be counted in
the number of votes of Shareholders present at the general meeting for the resolution relating to the
Proposed Matters by the Company.

Unless otherwise provided in these Articles, the voting at the general meeting may be exercised in writing
or by way of electronic transmission, provided, however, that the method for exercising the votes shall be
described in the notice of the general meeting. If, however, the Shares are listed on the Taipei Exchange
or TSE, subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the Company must allow the voting at the general
meeting be exercised by way of electronic transmission as one of the voting methods at the general
meeting. If the Board resolves to hold a general meeting outside Taiwan, the Company must allow the
Shareholders to exercise the votes and cast the votes in writing or by way of electronic transmission.

A Shareholder who exercises his votes in writing or by way of electronic transmission as set forth in the
preceding article shall be deemed to have appointed the chairman of the general meeting as his or her
proxy to exercise his or her voting right at such general meeting in accordance with the instructions
stipulated in the written or electronic document, but shall be deemed to have waived his votes in
respective of any ad hoc motions and the amendments to the contents of the original proposals at such
general meeting; provided, however, that such appointment shall be deemed not to constitute the
appointment of a proxy for the purposes of the Applicable Listing Rules. The chairman, acting as proxy of
a Shareholder, shall not exercise the voting right of such Shareholder in any way not stipulated in the
written or electronic document.
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For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed in the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
where a general meeting is to be held outside Taiwan, the Company shall engage a designated institute
(i.e., Shareholders’ Service Agent located in Taiwan) approved by the Commission and the Taipei
Exchange or the TSE to handle the administration of such general meeting (including but not limited to
the voting for Shareholders of the Company).

A Shareholder shall submit his or her vote by way of written ballot or electronic transmission pursuant to
Article 67 to the Company at least two (2) days prior to the scheduled meeting date of the general
meeting; whereas if two (2) or more such written ballot or electronic transmission are submitted to the
Company, the proxy deemed to be given to the chairman of the general meeting pursuant to Article 68 by
the first written ballot or electronic transmission shall prevail unless it is expressly included in the
subsequent vote by written ballot or electronic transmission that the original vote submitted by written
ballot or electronic transmission be revoked.

In case a Shareholder who has submitted his votes by written ballot or electronic transmission intends to
attend the general meeting in person, he shall, at least two (2) days prior to the date of the meeting
revoke such vote by written ballot or electronic transmission and such revocation shall constitute a
revocation of the proxy deemed to be given to the chairman of the general meeting pursuant to Article 68.
If a Shareholder who has submitted his or her vote in writing or by way of electronic transmission
pursuant to Article 67 does not submit such a revocation before the prescribed time, his or her vote by
written ballot or electronic transmission and the proxy deemed to be given to the chairman of the general
meeting pursuant to Article 68 shall prevail.

If a Shareholder has submitted his or her vote in writing or by way of electronic transmission pursuant to
Article 67, and has subsequently submitted a proxy appointing a person as his or her proxy to attend the
general meeting on his or her behalf, the subsequent appointment of that person as his or her proxy shall
be deemed to be a revocation of such Shareholder’s deemed appointment of the chairman of the general
meeting as his or her proxy pursuant to Article 68 and the vote casted by that person subsequently
appointed as his or her proxy shall prevail.

In case the procedure for convening a general meeting or the method of adopting resolutions is in
violation of the Law, Applicable Listing Rules or these Articles, a Shareholder may, within thirty (30) days
from the date of the resolution, submit a petition to a competent court having proper jurisdiction, including,
the Taipei District Court of the Republic of China if applicable, for revocation of such resolution.

PROXY AND PROXY SOLICITATION

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed in the Taipei Exchange or the
TSE, the Company shall comply with the Applicable Listing Rules (including but not limited to the
"Guidelines Governing the Utilization of Proxy for Shareholders Meetings of Public Companies") in
respect of the proxies and proxy solicitation.

CORPORATIONS ACTING BY REPRESENTATIVES AT MEETINGS

Any corporation which is a Shareholder or a Director may by resolution of its directors or other governing

body authorise such Person as it thinks fit to act as its representative at any meeting of the Company or

of any meeting of holders of a Class or of the Board of Directors or of a committee of Directors, and the

Person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same powers on behalf of the corporation which he

represents as that corporation could exercise if it were an individual Shareholder or Director.
DIRECTORS

Unless otherwise determined by the Company in general meeting, the number of Directors shall be no
less than five (5) Directors with a maximum of nine (9) Directors. Amongst the Board of Directors, the
Company shall have at least four (4) Independent Directors, and the Independent Directors shall account
for at least one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of Directors. At least one (1) of the Independent Directors
must be domiciled in Taiwan. For so long as the Shares are listed on the Taipei Exchange or the TSE, the
Directors shall include such number of Independent Directors as applicable law, rules or regulations or
the Applicable Listing Rules require for a foreign issuer. The qualification, formation, appointment,
discharge, exercise of authority and other compliance of Directors and Independent Directors shall be
subject to and governed by the Applicable Listing Rules.

Where any Shareholder is a corporate entity, its representative may be elected as Director or supervisor
(if any). Where there are several representatives of any corporate Shareholder, such representatives may
be elected as either Directors or supervisors (if any) but not as Director and supervisors (if any)
concurrently.

Independent Directors shall possess professional knowledge and maintain independence within the
scope of their directorial duties without having any direct or indirect interest in the Company. The
professional qualifications, restrictions on shareholdings and concurrent positions held, assessment of
independence of Independent Directors, method of nomination of Independent Directors, and other
matters in relation to Independent Directors shall be subject to the Applicable Listing Rules.
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When the number of Independent Directors falls below the required number of Independent Directors
under these Articles or the Applicable Listing Rules due to the disqualification or resignation of an
Independent Director or the Independent Director ceases to be a Director for any reason, the vacancy of
such Independent Director shall be filled and elected at the next following general meeting. When all of
the Independent Directors have been disqualified, resigned or cease to be Directors for any reason, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened within sixty (60) days of the occurrence of that fact to
elect Independent Directors.

Unless otherwise permitted by the Commission and under the Applicable Listing Rules, a spousal
relationship and/or a Family Relationship within the Second Degree of Kinship shall not exist among more
than half (1/2) of the Directors (the “Threshold”).

Where the Directors elected at the general meeting do not meet the Threshold, the election of the
Director receiving the lowest number of votes among those not meeting the Threshold shall be deemed
null and void. If any of the existing Directors does not meet the Threshold, such Director in office shall be
discharged immediately and automatically.

When the number of Directors falls below five (5) due to the disqualification or resignation of a Director or
any Director ceases to be a Director of the Company for any reason, the Company shall hold an election
to elect substitute director(s) at the next following general meeting. When the number of Directors falls
short by one-third (1/3) of total number of Directors elected at the previous general meeting convened to
elect Directors and notwithstanding the actual current number of Directors, an extraordinary general
meeting shall be convened within sixty (60) days of the occurrence of that fact to hold an election of
Directors.

If all Directors are re-elected at a general meeting held prior to the expiration of the term of the current
Directors (the "Re-Election"), unless otherwise resolved at such general meeting, the term of the
existing Directors shall be deemed to have expired immediately prior to the Re- Election. The aforesaid
re-election of all Directors shall be held in the general meeting attended by Shareholders representing
more than fifty percent (50%) of total issued Shares of the Company.

The general meeting of the Shareholders may appoint any natural person or corporation to be a Director
or supervisors (if any). At a general meeting of election of Directors or supervisors (if any), the number of
votes exercisable in respect of one (1) Share shall be the same as the number of Directors or supervisors
(if any) to be elected, and the total number of votes per Share may be consolidated for election of one (1)
candidate or may be split for election of two (2) or more candidates. A candidate to whom the ballots cast
represent a prevailing number of votes shall be deemed a Director or supervisor (if any) so elected.

For so long as the Shares are registered in Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the Company shall adopt a candidate nomination mechanism for
the purpose of the appointment and election of Directors (including the Independent Directors) or
supervisors (if any) in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules and, for the avoidance of doubts, (i)
the Directors (excluding the Independent Directors) or supervisors (if any) shall only be elected and
approved by the Shareholders from the list of candidates for Directors (excluding the Independent
Directors) and supervisors (if any); and (ii) the Independent Directors shall only be elected and approved
by the Shareholders from the list of candidates for Independent Directors.

Subject to these Articles and the Applicable Listing Rules, the Company shall additionally comply with the
Guidelines Governing Election of Directors.

Subject to these Atrticles, the term for which a Director and supervisor (if any) will hold office shall not
exceed three (3) years; thereafter he/she may be eligible for re-election. In case no election of new
Directors or supervisors (if any) is effected after expiration of the term of office of the existing Directors or
supervisors (if any), the term of office of such Directors or supervisors (if any) shall be extended until the
time new Directors or supervisors (if any) are elected and assume their office.

A Director may be discharged at any time by either a Supermajority Resolution Type A or a Supermaijority
Resolution Type B adopted at a general meeting. If a Director is discharged during the term of his/her
office as a director without good cause, such Director may make a claim against the Company for any
and all damages sustained by him/her as a result of such discharge.

The Board of Directors shall have a Chairman (the “Chairman”) elected and appointed by a majority of
the Directors present at the Board meeting the quorum of which shall be two-thirds of all of the Directors
then in office.

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed in the Taipei Exchange or
TSE, subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, any Director (other than the Independent Director) or
supervisor (if any), who, during his or her term and in one or more transactions, transfers more than fifty
percent (50%) of the total Shares held by such Director or supervisor (as the case may be) at the time of
his or her appointment or election as Director or supervisor (as the case may be) being approved at a
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general meeting (the "Approval Time"), shall be discharged or vacated from the office of Director or
supervisor (as the case may be).

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed in the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, if any person transfers, in one or more transactions, more than
fifty percent (50%) of the Shares held by him or her at the Approval Time either (i) during the period from
the Approval Time to the commencement date of his or her office as Director (other than as an
Independent Director) or supervisor (if any), or (ii) during the period when the Register is closed for
transfer of Shares prior to the general meeting at which the appointment or election of such person as a
Director or supervisor (if any) will be proposed, his or her appointment or election as Director or
supervisor (if any) shall be null and void.

The Board may, from time to time, and except as required by the applicable laws and Applicable Listing
Rules, adopt, institute, amend, modify or revoke the corporate governance policies or initiatives, which
shall be intended to set forth the policies of the Company and the Board on various corporate governance
related matters as the Board shall determine by resolution from time to time.

A Director shall not be required to hold any Shares in the Company by way of qualification.

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed in the Taipei Exchange or
TSE, subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, where any Director, who is also a Shareholder of the
Company, creates or has created a pledge on the Shares held by such Director (the "Pledged Shares")
exceeding fifty percent (50%) of total Shares held by such Director at the time of his/her appointment as
Director being approved at a general meeting, such Director shall refrain from exercising its voting rights
on the Shares representing the difference between the Pledged Shares and fifty percent (50%) of total
Shares held by such Director at the time of his/her appointment as Director being approved at a general
meeting, and such Shares shall not be counted toward the number of votes represented by the
Shareholders present at a general meeting.
DIRECTORS’ FEES AND EXPENSES

Unless otherwise stipulated in these Articles or the Applicable Listing Rules, the remuneration (if any) of
the Directors is subject to resolution by the Board of Directors in accordance with the standard prevalent
in the industry. Each Director shall be entitled to be repaid or prepaid all travelling, hotel and incidental
expenses reasonably incurred or expected to be incurred by him in attending meetings of the Board or
committees of the Board or general meetings or separate meetings of any class of Shares or of
debentures of the Company or otherwise in connection with the discharge of his duties as a Director.

Subject to Article 85, any Director who, by request, goes or resides abroad for any purpose of the
Company or who performs services which in the opinion of the Board go beyond the ordinary duties of a
Director may be paid such extra remuneration as the Board may determine and such extra remuneration
shall be in addition to or in substitution for any ordinary remuneration provided for by or pursuant to any
otherArticle.

The Company shall establish a salaries and remuneration committee, and the professional qualifications
of members, formation, appointment, discharge, how such committee functions and exercises its power
and other relevant matters shall be subject to the Applicable Listing Rules. The salaries and
remunerations in the preceding paragraph include the salaries and remunerations and stock options and
other measures providing substantial incentives for Directors and managers.

ALTERNATE

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, any Director may appoint another Director to be his or her
alternate and to act in such Director's place at any Board meeting. Every such alternate Director shall be
entitled to attend and vote at the Board meeting as the alternate of the Director appointing him or her and
where he or she is a Director to have a separate vote in addition to his or her own vote.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the appointment of the alternate Director referred in the preceding
article shall be in writing under the hand of the appointing Director and shall be in any usual or common
form or such other form as the Directors may approve, and must be lodged with the chairman of the
meeting of the Directors at which such appointment is to be used, or first used, prior to the
commencement of the Board meeting.

POWERS AND DUTIES OF DIRECTORS

At the close of each financial year, the Board of Directors shall prepare the business report, financial
statements and the surplus earning distribution and/or loss offsetting proposals for adoption by the annual
general meeting, and upon such adoption by the annual general meeting, distribute or make public
announcements to each Shareholder copies of adopted financial statements and the resolutions on the
surplus earning distribution and/or loss offsetting in accordance with these Articles and the Applicable
Listing Rules. For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Stock Market or listed in the
Taipei Exchange or the TSE, alternatively, the distribution of the aforesaid adopted financial statements
and the resolutions on the surplus earning distribution and/or loss offsetting may be accomplished by way
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of making public announcements by the Company.

Subject to the Law, these Articles, Applicable Listing Rules and to any resolutions passed in a general
meeting, the business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors, who may pay all expenses
incurred in setting up and registering the Company and may exercise all powers of the Company.

The Directors may from time to time appoint any Person (exclusive of any Independent Directors),
whether or not such Person is a Director to hold such office in the Company as the Directors may think
necessary for the administration of the Company, including but not limited to, the office of the chief
executive officer, president, one (1) or more vice-presidents or chief financial officer, and for such term
and at such remuneration (whether by way of salary or commission or participation in profits or partly in
one way and partly in another), and with such powers and duties as the Directors may think fit.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any Directors hold either of the above positions, the relevant
remuneration shall be subject to Article 85. Any Person so appointed by the Directors may be removed by
the Directors.

The Directors may appoint a Secretary (and if need be an assistant Secretary or assistant Secretaries)
who shall hold office for such term, at such remuneration and upon such conditions and with such powers
as they think fit. Any Secretary or assistant Secretary so appointed by the Directors may be removed by
the Directors.

The Directors may delegate any of their powers to committees consisting of such member or members of
their body as they think fit; any committee so formed shall in the exercise of the powers so delegated
conform to any regulations that may be imposed on it by the Directors.

The Directors may from time to time and at any time by power of attorney (whether under Seal or under
hand) or otherwise appoint any company, firm or Person or body of Persons, whether nominated directly
or indirectly by the Directors, to be the attorney or attorneys of the Company for such purposes and with
such powers, authorities and discretion (not exceeding those vested in or exercisable by the Directors
under these Articles) and for such period and subject to such conditions as they may think fit, and any
such power of attorney or other appointment may contain such provisions for the protection and
convenience of Persons dealing with any such attorney as the Directors may think fit, and may also
authorise any such attorney to delegate all or any of the powers, authorities and discretion vested in him.

The Directors may from time to time provide for the management of the affairs of the Company in such
manner as they shall think fit and the provisions contained in the two next following Articles shall not limit
the general powers conferred by this Article.

The Directors from time to time and at any time may establish any committees for managing any of the
affairs of the Company (including but not limited to remuneration committee), and unless otherwise
provided in the Applicable Listing Rules, the members of such committees shall be Directors. Where any
Director holds above position, the relevant remuneration shall be subject to Article 85.

Any such delegates as aforesaid may be authorised by the Directors to sub-delegate all or any of the
powers, authorities, and discretion for the time being vested inthem.

Subject to the Cayman Islands law and the Applicable Listing Rules, any Director shall owe fiduciary
duties to the Company and such fiduciary obligations shall include but not limited to the observance of
general standards of loyalty, good faith and the avoidance of a conflict of duty and self-interest. If any
Director breaches the aforesaid fiduciary duties, subject to the Cayman Islands law and the Applicable
Listing Rules, such Director shall be held liable for any damages therefrom.

Subject to the Cayman Islands law and the Applicable Listing Rules, if any Director violates the aforesaid
fiduciary duties for him/herself or another person, it may be resolved at the general meeting to deem any
income from such behaviour as the Company's income.

If any Director breaches any applicable laws or regulations in performing business for the Company,
therefore causing any loss or damage to third party, subject to the Cayman Islands law and the Applicable
Listing Rules, such Director shall be held jointly and severally liable for the loss or damage to such third
party with the Company. In this connection, such Director shall indemnify the Company for any loss or
damage incurred by the Company to third party.

Subject to Cayman Islands law and the Applicable Listing Rules, to the extent of the scope of their
respective duties, the officers and the supervisors (if any) of the Company shall bear the liability identical
to that applicable to Directors pursuant to the preceding paragraphs of this Article.

BORROWING POWERS OF DIRECTORS

Subject to these Articles and the Applicable Listing Rules, the Directors may exercise all the powers of
the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or charge its undertaking and property, to issue
debentures, debenture stock and other securities whenever money is borrowed or as security for any
debt, liability or obligation of the Company or of any third party.

THE SEAL
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The Seal shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a resolution of the Directors
provided always that such authority may be given prior to or after the affixing of the Seal and if given after
may be in general form confirming a number of affixings of the Seal. The Seal shall be affixed in the
presence of a Director or a Secretary (or an assistant Secretary) or in the presence of any one (1) or more
Persons as the Directors may appoint for the purpose and every Person as aforesaid shall sign every
instrument to which the Seal is so affixed in their presence.

The Company may maintain a facsimile of the Seal in such countries or places as the Directors may
appoint and such facsimile Seal shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a
resolution of the Directors provided always that such authority may be given prior to or after the affixing of
such facsimile Seal and if given after may be in general form confirming a number of affixings of such
facsimile Seal.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Secretary or any assistant Secretary shall have the authority to affix the

Seal, or the facsimile Seal, to any instrument for the purposes of attesting authenticity of the matter

contained therein but which does not create any obligation binding on the Company.
DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

A person shall not act as a Director and shall be discharged or vacated from the office of Director, if he or
she:

(a) committed an organized crime and has been adjudicated guilty by a final judgment, and he has not
served the term of the sentence yet, he has not served the full term of the sentence, or the time
elapsed after he has served the full term of the sentence, his term of probation has expired or he has
been pardoned is less than five(5) years;

(b) has been sentenced to imprisonment for a term of more than one (1) year for commitment of fraud,
breach of trust or misappropriation, and he has not served the term of the sentence yet, he has not
served the full term of the sentence, or the time elapsed after he has served the full term of such
sentence, his term of probation has expired or he has been pardoned is less than two (2) years;

(c) has been adjudicated guilty by a final judgment for violating anti-corruption law, and he has not served
the term of the sentence yet, he has not served the full term of the sentence, or the time elapsed after
he has served the full term of such sentence, his term of probation has expired or he has been
pardoned is less than two (2) years;

(d) becomes bankrupt or enters into liquidation process by a court order and has not been discharged
from bankruptcy or liquidation;

(e) has been dishonored for unlawful use of credit instruments, and the term of such sanction has not
expired yet;

(f) has no or only limited legal capacity;
(g) dies oris found to be or becomes of unsound mind;
(h) resigns his office by notice in writing to the Company;

(i) becomes subject to the order of commencement of assistance due to incapacity pursuant to relevant
Taiwan law and the order has not been revoked; or

(j) is removed from office and ceases to be the Director pursuant to these Articles.

In case a Director has, in the course of performing his/her duties, committed any act resulting in material
damage to the Company or in serious violation of applicable laws and regulations and these Articles, but
not been discharged or removed by a resolution of the general meeting, any Shareholder(s) holding three
percent (3%) or more of the total number of issued Shares may, within thirty (30) days after that general
meeting, submit a petition to a competent court having proper jurisdiction, including, the Taipei District
Court of the Republic of China if applicable, in respect of such matter, for the removal of such Director, at
the Company’s expense.
PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS

The Directors may meet together (either within or outside the Cayman Islands) for the dispatch of
business, adjourn, and otherwise regulate their meetings and proceedings as they think fit. Questions
arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes present at such meeting. In case of an
equality of votes the chairman shall not have a second or casting vote. The notice of the Board meeting
shall state the reasons for such meeting and shall be given to each Director at least seven (7) days prior
to the meeting via mail or electronic transmission; however the Board meeting may be convened from
time to time in case of any emergency in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules. Subject to these
Articles and the Applicable Listing Rules, the Company shall additionally comply with the Procedural
Rules of Board Meetings.

A Director may participate in any meeting of the Board of Directors, or of any committee appointed by the
Board of Directors of which such Director is a member, by means of videoconference or similar
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communication equipment by way of which all Persons participating in such meeting can communicate
with each other and such participation shall be deemed to constitute presence in person at the meeting.

Unless otherwise provided in these Articles, the quorum necessary for the transaction of the business of
the Directors shall be more than one-half (1/2) of the Directors. A Director represented by alternate
Director at any Board meeting shall be deemed to be present for the purposes of determining whether or
not a quorum is present.

A Director who directly or indirectly has personal interest in the matter proposed at the meeting of the
Board, including but not limited to a contract or proposed contract or arrangement with the Company shall
disclose the nature of his or her personal interest at the meeting of the Board, if he or she knows his or
her personal interest then exists, or in any other case at the first meeting of the Board after he or she
knows that he or she is or has become so interested. For the purposes of this Article, a general notice to
the Board by a Director to the effect that:

(a) he is a member or officer of a specified company or firm and is to be regarded as interested in any
contract or arrangement which may after the date of the notice be made with that company or firm; or

(b) he is to be regarded as interested in any contract or arrangement which may after the date of the
notice be made with a specified person who is connected with him;

shall be deemed to be a sufficient disclosure of personal interest under this Article in relation to any such
contract or arrangement, provided that no such notice shall be effective unless either it is given at a
meeting of the Board or the Director takes reasonable steps to secure that it is brought up and read at the
next Board meeting after it is given.

To the extent required by Applicable Listing Rules, a Director may not vote for himself or on behalf of
other Director in respect to any matter, including but not limited to any contract or proposed contract or
arrangement or contemplated transaction of the Company, in which such Director bears a personal
interest (whether directly or indirectly) which may conflict with and impair the interest of the Company.
Any votes cast by or on behalf of such Director in contravention of the foregoing shall not be counted by
the Company, but such Director shall be counted in the quorum for purposes of convening such meeting.

Notwithstanding the first paragraph of this Article, if any Director has personal interest (whether directly or
indirectly) in matters on agenda for the Board meeting, such Director shall disclose and explain the
material information or contents on such personal interest at the same Board meeting; before the
Company adopts any resolution of Merger, Acquisition, Spin-off or share swap, a Director who has a
personal interest in the transaction of Merger, Acquisition, Spin-off or share swap shall declare such
interest to the Board at the Board meeting and to the shareholders at the general meeting the essential
contents of such personal interest and the reasons that the relevant resolution shall be approved or
dissented.

In the case that a Director's spouse, a blood relative within second degree of kinship or a company which
has parent-subsidiary relationship with the Director has personal interest in a matter on agenda for the
Board meeting, such Director shall be deemed to have personal interest in that matter.

A Director (exclusive of any Independent Directors) who does anything for himself or on behalf of another
person that is within the scope of the Company's business shall declare the essential contents of such
behaviour to the general meeting of the Shareholders and be approved by either a Supermajority
Resolution Type A or a Supermajority Resolution Type B. Failure in obtaining such approval shall cause
the Director being so interested be liable to account to the Company for any profit realised by any such
behaviour if the general meeting so resolves by an Ordinary Resolution within one (1) year from such
behaviour.

Notwithstanding the preceding Articles, subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, a Director (exclusive of
any Independent Directors) may hold any other office or place of profit under the Company (other than
the office of internal auditor) in conjunction with his office of Director for such period and on such terms
(as to remuneration and otherwise) as the Directors may determine and no Director or intending Director
shall be disqualified by his office from contracting with the Company either with regard to his tenure of any
such other office or place of profit nor shall any Director so contracting or being so interested be liable to
account to the Company for any profit realised by any such contract or arrangement by reason of such
Director holding that office or of the fiduciary relation thereby established.

Subject to these Articles and the Applicable Listing Rules, any Director (exclusive of any Independent
Directors) may act by himself or his firm in a professional capacity for the Company, and he or his firm
shall be entitled to remuneration for professional services as if he were not a Director; provided that
nothing herein contained shall authorise a Director or his firm to act as internal auditor to the Company.

The Directors shall cause all minutes to be made in books or loose-leaf folders provided for the purpose
of recording:

(a) all appointments of officers made by the Directors;
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(b) the names of the Directors present at each meeting of the Directors and of any committee of the
Directors; and

(c) all resolutions and proceedings at all meetings of the Company, and of the Directors and of
committees of Directors.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, when the chairman of a meeting of the Directors signs the
minutes of such meeting the same shall be deemed to have been duly held.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in
their body but if and for so long as their number is reduced below the number fixed by or pursuant to
these Articles as the necessary quorum of Directors, the continuing Directors may act for summoning a
general meeting of the Company, but for no other purpose.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules and any regulations imposed on it by the Directors, a committee
appointed by the Directors may elect a chairman of its meetings. If no such chairman is elected, or if at
any meeting the chairman is not present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the
meeting, the committee members present may choose one (1) of their number to be chairman of the
meeting.

A committee appointed by the Directors may meet and adjourn as it thinks proper. Subject to the
Applicable Listing Rules and any regulations imposed on it by the Directors, questions arising at any
meeting shall be determined by a majority of votes of the committee members present.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules and any regulations imposed on it by the Directors, all acts done
by any meeting of the Directors or of a committee of Directors, or by any Person acting as a Director, shall
notwithstanding that it be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of any
such Director or Person acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if
every such Person had been duly appointed and was qualified to be a Director.

The following actions require the approval of a majority of the votes of the Directors present at a Board
meeting attended by at least two-thirds (2/3) of all Directors:

(a) entering into, amendment to, or termination of any contract for lease of its business in whole, or for
entrusted business, or for regular joint operation with others;

(b) the sale or transfer of the whole or any material part of its business or assets;

(c) taking over the transfer of another's whole business or assets, which will have a material effect on the
business operation of the Company;

(d) the election of Chairman of the Board pursuant to these Atrticles;

(e) the distribution of part or all of the dividends or bonus of the Company by way of cash pursuant to
Article 125A;

(f) the allocation of Employees' Remunerations and Directors’ Remunerations pursuant to Article 129;
and

(g) issuance of corporate bonds.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company shall set up an Audit Committee, and the professional qualifications of members,
formation, appointment, discharge, how such committee functions and exercises its power and other
relevant matters shall be subject to the Applicable Listing Rules. The Audit Committee shall comprise
solely of all Independent Directors and the number of committee members shall not be less than three
(3). Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, one (1) of the Audit Committee members shall be appointed
as the convener to convene meetings of the Audit Committee from time to time and at least one (1) of
the Audit Committee members shall have accounting or financial expertise. A valid resolution of the Audit
Committee requires approval of one-half (1/2) or more of all its members.

Notwithstanding anything provided to the contrary contained in these Articles, the following matters
require approval of one-half (1/2) or more of all members of the Audit Committee and final approval of the
Board:

(a) adoption of or amendment to an internal control system;
(b) assessment of the effectiveness of the internal control system;

(c) adoption of or amendment to the handling procedures for financial or operational actions of material
significance, such as acquisition or disposal of assets, derivatives trading, provision or extension of
monetary loans to others, or endorsements or guarantees for others;

(d) any matter relating to the personal interest of the Directors;
(e) the entering into of a transaction relating to material assets or derivatives;
(f) a material monetary loan, endorsement, or provision of guarantee;
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(g) the offering, issuance, or private placement of the Shares or any equity-linked securities;

(h) the hiring or dismissal of an attesting certified public accountant as the auditor of the Company, or the
compensation given thereto;

(i) the appointment or discharge of a financial, accounting, or internal auditing officers;
(i) approval of annual and semi-annual financial reports; and

(k) any other material matter deemed necessary by the Board of Directors or so required by Applicable
Listing Rules or the competent authority.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, with the exception of item (j) above, any other matter that has not
been approved with the consent of one-half (1/2) or more of all Audit Committee members may be
undertaken upon the consent of two-thirds (2/3) or more of all Directors, and the resolution of the Audit
Committee shall be recorded in the minutes of the Board meeting.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, where the Audit Committee is unable to convene a meeting for
any proper cause, matters may be approved by consent of two-thirds (2/3) or more of all Directors,
provided that the Independent Director members shall still be required to issue an opinion as to whether
the resolution is approved in respect of a matter under item (j) above.

Before the Company holds a meeting of the Board of Directors to adopt any resolution of Merger,
Acquisition, Spin-off or share swap, the Audit Committee shall seek opinion from an independent expert
in order to review the fairness and reasonableness of the plan and transaction of the Merger, Acquisition,
Spin-off or share swap, including but not limited to the justification of share swap ratio or a distribution by
cash or otherwise, and the review result shall be submitted to the Board of Directors and Shareholders in
the general meeting (provided, however, that if the Law does not require the Shareholders' approval on
the said transactions, the expert opinion and review result do not have to be submitted to the general
meeting); and the review result and the expert opinion shall be provided to the Shareholders together with
the notice of general meeting. If the Law does not require the Shareholders' approval on the said
transactions, the Board of Directors shall report the transactions in the next general meeting following the
transactions.

For the documents required to be given to the Shareholders in the preceding paragraph, if the Company
announces the same content as in those documents on a website designated by the Taiwan competent
authorities and those documents are available at the venue of the general meeting for Shareholders'
inspection, those documents shall be deemed as having been given to Shareholders.

The accounts of the Company shall be audited at least once in everyyear

The Audit Committee shall at all reasonable times have access to and may make copies of all books, all
accounts and vouchers and documents kept by the Company; and the Audit Committee may call on the
Directors or officers of the Company for any information in their possession relating to the books or affairs
of the Company.

The statement of income and expenditure and the balance sheet provided for by these Articles shall be
examined by the Audit Committee and compared with the books, accounts and vouchers relating thereto;
and the Audit Committee shall make a written report thereon stating whether such statement and balance
sheet are drawn up so as to present fairly the financial position of the Company and the results of its
operations for the period under review and, in case information shall have been called for from Directors
or officers of the Company, whether the same has been furnished and has been satisfactory. The Audit
Committee may appoint, on behalf of the Company, a practicing lawyer and a certified public accountant
to conduct the examination. The financial statements of the Company shall be audited by an auditor
appointed by the Board in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. The auditor shall
make a written report thereon in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the report of
the auditor shall be submitted to the Members in general meeting. The generally accepted auditing
standards referred to herein may be those of a country or jurisdiction other than the Cayman Islands. If
so, the financial statements and the report of the auditor should disclose this fact and name such country
orjurisdiction.

Subject to the Cayman Islands law, any Shareholder(s) holding one percent (1%) or more of the total
number of the issued Shares of the Company for six (6) consecutive months or longer may request in
writing any Independent Director of the Audit Committee to file a litigation against any Director or
Directors on behalf of the Company with a competent court having proper jurisdiction, including Taipei
District Court of the Republic of China.

If the Independent Director of the Audit Committee who has been requested by such Shareholder(s) in
accordance with the previous paragraph fails or refuses to file such litigation within thirty (30) days after
receiving the request by such Shareholder(s), subject to Cayman Islands law, such Shareholder(s) may
file such litigation on behalf of the Company with a competent court having proper jurisdiction, including
Taipei District Court of the Republic of China.

73



123A.

124.

125.

125A.

126.

127.

128.

129.

Other than that the Board of Directors is unwilling or unable to convene a general meeting, an
Independent Director of the Audit Committee may convene a general meeting for the interest of the
Company when necessary.

Subject to these Articles and the Applicable Listing Rules, the Company shall additionally comply with the
Rules of Audit Committee.
DIVIDENDS

Subject to the Law, any rights and restrictions for the time being attached to any Shares and these
Articles, the Company by Ordinary Resolution may declare dividends and other distributions on Shares in
issue and authorise payment of the same out of the funds of the Company lawfully available therefor.

Notwithstanding the preceding Article (125), the Directors may distribute part or all of the dividends or
bonus by way of cash with the approval of a majority of the votes of the Directors present at a Board
meeting attended by at least two-thirds (2/3) of all Directors, and report the aforementioned distribution to
the Shareholders at the next general meeting.

Subject to Article 129, the Directors may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the funds
legally available for distribution such sums as they think proper as a reserve or reserves which shall, in
the discretion of the Directors be applicable for meeting contingencies, or for equalising dividends or for
any other purpose to which those funds may be properly applied and pending such application may in the
absolute discretion of the Directors, either be employed in the business of the Company or be invested in
such investments as the Directors may from time to time thinkfit.

Any dividend may be paid by cheque sent through the post to the registered address of the Shareholder
or Person entitled thereto, or in the case of joint holders, to the representative of such joint holders at his
registered address or to such Person and such address as the Shareholder or Person entitled, or such
joint holders as the case may be, may direct. Every such cheque shall be made payable to the order of
the Person to whom it is sent or to the order of such other Person as the Shareholder or Person entitled,
or such joint holders as the case may be, may direct

Subject to any rights and restrictions for the time being attached to any Shares, all dividends shall be
declared and paid according to the number of the Shares held by the Shareholders.

As the Company continues to grow, the need for capital expenditure, business expansion and a sound
financial planning for sustainable development, it is the Company's dividends policy that the dividends
may be allocated to the Shareholders in the form of cash dividends and/or bonus shares according to the
Company's future expenditure budgets and fundingneeds.

Unless otherwise provided in the Applicable Listing Rules, where the Company makes profits before tax
for the annual financial year, the Company shall allocate (1) a maximum of fifteen percent (15%) and a
minimum of one percent (1%) of such annual profits before tax for the purpose of employees'
remunerations (including employees of the Company and/or any Affiliated Company) (the "Employees’
Remunerations"); and (2) a maximum of two percent (2%) of such annual profits before tax for the
purpose of Directors’ remunerations (the “Directors’ Remunerations”). Notwithstanding the foregoing
paragraph, if the Company has accumulated losses of the previous years for the annual financial year,
the Company shall set aside the amount of such accumulated losses prior to the allocation of Employees'
Remunerations and Directors’ Remunerations. Subject to Cayman Islands law, the Applicable Listing
Rules and notwithstanding Article 139, the Employees' Remunerations and the Directors’ Remunerations
may be distributed in the form of cash and/or bonus shares, upon resolution by a majority votes at a
meeting of the Board of Directors attended by two-thirds (2/3) or more of the Directors. The resolutions of
Board of Directors regarding the distribution of the Employees' Remunerations and the Directors’
Remunerations in the preceding paragraph shall be reported to the Shareholders at the general meeting
after such Board resolutions are passed.

Unless otherwise provided in the Applicable Listing Rules, the net profits of the Company for each annual
financial year shall be allocated in the following order and proposed by the Board of Directors to the
Shareholders in the general meeting for approval:

(a) to make provision of the applicable amount of income tax pursuant to applicable tax laws and
regulations;

(b) to set off accumulated losses of previous years (if any);

(c) to set aside ten percent (10%) as Legal Reserve pursuant to the Applicable Listing Rules unless the
accumulated amount of such Legal Reserve equals to the total paid- up capital of the Company;

(d) to set aside an amount as Special Reserve pursuant to the Applicable Listing Rules and requirements
of the Commission; and

(e) with respect to the earnings available for distribution (i.e. the net profit after the deduction of the items
(a) to (d) above plus any previously undistributed cumulative Retained Earnings), the Board of
Directors may present a proposal to distribute to the Shareholders by way of dividends at the annual
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general meeting for approval pursuant to the Applicable Listing Rules. Dividends may be distributed in
the form of cash dividends and/or bonus shares, and, subject to Cayman Islands law, the amount of
dividends shall be at least ten percent (10%) of the net profit after the deduction of the items (a) to (d)
above. Cash dividends shall comprise a minimum of ten percent (10%) and a maximum of one
hundred percent (100%) of the total dividends allocated to Shareholders.

If several Persons are registered as joint holders of any Share, any of them may give effectual receipts for
any dividend or other moneys payable on or in respect of the Share. No dividend shall bear interest
against the Company.

ACCOUNTS, AUDIT AND ANNUAL RETURN AND DECLARATION

The books of account relating to the Company's affairs shall be kept in such manner as may be
determined from time to time by the Directors.

The books of account shall be kept at the Office or at such other place or places as the Directors think fit,
and shall always be open to the inspection of the Directors.

The Board of Directors shall prepare and submit the business reports, financial statements and records to
the annual general meeting of Shareholders for its ratification and after the meeting shall distribute to
each Shareholder the copies of ratified financial statements and the resolutions on the surplus earning
distribution and/or loss offsetting. For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Stock
Market or listed in the Taipei Exchange or the TSE, alternatively, the distribution of the aforesaid adopted
financial statements and the resolutions on the surplus earning distribution and/or loss offsetting may be
accomplished by way of making public announcements by the Company.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the Board shall keep copies of the yearly business report,
financial statements and other relevant documents at the office of its Shareholders’ Service Agent in
Taiwan ten (10) days before the annual general meeting and any of its Shareholders is entitled to inspect
such documents from time to time.

Save for the preceding Article 134 and Article 148, the Directors shall from time to time determine
whether and to what extent and at what times and places and under what conditions or regulations the
accounts and books of the Company or any of them shall be open to the inspection of Shareholders not
being Directors, and no Shareholder (not being a Director) shall have any right of inspecting any account
or book or document of the Company except as conferred by law or authorised by the Directors or by
Ordinary Resolution.

The accounts relating to the Company's affairs shall only be audited in such manner and with such
financial year end as may be determined from time to time by the Directors, or required by the Applicable
Listing Rules.

The Directors in each year shall prepare, or cause to be prepared, an annual return and declaration
setting forth the particulars required by the Law and deliver a copy thereof to the Registrar of Companies
in the Cayman Islands.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company shall set up internal audit unit under the Board of Directors, and hire qualified and
adequate staffs as internal auditors. Any matters in relation to the internal audit shall comply with the
Applicable Listing Rules.

CAPITALISATION OF RESERVES

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules and the Law, the Company may, with the authority of either a
Supermajority Resolution Type A or a Supermajority Resolution Type B:

(a) resolve to capitalise an amount standing to the credit of reserves or other capital reserves (including a
share premium account, capital redemption reserve, revenue, profit and loss account, Capital
Reserves, Legal Reserves and Special Reserves), whether or not available for distribution;

(b) appropriate the sum resolved to be capitalised to the Shareholders in proportion to the number of
Shares held by them respectively and apply that sum on their behalf in or towards paying up in full
unissued Shares or debentures of a nominal amount equal to that sum, and allot the Shares or
debentures, credited as fully paid, to the Shareholders (or as they may direct) in those proportions, or
partly in one way and partly in the other;

(c) make any arrangements it thinks fit to resolve a difficulty arising in the distribution of a capitalised
reserve and in particular, without limitation, where Shares or debentures become distributable in
fractions the Directors may deal with the fractions as they think fit; and

(d) generally do all acts and things required to give effect to any of the actions contemplated by this
Article 129.

For the avoidance of doubts, the allotment of bonus shares in connection with the Employees'
Remunerations and Directors’ Remunerations pursuant to Article 129 shall not require the approval of a
Supermajority Resolution Type A or a Supermajority Resolution Type B.
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PUBLIC TENDER OFFER

For so long as the Shares of the Company are registered in the Emerging Market and/or listed in the
Taipei Exchange or TSE, any public tender offer of the Shares of the Company shall be subject to the
Applicable Listing Rules, including but not limited to the “Regulations Governing the Public Tender Offer
of Shares of Public Companies”.

SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

The Directors shall in accordance with the Law establish a share premium account and shall carry to the
credit of such account from time to time a sum equal to the amount or value of the premium paid on the
issue of any Share.

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules and the Law, there shall be debited to any share premium account
on the redemption or purchase of a Share the difference between the nominal value of such Share and
the redemption or purchase price provided always that at the discretion of the Directors such sum may be
paid out of the profits of the Company or, if permitted by the Law, out of capital.

NOTICES

Except as otherwise provided in these Articles or the Applicable Listing Rules, any notice or document
may be served by the Company or by the Person entitled to give notice to any Shareholder either
personally, or by facsimile, or by sending it through the post in a prepaid letter or via a recognised courier
service, fees prepaid, addressed to such Shareholder at his address as appearing in the Register, or to
the extent permitted by all applicable laws and regulations, by electronic means by transmitting it to any
electronic mail number or address such Shareholder may have positively confirmed in writing for the
purpose of such service of notices. In the case of joint holders of a Share, all notices shall be given to that
one of the joint holders whose name stands as their representative in the Register in respect of the joint
holding, and notice so given shall be sufficient notice to all the jointholders.

Any Shareholder present, either personally or by proxy, at any meeting of the Company shall for all
purposes be deemed to have received due notice of such meeting and, where requisite, of the purposes
for which such meeting was convened.

Except as otherwise provided in these Articles or the Applicable Listing Rules, any notice or other
document, if served by:

(a) post or courier, shall be deemed to have been served five (5) days after the time when the letter
containing the same is posted or delivered to the courier;

(b) facsimile, shall be deemed to have been served upon production by the transmitting facsimile
machine of a report confirming transmission of the facsimile in full to the facsimile number of the
recipient;

(c) recognised courier service, shall be deemed to have been served forty-eight (48) hours after the time
when the letter containing the same is delivered to the courier service; or

(d) electronic mail, shall be deemed to have been served immediately upon the time of the transmission
by electronic mail.

In proving service by post or courier service it shall be sufficient to prove that the letter containing the
notice or documents was properly addressed and duly posted or delivered to the courier service.

Any notice or document delivered or sent by post to or left at the registered address of any Shareholder in
accordance with these Articles shall notwithstanding that such Shareholder be then dead or bankrupt,
and whether or not the Company has notice of his death or bankruptcy, be deemed to have been duly
served in respect of any Share registered in the name of such Shareholder as sole or joint holder, unless
his name shall at the time of the service of the notice or document, have been removed from the Register
as the holder of the Share, and such service shall for all purposes be deemed a sufficient service of such
notice or document on all Persons interested (whether jointly with or as claiming through or under him) in
the Share.

Notice of every general meeting of the Company shall be given to:

(a) all Shareholders holding Shares with the right to receive notice and who have supplied to the
Company an address for the giving of notices to them; and

(b) every Person entitled to a Share in consequence of the death or bankruptcy of a Shareholder, who
but for his death or bankruptcy would be entitled to receive notice of the meeting.

No other Person shall be entitled to receive notices of general meetings.
INFORMATION

The Board shall keep at the office of its Shareholders’ Service Agent in Taiwan copies of the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association, the minutes of every general meeting, the
financial statements, the Register of Members and the counterfoil of corporate bonds issued by the
Company. Any Shareholder may request, by submitting evidentiary document(s) to show his/her interests
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involved and indicating the scope of interested matters, an access to inspect and to make copies of the
foresaid Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association, the minutes of every general meeting,
the financial statements, the Register of Members and the counterfoil of the corporate bonds issued by
the Company. The Company shall cause its Shareholders’ Service Agent to provide the aforesaid
documents.

Without prejudice to the rights set forth in these Articles, no Shareholder shall be entitled to require
discovery of any information in respect of any detail of the Company’s trading or any information which is
or may be in the nature of a trade secret or secret process which may relate to the conduct of the
business of the Company and which in the opinion of the Board would not be in the interests of the
members of the Company to communicate to the public.

The Board shall be entitled to release or disclose to any regulatory or judicial authority any information in

its possession, custody or control regarding the Company or its affairs to any of its Shareholder including,

without limitation, information contained in the Register of Members and transfer books of the Company.
INDEMNITY OR INSURANCE

The Company may by Ordinary Resolution adopt one (1) of the protection mechanisms as described in
Article 152 (a) and (b).

(a) Every Director and other officer for the time being and from time to time of the Company (each an
"Indemnified Person") may be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and funds of the
Company against all actions, proceedings, costs, charges, expenses, losses, damages or liabilities
incurred or sustained by such Indemnified Person, other than by reason of such Indemnified Person's
own dishonesty, wilful default or fraud, in or about the conduct of the Company's business or affairs
(including as a result of any mistake of judgment) or in the execution or discharge of his duties, powers,
authorities or discretions, including without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any costs,
expenses, losses or liabilities incurred by such Indemnified Person in defending (whether successfully or
otherwise) any civil proceedings concerning the Company or its affairs in any court whether in the
Cayman Islands or elsewhere.

(b) The Company may purchase directors and officers liability insurance (“D&O insurance”) for the
benefit of every Director and other officer for the time being and from time to time of the Company. Such
D&O insurance shall only cover the liability arising from the duty of such Director or officer in accordance
with these Articles, the Law and the Applicable ListingRules.

FINANCIAL YEAR

Unless the Directors otherwise prescribe, the financial year of the Company shall end on December 31st
in each year and shall begin on January 1st in eachyear.
WINDING- UP

If the Company shall be wound up, and the assets available for distribution amongst the Shareholders
shall be insufficient to repay the whole of the share capital, such assets shall be distributed so that, as
nearly as may be, the losses shall be borne by the Shareholders in proportion to the number of the
Shares held by them. If in a winding up the assets available for distribution amongst the Shareholders
shall be more than sufficient to repay the whole of the share capital at the commencement of the winding
up, the surplus shall be distributed amongst the Shareholders in proportion to the number of the Shares
held by them at the commencement of the winding up. This Atrticle is without prejudice to the rights of the
holders of Shares issued upon special terms and conditions.

If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a Special Resolution and any
other sanction required by the Law and in compliance with the Applicable Listing Rules, divide amongst
the Shareholders in specie or kind the whole or any part of the assets of the Company (whether they shall
consist of property of the same kind or not) and may, for such purpose set such value as he deems fair
upon any property to be divided as aforesaid and may determine how such division shall be carried out as
between the Shareholders or different Classes. The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole
or any part of such assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the Shareholders as the
liquidator, with the like sanction shall think fit, but so that no Shareholder shall be compelled to accept any
asset whereon there is any liability.

The Company shall keep all statements, records of account and documents for a period of ten years from
the date of the completion of liquidation, and the custodian thereof shall be appointed by the liquidator or
the Company by Ordinary Resolution.

AMENDMENT OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Subject to the Law and the Articles, the Company may at any time and from time to time by Special
Resolution alter or amend the Memorandum of Association and/or these Articles in whole or in part.
LITIGIOUS AND NON-LITIGIOUS AGENT

For so long as the Shares are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the Taipei Exchange or TSE,
subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the Company shall appoint a litigious and non-litigious agent in
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Taiwan (the "Litigious and Non-Litigious Agent"). The Litigious and Non-Litigious Agent shall be the
responsible person of the Company in Taiwan and shall have residence or domicile in Taiwan. The
Company shall report to the Commission in respect of the name, residence or domicile and authorization
document of the Litigious and Non-Litigious Agent. In case of any change of the name, residence or
domicile and authorization document of the Litigious and Non-Litigious Agent, the Company shall report
to the Commission in respect of such change

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

For the purpose of performing corporate social responsibility, the Company shall follow the applicable
laws, regulations and business ethics in operating its businesses and may conduct practices to facilitate
public interests.
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(Appendix 2) GUIDELINGES GOVERNING ELECTION <Before Amendment>

Article 1
F—

Article 2
=i

Article 3
¥ =45

Article 4
§wiE

Article 5
$IAE

Article 6
B AIE

Article 7
7%

Article 7-1

Coaster International Corp. Ltd.
ERARE R R E
GUIDELINGES GOVERNING ELECTION

FEEERPE )

To establish a well-functioning election system for the Directors of the Company, these
Guidelines are established in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules for compliance.

LEC AT ARFTEERELE ’f$*ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁfa$%¢»uﬁgﬁ

Unless otherwise defined in these Guidelines, any capital letters as used in these Guidelines shall
have the same meanings as defined in the Articles of Association of the Company (as amended or
substituted from time to time; hereinafter “Articles”).

AR T G OARN 0 ARFETRTEPE I ARLFR L LA RE AP 2P ]
ﬁ(é%ﬁ%%@asﬁykaﬁi:TﬁriiﬁJwfxﬁwko

In the election of Directors of the Company, the number of votes exercisable in respect of one
Share shall be the same as the number of Directors to be elected, and the total number of votes
per Share may be consolidated for election of one candidate or may be split for election of two or
more candidates.

A ‘é‘:i 1{%’4——5}1\"‘ bﬁ@wq’ﬁi/kﬁt#pﬂ? &%‘fg’l"g‘ﬂ ~$—A’E\;/”\
]ﬁ%ﬁ %3 B h oo

The Board of Directors shall prepare the number of ballots equal to the number of Directors to be
elected and shall fill in the number of votes to be distributed to the attending Members in a
general meeting.

TXERUFERENET A BAPZERL D Al AR AR g2 %
Prior to the commencement of an election, the chairman shall appoint several ballot examiners
and ballot counters to perform related duties.

EREBLT Y LARAEER P REREET A R LT MBA

The Board of Directors shall set up a ballot box for the election of Dlrectors to be inspected by
the ballot examiners prior to the casting of ballots.

%jiaéfﬁf’ﬂﬁigﬂﬁﬂ Tﬂ’”“’f)» g :%ﬁgﬂxﬂ“%‘%

Where a candidate is also a Member, the person casting the vote shall specify the account name
and the Member number on the ballot in the column entitled “Candidate”. If the candidate is
not a Member, the person casting the vote shall specify the name and identification number of the
candidate in the said column. Provided, however, if the candidate is a Member and a
government entity or a juristic person, the person casting the vote shall specify the name of the
government entity or jurisdiction person and may in addition specify the name of the
representative of the government entity or juristic person. Where there are multiple
representatives, the name of each representative shall be indicated.

BER AWl P ry  ERACFLERE TARER WEPARERL » 22 0L~
IR LE I ’Jﬁ CEEPARER A LR LB i o MEFCRE AR S ARE
B A m%%i%ﬁ?‘*?ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ik R TEE IR R A LR
EHR R AL R A A G HERAPR A B E N A AL

Where any Shareholder is a corporate entity, its representative may be elected as Director or
supervisor (if any). Where there are several representatives of any corporate Shareholder, such
representatives may be elected as either Directors or supervisors (if any) but not as Director and
supervisors (if any) concurrently.

FEAGHRARE B BRAAFELIFTAERA(doF ) A A BARF B ugE
e % l*k’pﬁﬁzﬁ‘\‘;})&liﬁii E’:5'*’\(-41\.")3)0

Independent Directors and non-Independent Directors shall be elected in the same election, but
the respective votes shall be separately calculated to determine the elected Independent Directors
and non-Independent Directors.

FE2ER e TR R A T - AR NP RN E

For so long as the shares of the Company are registered in the Emerging Market or listed on the
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Article 8
® 8 ik

Article 9
9k

Article 10
%10 i

Article 11
# 114

GreTai Securities Market or the Taiwan Stock Exchange, the election of the Independent
Director(s) shall be governed by Articles 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 of the Regulations Governing
Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies.

WAL FRG S FHEEIHA AES TR R o REAI 2 YRF > AP FF 2

xR E re \Fm]}\f" = ﬂj&’——ﬁi B % },@:gf‘i;ﬁ#/ZJ FTESNT A iE S N N

?’ﬁ\l'*'ll%{" 2T o

The ballot shall be null and invalid upon occurrence of one of the following:

EREF TANEL - K Eok

1. Ballots which are not in compliance with these Guidelines.

2. Blank ballots which are cast into the ballot box;

,1'13"‘;537@%@%)\;},\;@_ F|°

3. Scribbled and unidentifiable writing or writing which has been altered;
F PR R RIS .

4. A candidate who is also a Member whose account name and Member number are inconsistent
with the information recorded in the Register of Members; where a candidate who is not a
Member, the name and identification number provided are inconsistent upon further
verification.

ST AR VR BE A 4o % Ok A s'//\—‘ﬂ*z P B LA R LR R TEARER e
UL L Hib L D@ N- RGP HT B o

5. Writing other than the name of the candidate or Member number (identification number) and
the number of votes entitled.

"fiﬁfrﬁ»ﬁﬁf Ao () R G E(ERENA- BE)E A REFRERY > A BH Y
4 ‘;_ F o

6. The account name (name) or Member number (identification number) of the candidate has not
been specified.

ABEAERA 2P LR KL P B(E EA- yﬁn’gffu)‘%‘ °

7. Two or more candidates are included in a single ballot.
F-ERERFEFBERA D AR A E o

Pursuant to the number of Directors required under the Articles, the candidates to whom the
ballots cast represent a prevailing number of votes shall be elected based on the result of the
election as Independent Directors or non-Independent Directors, respectively in descending
order. If two or more candidates receive an equal number of votes, a draw shall take place
between these candidates to determine who shall be elected. Where a candidate is not present,
the chairman shall draw on behalf of the candidate.

ﬁf~§z,dwign¢ﬁ;ﬁ4f4§ﬁf AP EE R AFATRL LFE A
J?%Z:ﬁi*ﬂ% TF2ZEREH A ’é%##%%?%&@iﬁﬁwﬁﬁé
%é:Aé:kw*%ﬁﬁ&W%ma@% LR d @Rl B R K
%ﬂdiﬁ FELE
A

The Company shall not elect supervisors when it has established the Audit Committee.
ASPREFFLAEPEFVERT R o

Ballots shall be counted upon completion of the voting procedures and the result of the ballot
counting, including the list of persons elected as directors and the total number of votes for the
elected directors, shall be announced by the chairman immediately. The ballots shall be kept for
at least one year after sealed and signed by the ballot examiners, provided that in the case that
shareholders file lawsuits in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules, the ballots shall be
kept until the end of the lawsuits.

FERBUFHFRE RBLZLSERIAAFHFFETFE LIS FE - EHFL >
e £ & 5%T§$;’«%%%’ii*%ﬁ—ﬁoﬁgﬁiﬁjﬁﬁ%%€w%%i
HFAzz )‘—'ﬁi‘ BEFLIFREELL o

The election of candidate who is disqualified by the Applicable Listing Rules (including without
limitation to Paragraphs 3 and 4 of Article 26-3 of the Taiwan Securities and Exchange Act) shall
be ineffective.
PREIAAR)EA(FIHE AN EBFELIALZE LA EL 520 S 3R
% E R R
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Article 12 The Board of Directors shall send each elected Director a notice of appointment.

#1214 FEZEFS AT EREANFLFEL T o
Article 13 Establishment and amendment to these Guidelines shall be subject to approval of the Board of
F 13 4% Directors, which shall be further approved by Ordinary Resolution at a general meeting.

ARF2TREGIBEALTEEER A DR G2 R E -
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(Appendix 3) PROCEDURAL RULES OF GENERAL MEETING <Before Amendment>

Article 1
F—E

Article 2
B

CoaﬁerlnﬂwnaﬁonalCorp;LuL
PROCEDURAL RULES OF GENERAL MEETING

BR g RFAR

Legal Basis 414§

Unless otherwise provided in the Applicable Listing Rules and the Law, the general meetings of
the Company shall be held in accordance with the Rules.
AP g2 RE %&E’J“ﬁi_‘ H(H)E L EEEY G RT  BRARPIFEL o

Unless otherwise defined in the Rules, any capital letters as used in the Rules shall have the same
meanings as defined in the Articles of Association of the Company (as amended or substituted
from time to time; hereinafter "Articles").

EARP T G ERT ) ARRRY EREFEFARLFPR B IAARE AT DR
Fe(e R ERE BRI R R A T TRER )Y 2 TEE o

Attendance and Sign-in } 2% %

The Company shall include the information about the time slot when shareholders may report to
the meeting, the reporting location, and other important messages in the notice of general
meetings.

ANPRRR G PP RERAFIIFE B B 2 BB RALEFA -

The time slot when shareholders may report to the meeting in the preceding paragraph shall
begin no later than thirty minutes before the meeting. The reporting location shall be clearly
identified and there should an adequate number of staff assigned for the matter.
THEIEAFIFERD PR ERE LT = S A BT SRR ARG P RS 0 R
WA E AR PR o

Shareholders or their appointed proxies (the "Shareholders") shall attend a Shareholders'
meeting by presenting an attendance ID, sign-in card or other attendance identification. The
Company shall not request any additional attendance identification randomly. A proxy solicitor
shall bring his/her ID for verification.

AR A AR E e R A (T TRR  )RENAE A ERFAE L AR
iz ffﬂ WA e AP HEHRANATRERLEN 2 272 F ti,&iﬁqﬂ RTREHEEP 2
Blchkd 03 2 ped o b d BARMD 2 & R P e

The Company shall provide a sign-in book allowing attending Shareholders or their appointed
proxies to sign in or require attending Shareholders to submit attendance cards in lieu of signing
in.

AP RKELEEINEALAA N AL L2 B AFR > Ad DA RABEIE D
LR E T e

The Company shall deliver the meeting agenda, annual report, attendance ID, summary of speech

form, voting ballot and other meeting information to Shareholders who attend a Shareholder's

meeting. In case of election of director(s) and/or supervisor(s), the election ballot shall also be

provided.

AP RHEREIN EF A FTESAAE AL ERTA AT I ARAL
BRI FEREF CERAY O BTV HERE -

Unless otherwise regulated in the Applicable Listing Rules or the Law, corporate Shareholders'

attendance of a general meeting shall be in accordance with the Articles.
’ﬁ%l PSR REY GRS  FANARL ﬁ%“k\i@:ﬁj AEATZ R o

Tﬁ
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Article 3
=i

Article 4
¥ wiE

Article 5
$EAE

Article 6
FAE

Article 7
5

Calculation of Attending Shares H /§ ¥z 3+ 5

The number of Shares represented by Shareholders attending the general meeting shall be
calculated in accordance with the sign-in book or the number of attendance cards submitted by
Shareholders in plus the number of shares whose voting rights are exercised by correspondence
or electronically.

BAEZIARMEPEFEAE DA REEE RSB ETF o et uFa AT
F AR AR G2

Venue and Time of General Meetings Ff € 3% % B i

According to the Articles and the Applicable Listing Rules, all general meetings shall be
convened at such venues convenient for Shareholders' attendance and suitable for convention,
and shall not begin earlier than 9:00 a.m. or later than 3:00 p.m.

B AFAETIAR)Z AR KA LRI B B BT JIRAN A FERLE L
%i%%éivgﬁ%%%@zﬁi%piiga%%wg,gc

Identification of Appointed Professionals and Other Relevant Persons Who May Be Present
ZHEFALARMARFAIR Z B

The Company may appoint its lawyer(s), accountant(s) or other relevant person(s) to be present
at a general meeting. All supporting staff for the general meeting shall wear an identification
badge or arm-band.
AN EAgiR TR REF - R AR A RIR R o TR €2 04 BRI
?ﬂWiéﬁi°

Audio Recording or Videotaping of Meetings for Evidence B § #B£4& 5 &Y 2 5#

A general meeting shall be audio recorded and videotaped in its entirety on a continuous,
non-stop basis from the time Shareholders report to the meeting and the meeting itself to voting
and ballot counting, and these tapes shall be kept for at least one year. However, the said tapes
shall be kept until the conclusion of legal proceedings if a Shareholder initiates proceedings in
accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules.
i??@*%ﬁuiﬁﬂﬁtﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ‘%i?iﬁﬁiﬁé?ﬂ
Ferdrs 288 1 K3 & o Rl ()24 & FRE B I TR

B o

it

The Chairman and Agent X J§ & 4%3E A

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, the Chairman, if any, of the Board of the Directors shall
preside as chairman at every general meeting of the Company convened by the Board of the
Directors. In case the Chairman is on leave or absent or can not exercise his/her power and
authority for any cause, he/she shall designate one of the other Directors to act on his/her behalf.
In the absence of such a designation, the Directors shall elect from among themselves an acting
chairman for the meeting.
j‘“f‘(%‘%)ﬁ’:‘y“‘%i*’%’iigﬁré e B d ﬁir(ﬁr;a)#&r ’
i-s\pﬂ e Flga H oA (7@ BR ’I‘EF‘;‘ > d 35:73: 3‘ )I;:éfi— A 1*«3“’7 » B % & #\#FI R LIRS
—'FL]’ o FEI - A NIB2 o

Where a Managing Director or a Director is to act as the agent for the chairman in the preceding
paragraph, only the Managing Directors or Directors who have been in the position for six
months or more and have a good understanding of the Company's financial and business
conditions may be allowed to do so. The same shall apply in case that the representative of a
corporate director acts as the chairman.

WHAR G FBEFSEF ALY > LERS B FEES P MRk F
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Article 8
FAGE

Article 9
#ALE

BETAETHEL LA Wi E CETL AL AR

For a general meeting convened by any other person having the convening right, such person
shall act as the chairman of that meeting; provided that if there are two (2) or more persons
jointly having the convening right, the chairman of the meeting shall be elected from those
persons.

Hj,“\?;‘\g«&rgi giguﬂi_ﬁ,& 7. B ;;a:—‘*z v 3 R od M;gﬁcﬁ/\ A gﬂ;a;ﬂ;g/\ﬂﬁ_—
VRS Y ST BT I

The Company shall prepare the notice of general meetings, the proxy form, and the information
relating to the subject and description of proposals for recognition and for discussion, election
and/or dismissal of directors and supervisors in the form of electronic file to be uploaded to the
Market Observation Post System thirty (30) days before annual general meetings or fifteen (15)
days before extraordinary general meetings. The meeting agenda for general meetings and
supplemental meeting information shall be prepared in the form of electronic file to be uploaded
to the Market Observation Post System twenty (21) days before annual general meetings or
fifteen (15) days before extraordinary general meetings. The meeting agenda for general
meetings and supplemental meeting information shall be ready for Shareholders' review at all
time by fifteen (15) days before general meetings, and such information shall be available at the
Company and professional stock agent appointed by the Company and be distributed at general
meetings.

ﬂ\\ﬁ}@-ﬂ:«wiﬁgﬁﬂg—;B—éﬁ RN RN R TS - SUECE NS
AN MAGRE R FEAEETE C ERCIARLARAL AL 2 p
FREEST I % BT OB F BRI - v%w FEeEMEg-L-pidudiepé
BELT P ML ERT SRR G RT R ﬁw?é%% 05O TR o
&igﬁg*iﬂﬁ’%*%AwiﬁiiiPﬁééﬁ CFAL L %ﬁz%,jm
FIFMALTE AP LTl B E ORI SIS 2 TR L § R

Convention of A Meeting €3 2

The chairman shall call the general meeting to order at the time scheduled for the general
meeting. If the number of Shares represented by the attending Shareholders has not yet
constituted the quorum (more than an aggregate of one-half (1/2) of all Shares in issue present in
person or by proxy and entitled to vote) at the time scheduled for the general meeting, the
chairman may postpone the time for the meeting. The postponements shall be limited to two
times at most, and the general meeting shall not be postponed for more than one hour in total. If
after two postponements the number of Shares represented by the attending Shareholders has
constituted more than one-third (1/3) of all Shares in issue present in person or by proxy and
entitled to vote, a tentative resolution may be passed in accordance with the Applicable Listing
Rules. Before the end of such a meeting, if the number of Shares represented by the attending
Shareholders has already constituted more than an aggregate of one-half (1/2) of all Shares in
issue, the chairman may put the tentative resolution(s) already passed to the Shareholders'
resolution again in accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules.
CEBEEE CARRTE ARG MM AEE TR E(TF N A TR R EGE Y ez
é%%%%img*iﬁﬁm&*ﬁWP|@@z#wwwg’ﬁka&u—';ﬂ’
&@%@@?7§£@—+ﬁ°ﬁ@:ﬁ%mliﬁﬁ@%Q%WKQ%&’Q%—u;
FAAERAR AL AT DR Fikip P ()2 L RTE BRI X E
vi#\ LR LRI RIS S SR RIS - N SRS 8 SURS S W ISR S
x;n;b*;j B()E LS RTEATRGEALE LA

Proposal Discussion % % 3t%

For a Shareholders' meeting convened by the Board of Directors, it is advised that the chairman
shall host the Shareholders' meeting in person and a majority of the Directors are present at the
meeting. In addition, all functional committees shall send at least one representative to preside
over the Shareholders' meeting and their attendance shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.

FEE 7 B2 Nl g FHE TR A P v FEE B FERA A 2 L

105



Article 10
#+HiE

SERRTES I S RN Y ISR PSR S WL £ P

The agenda of general meeting shall be set by the Board of Directors if the meeting is convened
by the Board of Directors. Related proposals (including extemporary motions and amendments to
the original proposals) should be voted by shareholders separately. Unless otherwise approved in
the general meeting, the general meeting shall proceed in accordance with the agenda.
”ig%dﬁigéﬁi HikAzd $F 722 MRR(CHERFFRE RARZB L)
SR R Lk § P R IR R f LA B PR L2 -

The preceding paragraph applies to circumstances where the general meeting is convened by any
person, other than the Board of Directors, entitled to convene such general meeting.

Bk gdod FEEU2ZHB G L REALEY > B AL RE -

Unless otherwise resolved at the general meeting or in accordance with Article 17 of the Rules,
the chairman cannot announce adjournment of the general meeting before all items listed in the
agenda are resolved; after a meeting is adjourned, Shareholders shall not elect a chairman and
resume the meeting at the same or another venue. In case that the chairman adjourns the general
meeting in violation of the Rules, other members of the Board of Directors shall promptly assist
the attending Shareholders to elect, by a majority of votes represented by attending Shareholders
present in the general meeting, another person to serve as chairman to continue the general
meeting in accordance with due procedures.

SRR RAATREALE D GRS RARDF L iE R

i

a2 A FIEA
*#ﬁg ERAITERL > RAZEITRELIA AR ST LHTEEFRE > LARGEF 4
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IR Sa &.#ﬂlbs— AEEAR  HERE -

The chairman shall provide sufficient time for the explanation and discussion of all items listed
in the agenda and amendments submitted by Shareholders. The chairman may announce an end
of discussion and submit an item for a vote if the chairman deems that the agenda item is ready
for voting and the discussion and amendments proposed complied with the Applicable Listing
Rules and the Articles. The chairman shall provide sufficient time for voting.

AR EREE AR K @¢ﬂ~9”mifm~$§ FiaERAZY
TPhR¥L BLARTRE II(R)ZL LRI IEVRAAZLBAF T2 F BAEGHK
i THPF R RERR -

Speech of Shareholder B % %

When a Shareholder attending the general meeting wishes to speak, a speech note should be
filled out with summary of the speech, the Shareholder’s account number (or the number of
attendance card) and the account name of the Shareholder. The sequence of speeches shall be
determined by the chairman.

HRBRAFET o FRAEEF T ELPE T R g KA SR (RAAFEREL) 22 L0
LAHREES -

If any attending Shareholder at the general meeting submits a speech note but does not speak, no
speech shall be deemed to have been made by such Shareholder. In case contents of the speech
of a Sharcholder are inconsistent with the contents of the speech note, the content of actual
speech shall prevail.
HARLERETEAAFTH RS AET O F TR FRETERLA B R
Fa-

Any Shareholder may not speak more than twice concerning the same item without chairman’s
consent, and each speech time shall not exceed five minutes. In case the speech of any
Shareholder violates this paragraph or is outside the scope of the agenda item, the chairman
may stop the speech of such Shareholder.

-3 F- Mk F T ATARZFALA TRES X EX 2 IRET AE RLF 2
EF AR TAANRAEPR Y O LA FHILEFT

Unless otherwise permitted by the chairman and the speaking Shareholder, no Shareholder shall
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Article 11
B+—1%

Article 12
f

intermpt the speech of other Shareholders. The chairman shall stop such interruption
SR Fﬁf’ﬁw”ifq_ﬁ:w'—ffﬁﬂ’?"’”iﬂ?’*’lf’é + 3 ﬂi}ﬁ
PRI

If a corporate Shareholder has appointed two or more representatives to attend the general

meeting, only one representative can speak for each agenda item.
AR AR A2 AN RRL G b - RETERS - A FT o

After the speech of any Shareholder, the Chairman may make responses by him or herself or
appoint an appropriate person to respond.
MABAETE ARER S TAAMAAER

Proposal by Shareholder 3% # 3% %

In accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules and subject to Article 52 of the Articles, any
Shareholders who individually or collectively hold one percent (1%) or more of the total number
of issued Shares of the Company may submit to the Company a proposal for discussion at the
annual general meeting.

%2‘;75 L AR \&@ﬁ)’tﬂ Mz = T b2 s (BB (AF)xz 4243 2 ﬂ‘.ﬁ-%}.:’;[sz]
FzZ R o MFT e PRI AT ERE o

Calculation of Voting Shares and Recusal # =ik #icz 3+ 5 - g4 B

Voting at a general meeting shall be based on the number of Shares.
A Y R L S S €

The number of Shares represented by Shareholders present at the meeting shall be calculated in
accordance with the sign-in book or submitted attendance card, plus the voting Shares exercised
in writing or electronically.

MR REEE LEANBRAZETF o P E R AT N R A KB o

The Shares solicited by solicitors and Shares represented by proxies shall be disclosed in a
statement in the form consistent with the Applicable Listing Rules posted at a conspicuous
location within the meeting venue on the meeting day.

B A et 2 s 30N A (N2 e AP RRAEREF P 0 kB (IR)2
FRIRN M2 34 WL EHP S P ELIRT -

The Shares held by any Shareholders with no voting rights shall not be included in the total
number of issued Shares while voting on resolutions in the general meeting.

WA g2 Ak HREAABEAZRGHE 28~ FERFLR

To the extent required by the Applicable Listing Rules and in accordance with Article 66 of the
Articles, any Shareholder who bears a personal interest that may conflict with and impair the
interest of the Company in respect of any proposed matter for consideration an approval at a
general meeting shall abstain from voting any of the Shares that such Shareholder should
otherwise be entitled to vote in person, as a proxy or corporate representative with respect to said
matter.

WA (R)E LR RZFFP 0 RATEF[O0]FL R RAFHF TR IRAERL LIRS
G p AT MG ﬂﬂ?*>jﬂ37¢ﬁ R SR A
FEARLFREAT T2 T A& AE

Any Shares held by any Shareholders who are not permitted to exercise voting rights in the
preceding paragraph shall not be counted in the number of votes of Shareholders present at the
general meeting for relevant resolutions.

ﬁﬁlwﬁ%a#ﬁ1&9&’%W%%ﬁlﬁﬁéﬂﬁﬁii%%ﬁ&°

Except for Taiwan trust enterprises or Shareholders’ Service Agencies approved by Taiwan
competent authorities, when a person who acts as the proxy for two or more Shareholders
concurrently, the number of votes represented by him shall not exceed three percent of the total
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Article 13
F+=45

Article 14
Fwmik

number of votes of the Company and the portion of excessive votes represented by such proxy
shall not be counted.

FEEARGEF LAY EARE ﬁlﬁﬁwfmm ﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁf’—&F%AJA
IJFBY‘Q‘\i—"pa‘;—,ﬁL;@a FAEF FARE . B TR PREAELTD - > REEFH
AR F A 2 A Y o

Subject to the Applicable Listing Rules, if any Shareholder holding Shares for and on behalf of
another person or entity, such Shareholder may assert to exercise the voting rights separately.
The qualifications, scopes, exercises, operational procedures and other matters in relation to the
aforesaid separate exercise of voting rights shall be conducted in accordance with the Applicable
Listing Rules.

R P (F)E L R AR LB ARG ORGP A FAES B (TR AR B A
MR AR R @ PR TR TERAZ AR BB FER I

£F €T o

Principle for Voting Right # &4 B B

Subject to the Articles and any rights and restrictions for the time being attached to any Share,
every Shareholder and every Person represented by proxy shall have one vote for each Share of
which he or the Person represented by proxy is the holder.
?iiﬁfi%i§%9fﬁﬁgﬁﬁ?*mﬂ*’i—ﬁéﬂﬂﬁi%ﬁﬂ4ﬂﬁ1&
J*N@F%ﬁﬂ%’%ﬂfﬂféﬁﬁ— L ipag - 4 -

Shareholders shall vote on each of the proposals presented at the meeting and the result of the
vote indicating Shareholders' consent, objection and abstaining from voting shall be entered at
the Market Observation Post System on the day immediately following the convention of the
Shareholders' meeting.
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Where any Director or supervisor (if any), who is also a Shareholder of the Company, creates or
has created a pledge on the Shares held by such Director (the "Pledged Shares") exceeding fifty
percent (50%) of total Shares held by such Director at the time of his/her appointment as Director
or supervisor (if any), such Director or supervisor (if any) shall refrain from exercising its voting
rights on the Shares representing the difference between the Pledged Shares and fifty percent
(50%) of total Shares held by such Director or supervisor (if any) at the time of his/her
appointment as Director or supervisor (if any), and such Shares shall not be counted toward the
number of votes represented by the Shareholders present at a general meeting.
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Voting on Proposal # %2 %%

Unless otherwise provided for under the Applicable Listing Rules or the Articles, a proposal put
to a vote shall be approved by consent of a majority of Shareholders present at the meeting
attended.
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In case of an amendment proposal or substitute proposal to an original proposal, the chairman

shall decide on the order of vote together with the original proposal. However, if one of the

proposals has been approved, the others shall be deemed overruled and no further vote is

required.

F~P§z%-pl$i%- FrEE >d ARERRAEZEHAA2Z TR 4o P - ko B ER
SRE TG Bk B A

108



Article 15
F+EiE

Article 16
4

Where directors and/or supervisors are elected at a Shareholders' meeting, the election shall be
conducted in accordance with the applicable election rules established by the Company and the
election results, including the list of elected directors and/or supervisors and numbers of shares
voted for the election of directors and/or supervisors, shall be announced at the same meeting.
WA g FERET  ERA (P IB 0 R A 2P T ME BB E R By
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Voting ballots cast in the election of director(s) shall be signed and sealed by scrutinizer and
properly kept for at least one (1) years; provided, however, that in case of a litigation instituted
by Shareholder, these ballots shall then be kept until conclusion of the litigation.
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Checking and Counting Ballots & £ & 3+ Z

The chairman shall appoint persons responsible for checking and counting ballots during votes
on agenda items. However, the persons responsible for checking ballots must be Shareholders.
The ballots cast in the voting of a general meeting or for election proposal shall be publicly
counted at any general meeting venue and the result of voting, including the numbers of shares
voted, shall be announced at the same general meeting after all ballots have been counted and
placed on record.
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Meeting Minutes 3% % 4%

Any resolutions made at a general meeting shall be compiled in the form of meeting minutes.

The chairman shall affix his/her signature or seal to the meeting minutes, which shall be issued to

shareholders within twenty days after the end of the general meeting. Meeting minutes may be

produced and issued to Shareholders in electronic form.
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While the Company remains as a listing company in Taiwan, the meeting minutes referred to in
the preceding paragraph may be distributed, alternatively, by way of making public
announcement at the Market Observation Post System (the "MOPS").
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The meeting minutes must faithfully record the meeting's date (year, month, day), place,
Chairman's name, resolution method, summary of proceedings, and results of voting resolutions
(including the numbers of shares voted). In case of election of director(s) and/or supervisor(s),
the number of votes of each candidate should be disclosed. = Meeting minutes shall be kept
during the existence of the Company.
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The number of votes casted for and against a resolution and the total number of votes cast shall
be recorded in the meeting minutes.
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The Company shall upload the relevant information and contents of the resolution made in the
general meeting onto the MOPS within the prescriptive period if there is any material
information (as defined and prescribed under the Applicable Listing Rules) in such resolution.
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Article 17
B+ E4

Article 18
A

Article 19
&+ AiE

Intermission and Resumption of A Meeting 4k & ~ §i7% ¢

During the general meeting, the chairman may, at his or her discretion, set time for intermission.
In exceptional cases, when there are incidents that temporarily prevent the normal progress of the
general meeting, the chairman may decide to temporarily suspend the general meeting and
announce, depending on the situation, the time that the meeting will resume.
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Before the agenda set for the general meeting are completed, if the meeting venue cannot
continue to be used for the general meeting, the chairman may seek another venue to resume the
general meeting. Upon approval by Ordinary Resolution, the chairman may (and shall if so
directed by the meeting) adjourn the general meeting if necessary.
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The Shareholders may resolve to adjourn or resume the general meeting within five days in
accordance with the Applicable Listing Rules and the Articles.
UK EERII)EL 2 ATRZ AT AREIPPUEDPEFTAFRE o

Preservation of Order at the Meeting Venue € 35# F 2 445

The chairman may direct inspectors (or security guards) to assist in preserving the order at the
meeting venue. Inspectors (or security guards) shall wear an arm-band with the word
"Inspector" when assisting in preserving the order at the meeting venue.
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The chairman may direct inspectors or security guards to ask Shareholders who violate the Rules,
disobey the chairman's correction, impede the process of the meeting and do not comply after
being asked to stop to leave the meeting venue.
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If there is speaker facility at the meeting venue and a shareholder speaks with the facility other
than that prepared by the Company, the chairman may stop him.
EHRIHBIRAE  RAAN AT REZAFHF T T2 o

Enforcement and Amendment § 3§ 224537

Establishment and amendment to the Rules shall be subject to approval of the Board of Directors,
which shall be further approved by Ordinary Resolution in the general meeting.
AR 27T E B RETFERDL > TERKNE Y W ARUEE -

110



SAIBYS 969°SSS 9L 1 20T ‘ST [MdY UO SaIRYS PaNssI [J0], : T ION
SOIBYS 969°SSS 9L 1 §10T ‘T QUN[ UO SAIBYS PINSSI [0, : | dJON

%tr e 16€°TSE°9C — %0€ ¢ 16€°85T°9C - 8101
. 1030211
%0 0 SaIeqs uowwoy | 0 0 SaIeqs uowrwosn | ¢1/90/810¢ 1D ‘urz 3un‘y Eo%ﬁom.owﬂ
%0 0 SaIBYS UOWWO)) | () 0 sareyg uowrwio)) | 71/90/8107 | udy) ‘Suoy Suof 1o109nd
° 4 4 4 juopuadapuy
. 1030011
%0 0 SaIeqs uowwoy | 0 0 SaIeyS uowrwos | ¢1/90/810¢ uenx "qry my Eovwom.owﬁ
%0 0 SaIeYS UOWWO)) | () 0 sareys uowwio)) | 71/90/810C nry ‘Surz suoy | 1030211
%¥C0 000°081 SoIet§ uourwon | %I1°0 00098 Saley§ uowrwios | ¢1/90/810¢ UBd IOPUBX9[Y | 10191I(Q
Y9A d [9BYIIN
%617¢ [SETLI'9T | SareyS uowWwo) | %61 v¢ 1SETLI9T | sareys wowwo) | 71/90/810C aAneuLsaIday | 1030011
DT O34
%0 0 SaIeys uowwon | 0 0 Saleys uowrwon | ¢1/90/810C oD BSI'] | UBULIRYD)
(¢ 210N) SaIeys odAL (1 210N) sareys odAL
onel 3urp[oy aIeys onelr JuIpjoy aIeys Pa10910 e owreN L
Surpjoyareys juaun)) P9399]9 J[IyM SUIP[OYIBYS

120T ‘ST [udy : a1eQ PI003Y

$.10322.1( [V Jo Suipjoyaieys (y xipuaddy)

111



. — @ & pp
COASTER

FINE FURNITURE %%Eﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁa



